
REGULAR MEETING OF THE FLORIN RESOURCE 
 CONSERVATION DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Agenda 

Wednesday, July 17, 2019 

 6:30 PM 

9257 Elk Grove Blvd. 
Elk Grove, CA 95624 

Compliance with Government Code Section 54957.5 

Public records, including writings related to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the 
Florin Resources Conservation District that are distributed less than 72 hours before the meeting, are 
available for public inspection during normal business hours at the Administration building of Elk Grove 
Water District, located at 9257 Elk Grove Blvd. Elk Grove, California. In addition, such writings may be 
posted, whenever possible, on the Elk Grove Water District website at www.egwd.org. 

The Board will discuss all items on the agenda, and may take action on any item listed as an “Action” item. 
The Board may discuss items that do not appear on the agenda, but will not act on those items unless there 
is a need to take immediate action and the Board determines by a two-thirds (2/3) vote that the need for 
action arose after posting of the agenda. 

If necessary, the Meeting will be adjourned to Closed Session to discuss items on the agenda listed under 
“Closed Session.” At the conclusion of the Closed Session, the meeting will reconvene to “Open Session.” 

CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Public Comment – Please complete a Request to Speak Form if you wish to address the Board. 
Members of the audience may comment on matters that are not included on the agenda.  Each person will 
be allowed three (3) minutes, or less if a large number of requests are received on a particular subject.  No 
action may be taken on a matter raised under "Public Comment" until the matter has been specifically 
included on an agenda as an action item.  Items listed on the agenda will be opened for public comment as 
they are considered by the Board of Directors.   

1. Proclamations and Announcements
a. Recognition of Travis Franklin for five years of service.

Associate Director Comment 

Public Comment 

2. Consent Calendar (Stefani Phillips, Secretary and Patrick Lee, Treasurer)

a. Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of June 19, 2019
b. Warrants Paid – June, 2019
c. Active Accounts – June, 2019
d. Bond Covenant Status for FY 2018-19 – June, 2019
e. Revenues and Expenses – Actual vs Budget FY 2018- 19 – June, 2019
f. Cash Accounts – June, 2019
g. Consultants Expenses – June, 2019
h. Major Capital Improvement Projects – June, 2019

Associate Director Comment 



Public Comment 
 

   Recommended Action:  Approve Florin Resource Conservation District Consent 
Calendar items a-h. 

 

3.  Committee Meetings (Stefani Phillips, Board Secretary) 
 
Associate Director Comment 
 

Public Comment   
 

4. Public Hearing – Public Health Goals Report (Mark J. Madison, General Manager) 

 
Associate Director Comment 

 

Public Comment    
 

Recommended Action:   1) Hold a public hearing to receive public comment 
regarding the proposed acceptance of the “2019 
Report on Water Quality Relative to Public Health 
Goals”; and 

 
 2)  Accept the report pending public comments. 

  

5. Elk Grove Water District Operations Report – June 2019 

 (Mark J. Madison, General Manager) 
 

Associate Director Comment 
 

Public Comment   
 

6. Elk Grove Water District Fiscal Year 2018-19 Quarterly Operating Budget 
Status Report (Patrick Lee, Finance Manager/Treasurer) 

 
Associate Director Comment 
 

Public Comment    
 
7. Elk Grove Water District Fiscal Year 2018-19 Quarterly Capital Reserve Status 

Report (Patrick Lee, Finance Manager/Treasurer) 
 
Associate Director Comment 

 

Public Comment    

 
8. Truck Purchase For Replacement Of Truck #303  
 (Bruce Kamilos, Assistant General Manager) 
 
Associate Director Comment 
 

Public Comment    
 
Recommended Action:         Authorize the General Manager to execute a purchase 

order in the amount of $84,186.63, including tax and 
license, with Fairfield Ford to purchase a dump truck to 
replace Truck #303. 

 
 

2



9.  Outside Agency Meetings Report (Mark J. Madison, General Manager) 
 

Associate Director Comment 
 

Public Comment    
 

10.  Legislative Report (Sarah Jones, Program Manager) 
 

Associate Director Comment 
 

Public Comment 

 
11.  Directors Comments 

 
12. Closed Session 

a. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
 Property: APN# 134-0072-016-0000 

 Agency negotiator: Mark Madison  
Negotiating parties: Cabrera Family Trust 
Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment 
 

 Property: APN# 134-0072-015-0000 
Agency negotiator: Mark Madison  
Negotiating parties:  Bigelow Family Trust 
Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment 

 
  Property: APN# 134-0072-014-0000 

Agency negotiator: Mark Madison  
Negotiating parties:  Anthony and Eloise Badique 
Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment 

 
   Property: APN# 134-0072-013-0000 
 Agency negotiator: Mark Madison  

  Negotiating parties:  E/A Properties, LLC, Balfour Properties, LLC,  
 and HJM Properties, LLC 
 Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment 

 
  

Adjourn to Regular Meeting – August 21, 2019            

3



July 17, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 2 

 
TO:  Chairperson and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District 
 
FROM: Stefani Phillips, Board Secretary and Patrick Lee, Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT: CONSENT CALENDAR  

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
It is recommended that the Florin Resource Conservation District Board of Directors 
approve Florin Resource Conservation District Consent Calendar items a – h.    
 
 

SUMMARY 

 
Consent Calendar items a – h are standing items on the Regular Board Meeting agenda.  
 
By this action, the Board will approve Florin Resource Conservation District Consent 
Calendar items a – h.  
 

 

DISCUSSION 

 
Background 
 
Consent Calendar items are standing items on the Regular Board Meeting agenda.    
 
Present Situation 
 
Consent Calendar items a – h are standing items on the Regular Board Meeting agenda. 
 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

 
There are no direct environmental considerations associated with this report.  
 
  
STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY 

 

Fiscal stability is in conformity with the District’s Business Practice goals of the 2012-2017 
Strategic Plan. 
 
 

4



July 17, 2019 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR  

Page 2 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 2 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

There is no financial impact associated with this report.   
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 
    
 

                                                                                     

STEFANI PHILLIPS  
BOARD SECRETARY  
 
And  
 
 
 
PATRICK LEE 
TREASURER 
 
Attachments 

5



               

MSC = Motion, Second, Carried.                                               MINUTES OF THE REGULAR FRCD BOARD MEETING FOR June 19, 2019 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE  
FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

 BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 

Wednesday, June 19, 2019 
        
The regular meeting of the Florin Resource Conservation District Board of Directors was called 
to order at 6:30 p.m. by Tom Nelson, Chairperson, at 9257 Elk Grove Blvd., Elk Grove, CA. 
 
Call to Order, Roll Call, and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Directors Present: Bob Gray, Tom Nelson, Elliot Mulberg  
Directors Absent:    Sophia Scherman, Lisa Medina  
Staff Present:             Mark Madison, General Manager; Bruce Kamilos, Assistant 

General Manager; Patrick Lee, Treasurer; Stefani Phillips, Board 
Secretary; Donella Murillo, Finance Supervisor; Sarah Jones, 
Program Manager 

Staff Absent:  None 
Associate Directors Present:  Shahid Chaudhry  
Associate Directors Absent: None  
General Counsel Present: Ren Nosky, JRG Attorneys at Law  
 
Public Comment 
Lauren Curtis introduced herself and stated she wanted to learn about her local water shed. 
 
1. Proclamations and Announcements 
       No proclamations and announcements were made.    
 

2.    Consent Calendar 
a. Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of May 15, 2019 
b. Warrants Paid – May, 2019 
c. Active Accounts – May, 2019 
d. Bond Covenant Status for FY 2018- 19 – May, 2019 
e. Revenues and Expenses – Actual vs Budget FY 2018- 19 – May, 2019 
f. Cash Accounts – May, 2019  
g. Consultants Expenses – May, 2019 
h.  Major Capital Improvement Projects – May, 2019        

 
MSC (Mulberg/Gray) to approve Florin Resource Conservation District Consent Calendar 
items a-h. 3/0: Ayes: Gray, Mulberg, and Nelson. 

 

3. Committee Meetings 
Human Resources Administrator Stefani Phillips presented the Finance Committee Meeting 
minutes to the Florin Resource Conservation District (FRCD) Board of Directors (Board). 
 
One (1) Finance Committee Meeting was held on Wednesday, May 1, 2019, to review the 
Draft Fiscal Year (FY) 2019-20 Operating Budget.   

 
MSC (Mulberg/Gray) to accept the minutes of the Finance Committee Meeting held on 
Wednesday, May 1, 2019. 3/0: Ayes: Gray, Mulberg, and Nelson. 

 

4. Elk Grove Water District Operations Report – May 2019 
General Manager Mark Madison presented the Elk Grove Water District (EGWD) Operations 
Report – May 2019 to the Board. 
 

 
 

6

AParker
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#      a



2 

 

MSC = Motion, Second, Carried.                                               MINUTES OF THE REGULAR FRCD BOARD MEETING FOR June 19, 2019 

 

  

5. Elk Grove Water District Fiscal Year 2019-20 Operating Budget  
Finance Manager Patrick Lee presented the FY 2019-20 Operating Budget to the Board.  
 
Mr. Lee alerted the Board to some wording changes. The Board will secure a bound copy of 
the Budget and the adopted Budget will be posted to the website.  
 
Director Elliot Mulberg recommended new language with amendments to the action. New 
language includes, approving the EGWD FY 2019-20 Operating Budget and appropriating 
$272,428 from the excess operating reserves to fund expenditures and excess of revenues 
for FY 2019-20.  

 
MSC (Mulberg/Gray) to adopt Resolution No. 06.19.19.01 approving the Elk Grove Water 
District Fiscal Year 2019-20 Operating Budget with amendments and appropriating $272,428 
from the excess operating reserves to fund expenditures and excess of revenues for FY 
2019-20. 3/0: Ayes: Gray, Mulberg, and Nelson. 

 
6. Fiscal Year 2019-20 Investment Policy Guidelines  

Mr. Lee presented the FY 2019-20 Investment Policy Guidelines to the Board for annual 
adoption.  
 
Mr. Lee reported the FRCD/EGWD Investment Policy Guidelines call for an annual adoption 
of the FRCD Policy. He clarified that there have been no changes to the Investment Policy.  

 
MSC (Mulberg/Nelson) to adopt Resolution 06.19.19.02, approving the Fiscal Year 2019-20 
Investment Policy Guidelines of the Florin Resource Conservation District. 3/0: Ayes: Gray, 
Mulberg, and Nelson. 

 
7. Utility Billing and Accounting Software Review  

Mr. Lee presented the Utility Billing and Accounting Software Review to the Board.  
 
Mr. Mulberg complimented Mr. Lee on his well-written report. Mr. Mulberg questioned the 
industry standard for billing software. Mr. Lee responded there is no industry standard for 
billing software.  

 
Mr. Mulberg stated the District needs to make sure the hardware is up to date. Also, there 
should be an option to be able to read a credit card chip. Mr. Lee responded that the District 
accepts credit cards but only accepts a swipe card option and not a credit card chip reader. 
Mr. Lee mentioned the District has a direct line in communication with the credit card 
processor and all credit card payment information is encrypted and secure.  
 
Associate Director Shahid Chaudhry stated it makes economic sense to keep the existing 
billing software.  

 
8. Elk Grove Water District Employee Policy Manual  

Ms. Phillips presented the EGWD Employee Policy Manual to the Board.  
 
Mr. Madison complimented Ms. Phillips for her work on the manual and thanked the Board.  

 
MSC (Mulberg/Gray) to adopt Resolution 06.19.19.03 approving the Elk Grove Water District 
Employee Policy Manual. 3/0: Ayes: Gray, Mulberg, and Nelson. 

 
  

7



3 

 

MSC = Motion, Second, Carried.                                               MINUTES OF THE REGULAR FRCD BOARD MEETING FOR June 19, 2019 

 

  

9. Outside Agency Meetings Report  
Mr. Madison presented the Outside Agency Meetings Report to the Board.  
 
Program Manager Sarah Jones, Mr. Madison, and Assistant General Manager Bruce 
Kamilos reported on outside agency meetings.  
 
Mr. Madison mentioned the Regional Water Authority (RWA) Board Meeting held on June 
13, 2019 was missed on the list of meetings.  

 
Mr. Kamilos summarized what occurred during the RWA Board Meeting. He mentioned Jim 
Peifer was elected as the new Executive Director of the RWA. Mr. Kamilos also mentioned 
Del Paso Manor Water District is looking for a new General Manager. 

 
10. Legislative Report  

Ms. Jones presented the Legislative report to the Board. She presented a summary of bills 
that directly impact the District.  
 
Several bills were discussed which may impact EGWD including Senate Bill (SB) 669, 
Assembly Bill (AB) 402, AB 756, SB 134 and SB 1486.  

 
11. Directors Comments 

Mr. Mulberg asked about the groundwater recharge status. Mr. Madison will bring back a 
report for discussion at a future Board meeting.  
 
Mr. Mulberg asked about using the Cosumnes Community Services District (CCSD) board 
room. Mr. Madison stated he forgot to inquire about this and will call the CCSD General 
Manager.  

 
Adjourn to Regular Board Meeting on July 17, 2019 at 6:30 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

Stefani Phillips 
 
Stefani Phillips, Board Secretary 
AC/SP 

8



E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n

M
e

d
ic

a
l 
B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 f
o

r 
J
u

ly
 2

0
1

9

R
e

p
a

ir
s
 &

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 -
 H

a
m

p
to

n
 W

T
F

D
a

ily
 T

a
s
k
s
/H

e
lp

 T
ic

k
e

ts

P
re

fu
n

d
 O

P
E

B
 B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 F
Y

 2
0

1
8

- 
2

0
1

9

R
a

d
io

 I
D

s
 -

 B
a

c
k
b

o
n

e
 F

e
e

s
 F

Y
 2

0
1

9
-2

0

P
ri
n

ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

W
o

rk
s
h

o
p

 S
e

ri
e

s

F
u

e
l

J
a

n
it
o

ri
a

l 
- 

M
O

C
/A

D
M

IN

C
lo

th
in

g
 A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

 R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t

P
ri
n

ti
n

g
 &

 P
o

s
ta

g
e

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
C

C
R

G
A

S
B

 7
5

 V
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 D
is

c
lo

s
u

re
 R

e
p

o
rt

M
a

te
ri
a

ls
 &

 S
u

p
p

lie
s
 -

 W
a

te
r 

M
a

in
s

T
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 H
e

lp

E
S

I 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
T

e
le

p
h

o
n

e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 -

 M
O

C
/A

D
M

IN

M
a

te
ri
a

ls
 &

 S
u

p
p

lie
s
 -

 O
P

S

S
a

m
p

lin
g

 -
 T

re
a

tm
e

n
t

M
a

te
ri
a

ls
 &

 S
u

p
p

lie
s
 -

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
0

4
9

2
8

6
6

/1
2

/2
0

1
9

C
A

P
 A

IR
C

A
P

IT
A

L
 A

IR
 T

O
O

L
, 

L
L

C
.

1
,3

0
6

.7
4

0
4

9
2

8
5

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
B

S
K

4
B

S
K

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S
1

2
0

.0
0

0
4

9
2

8
4

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
A

M
A

Z
O

N
A

M
A

Z
O

N
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

6
6

.4
5

0
4

9
2

8
3

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
A

L
L

 S
T

A
A

L
L

 S
T

A
R

 R
E

N
T

S
1

6
9

.7
8

0
4

9
2

8
2

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
A

. 
T

E
IC

A
. 

T
E

IC
H

E
R

T
 &

 S
O

N
, 

IN
C

5
8

3
.5

6

0
4

9
2

8
1

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

W
E

B
C

O
W

E
B

C
O

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
, 

IN
C

1
,7

7
6

.0
0

0
4

9
2

8
0

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

S
W

R
C

B
2

S
W

R
C

B
-D

W
O

C
P

6
0

.0
0

0
4

9
2

7
9

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

S
M

U
D

S
M

U
D

2
,7

4
7

.9
2

0
4

9
2

7
8

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

S
M

U
D

S
M

U
D

6
,3

8
8

.8
7

0
4

9
2

7
7

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

S
M

U
D

S
M

U
D

5
0

5
.0

0

0
4

9
2

7
6

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

S
M

U
D

S
M

U
D

5
0

7
.1

7

0
4

9
2

7
5

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

S
M

U
D

S
M

U
D

1
6

2
.7

3

0
4

9
2

7
4

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

S
M

U
D

S
M

U
D

1
0

,2
0

3
.6

4

0
4

9
2

7
3

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

S
M

U
D

S
M

U
D

5
,2

3
7

.4
1

0
4

9
2

7
2

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

S
M

U
D

S
M

U
D

8
0

5
.2

3

0
4

9
2

7
1

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

S
M

U
D

S
M

U
D

8
0

8
.1

6

0
4

9
2

7
0

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

S
IE

R
R

A
S

IE
R

R
A

 O
F

F
IC

E
 S

U
P

P
L

IE
S

2
3

6
.9

4

0
4

9
2

6
9

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

R
O

T
H

R
O

T
H

 S
T

A
F

F
IN

G
 C

O
M

P
A

N
IE

S
, 

L
.P

.
1

,2
3

8
.8

0

0
4

9
2

6
8

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

R
O

O
C

O
R

O
O

C
O

 R
E

N
T

S
7

5
.6

0

0
4

9
2

6
7

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

P
L

A
T

T
2

P
L

A
T

T
1

1
3

.3
6

0
4

9
2

6
6

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

P
A

C
E

P
A

C
E

 S
U

P
P

L
Y

 C
O

R
P

2
,3

1
2

.5
4

0
4

9
2

6
5

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

N
T

S
N

T
S

 M
IK

E
D

O
N

. 
L

L
C

1
2

5
.0

0

0
4

9
2

6
4

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

N
IC

O
L

A
Y

N
IC

O
L

A
Y

 C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
 G

R
O

U
P

2
,5

0
0

.0
0

0
4

9
2

6
3

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

M
E

T
R

O
2

M
E

T
R

O
 M

A
IL

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

5
,4

7
5

.2
3

0
4

9
2

6
2

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

J
M

E
N

D
O

Z
J
O

S
E

 M
E

N
D

O
Z

A
4

3
0

.8
9

0
4

9
2

6
1

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

J
A

N
 P

R
O

J
A

N
-P

R
O

 C
L

E
A

N
IN

G
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

 O
F

 
6

3
5

.0
0

0
4

9
2

6
0

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

IN
T

 S
T

A
IN

T
E

R
S

T
A

T
E

 O
IL

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
1

,6
1

7
.7

9

0
4

9
2

5
9

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

F
A

S
T

E
N

A
F

A
S

T
E

N
A

L
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

8
2

.1
1

0
4

9
2

5
8

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

D
A

T
A

P
R

O
D

A
T

A
P

R
O

S
E

 L
L

C
8

2
9

.6
8

0
4

9
2

5
7

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

C
O

U
N

T
Y

5
C

O
U

N
T

Y
 O

F
 S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 D

E
P

T
. 

O
F

 T
E

C
H

N
O

L
O

G
Y

3
,7

8
0

.0
0

0
4

9
2

5
6

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

C
A

L
P

E
R

3
C

A
L

P
E

R
S

-F
R

A
S

-C
A

S
H

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
 &

 

P
R

O
C

E
S

S
IN

G
 U

N
IT

1
1

8
,3

5
1

.1
6

0
4

9
2

5
5

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

B
G

 S
O

L
U

S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 B
G

 I
N

C
.

8
,8

3
2

.5
0

0
4

9
2

5
4

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

A
Q

U
A

A
Q

U
A

 S
IE

R
R

A
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

S
, 

IN
C

7
9

5
.0

0

0
4

9
2

5
3

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

A
M

A
Z

O
N

A
M

A
Z

O
N

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
2

9
.9

8

0
4

9
2

5
2

6
/5

/2
0

1
9

A
C

W
A

J
P

I
 C

B
&

T
/ 

A
C

W
A

-J
P

IA
6

5
,2

1
7

.9
7

C
h

e
c

k
 H

is
to

ry
 R

e
p

o
rt

 6
/1

/2
0

1
9

 t
o

 6
/3

0
/2

0
1

9

E
lk

 G
ro

v
e

 W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

C
h

e
c

k

N
u

m
b

e
r

C
h

e
c

k

D
a

te

V
e

n
d

o
r

N
u

m
b

e
r

N
a

m
e

C
h

e
c

k
 

A
m

o
u

n
t

9

AParker
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#      b



M
a

te
ri
a

ls
 &

 S
u

p
p

lie
s
 -

 O
P

S

E
n

c
ro

a
c
h

m
e

n
t 

&
 O

v
e

rh
e

a
d

 A
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 C

h
a

rg
e

s

E
th

e
rn

e
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
/P

h
o

n
e

s
-M

O
C

M
a

te
ri
a

ls
 &

 S
u

p
p

lie
s
 -

 T
re

a
tm

e
n

t

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

H
o

te
l,
 M

e
a

ls

C
o

n
tr

a
c
te

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

M
a

te
ri
a

ls
, 

S
u

p
p

lie
s
, 

M
e

a
ls

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 A

p
p

re
c
ia

ti
o

n
 

B
ill

in
g

 f
o

r 
M

a
y
 &

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
9

(8
) 

In
v
o

ic
e

s
 -

 R
e

p
a

ir
s
 &

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

V
e

h
ic

le
's

M
o

n
th

ly
 V

e
h

ic
le

 W
a

s
h

in
g

D
is

a
s
te

r 
R

e
c
o

v
e

ry
 B

a
c
k
u

p

R
e

le
a

s
e

 R
e

te
n

ti
o

n
 -

 B
a

c
k
y
a

rd
 W

a
te

r 
M

a
in

s
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t

M
a

te
ri
a

ls
 &

 S
u

p
p

lie
s
 -

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n

P
o

w
e

r 
T

o
o

ls

R
e

c
y
c
le

 &
 T

ra
s
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 -

 M
O

C
/A

D
M

IN

T
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 H
e

lp

C
lo

th
in

g
 A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

 R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t

C
o

p
ie

r 
- 

A
D

M
IN

C
lo

th
in

g
 A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

 R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t

E
n

c
ro

a
c
h

m
e

n
t 

P
e

rm
it
 -

 E
m

ily
, 

B
a

rt
h

, 
A

m
e

th
y
s
t 

a
n

d
 G

a
rt

h

D
a

ily
 T

a
s
k
s
/H

e
lp

 T
ic

k
e

ts

S
a

m
p

lin
g

 -
 T

re
a

tm
e

n
t

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

0
4

9
3

3
2

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
C

O
U

N
T

Y
4

S
A

C
R

A
M

E
N

T
O

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

1
1

3
.7

1

0
4

9
3

3
1

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
C

H
IC

1
2

C
H

IC
A

G
O

 T
IT

L
E

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
5

8
.5

6

0
4

9
3

3
0

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
B

S
K

4
B

S
K

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S
5

8
8

.0
0

0
4

9
3

2
9

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
B

R
IN

K
S

B
R

IN
K

'S
 I

N
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

D
3

5
8

.5
0

0
4

9
3

2
8

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
B

G
 S

O
L

U
S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

S
 B

Y
 B

G
 I

N
C

.
8

,8
0

0
.0

0

0
4

9
3

2
7

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
A

M
A

Z
O

N
A

M
A

Z
O

N
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

2
4

4
.6

9

0
4

9
3

2
6

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
A

F
L

A
C

A
F

L
A

C
1

,7
6

1
.8

8

0
4

9
3

2
5

6
/1

7
/2

0
1

9
C

O
E

G
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 E
L

K
 G

R
O

V
E

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

0
4

9
3

2
4

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
W

IL
S

O
N

M
A

R
C

E
L

L
 W

IL
S

O
N

5
2

.4
2

0
4

9
3

2
3

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
V

E
R

IZ
O

N
V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
E

L
E

S
S

4
2

3
.3

6

0
4

9
3

2
2

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
T

O
S

H
IB

A
T

O
S

H
IB

A
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
5

9
3

.0
1

0
4

9
3

2
1

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
T

 F
R

A
N

K
T

R
A

V
IS

 F
R

A
N

K
L

IN
1

8
0

.3
6

0
4

9
3

2
0

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
S

IE
R

R
A

S
IE

R
R

A
 O

F
F

IC
E

 S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
2

1
4

.0
8

0
4

9
3

1
9

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
R

O
T

H
R

O
T

H
 S

T
A

F
F

IN
G

 C
O

M
P

A
N

IE
S

, 
L

.P
.

7
6

7
.5

2

0
4

9
3

1
8

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
R

O
O

C
O

R
O

O
C

O
 R

E
N

T
S

7
7

.1
1

0
4

9
3

1
7

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
R

IV
C

IT
Y

R
IV

E
R

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 R
E

C
Y

C
L

E
R

S
 L

L
C

3
5

7
.2

3

0
4

9
3

1
6

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
R

E
P

U
B

L
I

R
E

P
U

B
L

IC
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 #
9

2
2

1
,4

9
0

.9
0

0
4

9
3

1
5

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
R

A
M

 T
O

O
R

A
M

 T
O

O
L

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 S

U
P

P
L

Y
 

5
,6

9
5

.6
7

0
4

9
3

1
4

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
P

A
C

E
P

A
C

E
 S

U
P

P
L

Y
 C

O
R

P
3

4
1

.2
8

0
4

9
3

1
3

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
O

R
E

IL
L

Y
O

'R
E

IL
L

Y
 A

U
T

O
 P

A
R

T
S

4
5

.2
1

0
4

9
3

1
2

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
N

T
S

N
T

S
 M

IK
E

D
O

N
. 

L
L

C
1

5
0

.4
1

0
4

9
3

1
1

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
L

U
N

D
L

U
N

D
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

, 
IN

C
2

2
,0

6
4

.4
3

0
4

9
3

1
0

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
L

A
N

S
E

T
L

A
N

S
E

T
 A

M
E

R
IC

A
 

1
,3

0
7

.1
3

0
4

9
3

0
9

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
J
A

Y
S

J
A

Y
'S

 T
R

U
C

K
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
1

5
4

.0
8

0
4

9
3

0
8

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
F

L
E

E
T

F
L

E
E

T
W

A
S

H
3

4
0

.2
0

0
4

9
3

0
7

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
E

G
 F

O
R

D
E

L
K

 G
R

O
V

E
 F

O
R

D
6

,0
1

9
.5

9

0
4

9
3

0
6

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
D

A
T

A
P

R
O

D
A

T
A

P
R

O
S

E
 L

L
C

1
1

,6
7

2
.8

4

0
4

9
3

0
5

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
C

S
 S

P
C

A
R

D
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

5
9

.5
5

0
4

9
3

0
4

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
C

S
 D

M
C

A
R

D
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
,0

3
2

.4
8

0
4

9
3

0
3

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
C

S
 B

K
C

A
R

D
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

5
4

2
.9

8

0
4

9
3

0
2

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

T
O

D
T

O
D

D
 D

E
G

R
A

N
D

M
O

N
T

4
8

.7
9

0
4

9
3

0
1

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

J
T

R
I

J
O

H
N

 T
R

IB
U

IA
N

O
6

1
.2

6

0
4

9
3

0
0

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

J
O

S
C

J
O

S
H

U
A

 &
 C

H
R

IS
T

Y
 L

A
Y

A
4

7
.0

3

0
4

9
2

9
9

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

D
A

P
K

D
A

P
IN

D
E

R
 K

A
U

R
4

0
.5

6

0
4

9
2

9
8

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

C
T

2
C

H
IC

A
G

O
 T

IT
L

E
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

2
0

6
.6

1

0
4

9
2

9
7

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

C
L

S
L

C
U

N
G

 L
E

 &
 S

U
Z

A
N

N
E

 L
E

5
.9

2

0
4

9
2

9
6

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

C
L

C
T

C
L

IF
F

O
R

D
 &

 C
A

R
M

E
N

C
H

IT
A

 T
E

J
A

D
A

2
7

.9
9

0
4

9
2

9
5

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

B
R

R
B

R
IA

N
 R

O
G

E
R

S
1

0
.7

0

0
4

9
2

9
4

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

 V
O

I
V

O
IG

H
T

 F
A

M
IL

Y
 T

R
U

S
T

3
2

.3
8

0
4

9
2

9
3

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

 R
IV

R
IV

E
R

 C
IT

Y
 I

N
V

E
S

T
O

R
S

, 
L

L
C

6
3

.0
7

0
4

9
2

9
2

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

 L
E

N
L

E
N

N
A

R
 H

O
M

E
S

 C
A

, 
IN

C
1

8
9

.8
9

0
4

9
2

9
1

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
C

O
R

E
&

M
A

C
O

R
E

 &
 M

A
IN

 L
P

1
,6

1
2

.2
1

0
4

9
2

9
0

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
C

O
N

S
O

L
I

C
O

N
S

O
L

ID
A

T
E

D
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
1

,2
8

3
.4

2

0
4

9
2

8
9

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
C

O
E

G
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 E
L

K
 G

R
O

V
E

7
,6

2
8

.9
2

0
4

9
2

8
8

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
C

C
P

P
M

C
C

P
P

M
4

5
5

.7
9

0
4

9
2

8
7

6
/1

2
/2

0
1

9
C

A
P

 R
U

B
C

A
P

IT
A

L
 R

U
B

B
E

R
 &

 G
A

S
K

E
T

5
4

2
.7

0

10



A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

M
a

te
ri
a

ls
 &

 S
u

p
p

lie
s
 -

 U
ti
lit

y
 C

re
w

H
o

te
l 
&

 M
e

a
ls

M
a

te
ri
a

ls
 &

 S
u

p
p

lie
s
 -

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n

H
o

te
l,
 P

a
rk

in
g

, 
M

a
te

ri
a

ls
, 

S
u

p
p

lie
s
, 

M
e

a
ls

M
a

te
ri
a

ls
 &

 S
u

p
p

lie
s
 -

 T
re

a
tm

e
n

t

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 R

e
n

e
w

a
l 
- 

D
o

n
e

lla
 M

u
ri
llo

F
u

e
l

L
e

g
a

l 
- 

M
a

y
 2

0
1

9

M
e

a
l 
R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t

M
a

te
ri
a

l 
&

 S
u

p
p

lie
s
 -

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

(6
) 

In
v
o

ic
e

s
 -

 M
a

te
ri
a

ls
 &

 S
u

p
p

lie
s
 -

 B
u

llh
e

a
d

s
, 

O
P

S

T
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 H
e

lp

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

A
d

v
e

rt
is

in
g

 -
 W

a
te

r 
D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 O

p
e

ra
to

r

C
lo

th
in

g
 A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

 R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t

T
ra

v
e

l 
R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t 

- 
A

C
W

A
 S

p
ri
n

g
 2

0
1

9
 C

o
n

f

P
a

y
ro

ll 
R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t

C
lo

th
in

g
 A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

 R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 -
 W

e
lls

it
e

's
, 

A
D

M
IN

 a
n

d
 M

O
C

D
a

ily
 T

a
s
k
s
/H

e
lp

 T
ic

k
e

ts

M
a

te
ri
a

ls
 &

 S
u

p
p

lie
s
 -

 T
re

a
tm

e
n

t

S
a

m
p

lin
g

 -
 T

re
a

tm
e

n
t

M
a

te
ri
a

ls
 &

 S
u

p
p

lie
s
 -

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n

N
e

w
 L

a
p

to
p

 -
 M

a
rk

 M
a

d
is

o
n

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

0
4

9
3

7
8

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
C

H
IC

1
2

C
H

IC
A

G
O

 T
IT

L
E

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
9

0
.0

7

0
4

9
3

7
7

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
C

D
W

C
D

W
 G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
1

,8
9

5
.3

8

0
4

9
3

7
6

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
C

A
P

 A
IR

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 A
IR

 T
O

O
L

, 
L

L
C

.
7

8
9

.1
0

0
4

9
3

7
5

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
B

S
K

4
B

S
K

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S
4

4
5

.0
0

0
4

9
3

7
4

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
B

R
E

N
N

T
A

B
R

E
N

N
T

A
G

 P
A

C
IF

IC
, 

IN
C

1
,0

6
7

.4
9

0
4

9
3

7
3

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
B

G
 S

O
L

U
S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

S
 B

Y
 B

G
 I

N
C

.
8

,8
0

0
.0

0

0
4

9
3

7
2

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
B

A
Y

 A
L

A
B

A
Y

 A
L

A
R

M
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

1
,2

2
5

.4
7

0
4

9
3

7
1

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
B

 W
A

G
N

E
B

R
A

N
D

O
N

 W
A

G
N

E
R

2
2

6
.2

2

0
4

9
3

7
0

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
A

M
A

Z
O

N
A

M
A

Z
O

N
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

5
3

.8
8

0
4

9
3

6
9

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
A

F
L

A
C

A
F

L
A

C
1

,7
6

1
.8

8

0
4

9
3

6
8

6
/2

1
/2

0
1

9
W

IL
S

O
N

M
A

R
C

E
L

L
 W

IL
S

O
N

4
9

2
.5

8

0
4

9
3

6
7

6
/2

0
/2

0
1

9
T

 N
E

L
S

O
T

O
M

 N
E

L
S

O
N

1
,0

4
3

.3
6

0
4

9
3

6
6

6
/2

0
/2

0
1

9
C

.P
H

IL
L

C
H

R
IS

 P
H

IL
L

IP
S

2
4

7
.7

7

0
4

9
3

6
5

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
Z

O
O

M
Z

O
O

M
 I

M
A

G
IN

G
 S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

S
, 

IN
C

2
7

5
.0

3

0
4

9
3

6
4

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
U

N
IT

E
D

U
N

IT
E

D
 S

IT
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
3

3
7

.3
1

0
4

9
3

6
3

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
T

R
A

F
F

 S
T

R
A

F
F

IC
 S

IG
N

 S
P

E
C

IA
L

T
IE

S
2

7
5

.0
0

0
4

9
3

6
2

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
S

IE
R

R
A

S
IE

R
R

A
 O

F
F

IC
E

 S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
1

,4
6

1
.4

1

0
4

9
3

6
1

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 B
E

E
T

H
E

 S
A

C
R

A
M

E
N

T
O

 B
E

E
5

0
0

.0
0

0
4

9
3

6
0

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0

0
4

9
3

5
9

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0

0
4

9
3

5
8

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0

0
4

9
3

5
7

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0

0
4

9
3

5
6

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
R

O
T

H
R

O
T

H
 S

T
A

F
F

IN
G

 C
O

M
P

A
N

IE
S

, 
L

.P
.

1
,1

7
1

.4
7

0
4

9
3

5
5

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
R

O
O

C
O

R
O

O
C

O
 R

E
N

T
S

2
,2

5
2

.7
4

0
4

9
3

5
4

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
P

L
A

1
0

P
L

A
C

E
R

 T
IT

L
E

1
5

.9
0

0
4

9
3

5
3

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
P

IT
 2

P
IT

N
E

Y
 B

O
W

E
S

 G
L

O
B

A
L

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
1

8
4

.1
5

0
4

9
3

5
2

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
P

G
&

E
P

A
C

IF
IC

 G
A

S
 &

 E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

1
0

.5
5

0
4

9
3

5
1

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
P

E
S

T
P

E
S

T
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

 C
E

N
T

E
R

 I
N

C
1

6
0

.0
0

0
4

9
3

5
0

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
P

A
C

E
P

A
C

E
 S

U
P

P
L

Y
 C

O
R

P
3

8
0

.1
4

0
4

9
3

4
9

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
M

A
D

IS
O

N
M

A
R

K
 M

A
D

IS
O

N
6

0
.0

0

0
4

9
3

4
8

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
J
R

G
J
R

G
 A

T
T

O
R

N
E

Y
S

, 
L

L
P

2
,6

2
9

.1
2

0
4

9
3

4
7

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
IN

T
 S

T
A

IN
T

E
R

S
T

A
T

E
 O

IL
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

1
,1

6
4

.8
5

0
4

9
3

4
6

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
G

F
O

A
G

F
O

A
1

6
0

.0
0

0
4

9
3

4
5

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
F

A
S

T
E

N
A

F
A

S
T

E
N

A
L

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
1

1
2

.5
1

0
4

9
3

4
4

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
C

S
 S

S
C

A
R

D
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

5
0

5
.3

0

0
4

9
3

4
3

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
C

S
 S

J
C

A
R

D
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
,5

4
7

.2
0

0
4

9
3

4
2

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
C

S
 S

H
C

A
R

D
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
,7

3
1

.6
5

0
4

9
3

4
1

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
C

S
 M

J
M

C
A

R
D

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
1

,4
7

2
.3

8

0
4

9
3

4
0

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
C

S
 A

A
C

A
R

D
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

6
4

5
.8

6

0
4

9
3

3
9

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

R
E

B
R

R
E

B
E

C
C

A
 R

O
N

K
2

1
.8

5

0
4

9
3

3
8

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

A
F

E
A

F
O

Z
 E

L
IA

S
8

1
.1

7

0
4

9
3

3
7

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

 T
C

L
T

H
E

 C
R

O
S

S
IN

G
, 

L
L

C
1

,0
7

4
.4

0

0
4

9
3

3
6

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

 C
H

T
C

H
IC

A
G

O
 T

IT
L

E
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

6
8

1
.4

4

0
4

9
3

3
5

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

 C
H

T
C

H
IC

A
G

O
 T

IT
L

E
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

6
5

2
.5

0

0
4

9
3

3
4

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

 C
H

T
C

H
IC

A
G

O
 T

IT
L

E
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

2
1

7
.6

6

0
4

9
3

3
3

6
/1

9
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

 C
H

T
C

H
IC

A
G

O
 T

IT
L

E
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

3
8

6
.3

0

11



E
n

c
ro

a
c
h

m
e

n
t 

&
 O

v
e

rh
e

a
d

 A
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 C

h
a

rg
e

s
 f

o
r 

A
p

ri
l

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

P
lo

tt
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
it
e

 A
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

E
lk

 G
ro

v
e

 B
lv

d
 S

it
e

W
e

ll 
#

3
 P

u
m

p
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t

C
lo

th
in

g
 A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

 R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t

R
R

W
T

F
 R

e
p

a
v
in

g
 P

ro
je

c
t

M
a

te
ri
a

ls
 &

 S
u

p
p

lie
s
 -

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n

M
a

te
ri
a

ls
 &

 S
u

p
p

lie
s
 -

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n

T
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 H
e

lp

S
a

c
ra

m
e

n
to

 R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
W

a
te

r 
B

a
n

k
, 

P
h

a
s
e

 1

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

C
lo

th
in

g
 A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

 R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 L

a
n

d
s
c
a

p
in

g
 -

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
9

 T
o

ta
l:

4
4

4
,3

4
7

.6
3

0
4

9
4

0
8

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
Z

U
K

E
S

Z
U

K
E

'S
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 I
N

C
.

1
,5

0
0

.0
0

0
4

9
4

0
7

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
X

IO
N

G
V

U
E

 X
IO

N
G

5
0

0
.0

0

0
4

9
4

0
6

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
W

D
J

W
A

T
E

R
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 J

O
B

S
1

4
5

.0
0

0
4

9
4

0
5

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
U

L
T

R
A

U
L

T
R

A
 T

R
U

C
K

 W
O

R
K

S
, 

IN
C

4
5

.0
0

0
4

9
4

0
4

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
S

U
M

M
IT

A
IR

 W
O

R
K

S
 I

N
C

1
3

9
.0

0

0
4

9
4

0
3

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
S

IE
R

R
A

S
IE

R
R

A
 O

F
F

IC
E

 S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
6

3
6

.3
6

0
4

9
4

0
2

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0

0
4

9
4

0
1

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0

0
4

9
4

0
0

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0

0
4

9
3

9
9

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0

0
4

9
3

9
8

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0

0
4

9
3

9
7

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
R

W
A

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 W

A
T

E
R

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IT
Y

1
5

,0
0

0
.0

0

0
4

9
3

9
6

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
R

O
T

H
R

O
T

H
 S

T
A

F
F

IN
G

 C
O

M
P

A
N

IE
S

, 
L

.P
.

3
7

7
.0

3

0
4

9
3

9
5

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
R

O
O

C
O

R
O

O
C

O
 R

E
N

T
S

5
5

4
.9

0

0
4

9
3

9
4

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
P

L
A

T
T

2
P

L
A

T
T

9
1

.8
6

0
4

9
3

9
3

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
P

A
C

E
P

A
C

E
 S

U
P

P
L

Y
 C

O
R

P
1

,0
3

5
.7

8

0
4

9
3

9
2

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
N

O
R

C
A

L
N

O
R

*C
A

L
 A

S
P

H
A

L
T

2
5

,2
0

6
.0

0

0
4

9
3

9
1

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
M

E
N

D
O

Z
A

S
A

L
V

A
D

O
R

 M
E

N
D

O
Z

A
3

8
2

.5
0

0
4

9
3

9
0

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
K

IR
B

Y
K

IR
B

Y
'S

 P
U

M
P

 &
 M

E
C

H
A

N
IC

A
L

, 
IN

C
2

6
,3

1
8

.7
7

0
4

9
3

8
9

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
F

A
S

T
E

N
A

F
A

S
T

E
N

A
L

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
2

7
0

.2
3

0
4

9
3

8
8

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
E

L
K

 L
O

C
E

L
K

 G
R

O
V

E
 L

O
C

K
 A

N
D

 S
A

F
E

 C
O

9
3

.5
8

0
4

9
3

8
7

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
D

R
E

Y
D

R
E

Y
F

U
S

S
 +

 B
L

A
C

K
F

O
R

D
 

4
,1

1
2

.5
0

0
4

9
3

8
6

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
C

S
D

S
C

S
D

S
 S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
4

8
7

.9
7

0
4

9
3

8
5

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

P
L

1
5

P
L

A
C

E
R

 T
IT

L
E

7
0

.2
1

0
4

9
3

8
4

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

J
A

N
D

J
A

N
E

T
 E

 D
A

Y
6

3
.0

7

0
4

9
3

8
3

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

 O
R

A
O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
A

S
T

 T
IT

L
E

7
.1

0

0
4

9
3

8
2

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

 N
T

1
N

O
R

T
H

 A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
 T

IT
L

E
8

3
.2

5

0
4

9
3

8
1

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

 L
E

N
L

E
N

N
A

R
 H

O
M

E
S

 C
A

, 
IN

C
7

2
.4

7

0
4

9
3

8
0

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

 F
IA

F
IR

S
T

 A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
 T

IT
L

E
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

1
7

.2
1

0
4

9
3

7
9

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

9
C

O
E

G
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 E
L

K
 G

R
O

V
E

4
,8

6
7

.1
2

12



E
lk

 G
ro

v
e
 W

a
te

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t

A
c
ti

v
e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

9

J
U

L
Y

A
U

G
S

E
P

T
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
J

U
N

E
W

a
te

r 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
:

  
 M

e
te

re
d

  
  
 R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l

1
1

,7
9

9
  

  
1

1
,8

1
9

1
1

,8
0

0
1

1
,8

1
0

1
1

,8
0

0
1

1
,8

0
8

1
1

,8
0

3
1

1
,8

0
0

1
1

,8
2

4
  

 
1

1
,8

4
4

  
1

1
,8

3
0

  
1

1
,8

4
2

  
  
 C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l

5
3

2
  

  
  

  
 

3
6

3
3

6
6

3
6

3
3

6
4

3
6

3
3

6
3

3
6

2
3

6
2

  
  

  
  

3
6

3
  

  
  

 
3

6
2

  
  

  
 

3
6

2

  
  
 I

rr
ig

a
ti

o
n

1
6

6
1

6
6

1
6

9
1

6
9

1
6

9
1

6
9

1
6

7
1

6
8

  
  

  
  

1
6

9
  

  
  

 
1

7
0

  
  

  
 

1
7

0

  
  
 F

ir
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

1
7

8
  

  
  

  
 

1
7

7
1

7
8

1
7

9
1

7
9

1
7

9
1

7
9

1
7

8
1

7
9

  
  

  
  

1
7

9
  

  
  

 
1

8
1

  
  

  
 

1
8

1

T
o

ta
l 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
1

2
,5

0
9

  
  

1
2

,5
2

5
  

1
2

,5
1

0
  

  
 

1
2

,5
2

1
  

1
2

,5
1

2
  

1
2

,5
1

9
  

1
2

,5
1

4
  

1
2

,5
0

7
  

1
2

,5
3

3
  

 
1

2
,5

5
5

  
1

2
,5

4
3

  
1

2
,5

5
5

  
  

 

E
lk

 G
ro

v
e
 W

a
te

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t

A
c
ti

v
e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

F
Y

 2
0
1
7
/2

0
1

8

J
U

L
Y

A
U

G
S

E
P

T
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
J

U
N

E
W

a
te

r 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
:

  
 M

e
te

re
d

  
  
 R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l

1
1

,7
8

7
  

  
1

1
,8

1
1

1
1

,7
8

6
1

1
,8

1
2

1
1

,7
8

9
1

1
,7

8
4

1
1

,8
0

6
1

1
,7

8
0

1
1

,7
9

3
  

 
1

1
,7

9
4

  
1

1
,8

0
5

  
1

1
,7

9
9

  
  
 C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l

5
2

7
  

  
  

  
 

5
2

6
5

2
7

5
2

7
5

2
7

5
2

7
5

3
0

5
3

0
5

2
8

  
  

  
  

5
2

9
  

  
  

 
5

3
1

  
  

  
 

5
3

1

  
 F

ir
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

1
7

5
  

  
  

  
 

1
7

5
1

7
7

1
7

8
1

7
7

1
7

7
1

7
7

1
7

7
1

7
7

  
  

  
  

1
7

8
  

  
  

 
1

7
8

  
  

  
 

1
7

7

T
o

ta
l 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
1

2
,4

8
9

  
  

1
2

,5
1

2
  

1
2

,4
9

0
  

  
 

1
2

,5
1

7
  

1
2

,4
9

3
  

1
2

,4
8

8
  

1
2

,5
1

3
  

1
2

,4
8

7
  

1
2

,4
9

8
  

 
1

2
,5

0
1

  
1

2
,5

1
4

  
1

2
,5

0
7

  
  

 

13

STEFANI
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#     c



Operating Revenues:

Charges for Services 14,669,310$          

Operating Expenses:

Salaries & Benefits (2) 3,725,949              

Seminars, Conventions and Travel 38,908                    

Office & Operational 889,100                 

Purchased Water 2,839,854              

Outside Services 805,752                 

Equipment Rent, Taxes, and Utilities 328,694                 

Total Operating Expenses 8,628,256             

Net Operating Income 6,041,054$            

Annual Interest & Principal Payments
$3,823,909 3,823,909$            (1)

Debt Service Coverage Ratio, YTD Only: 1.58

   Required 1.15

Notes:  

1.  Reflects budget divided by number of months year to date. 

     However, first Principal/Interest Payments made in September.
     Projected Annual Budget Coverage Ratio is 1.39

2.  Reflects only YTD due to CalPERS, not entire 
     prepayment for year.

As of 6/30/2019

Elk Grove Water District
Bond Covenant Status
For Fiscal Year 2018-19

Adjusted for Prepayments

14

STEFANI
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#     d



12/12=100.00%

General Ledger YTD Annual %

Reference Activity Budget Variance Realized

Revenues 4100 - 4900 14,669,310$  14,821,253$   (151,943)$        98.97%

Salaries & Benefits 5100 - 5280 3,927,077       4,167,812        (240,735)          94.22%

less Capitalized Labor (201,128)         (453,517)          252,389            44.35%

Less CalPERS Prepayment for Remainder of Year: (3) -                   

 Adjusted Salaries and Benefits: 3,725,949$     3,714,295$      11,654$            100.31%

Seminars, Conventions and Travel 5300 - 5350 38,908            49,280             (10,372)             78.95%

Office & Operational 5410 - 5494 889,100          1,137,527        (248,427)          78.16%

Purchased Water est. (4) 5495 - 5495 2,839,854       3,178,328        (338,474)          89.35%

Outside Services 5505 - 5580 805,752          975,178           (169,426)          82.63%

Equipment Rent, Taxes, Utilities 5620 - 5760 328,694          438,900           (110,206)          74.89%

Total Operational Expenses 8,628,256$     9,493,508$      (865,252)$        90.89%

Net Operating Income 6,041,054$     5,327,745$      713,309$          113.39%

Non-Operating Revenues

Interest Received 9910 - 9910 1,195,080       100,000 1,095,080 1195.08%

Unrealized Gains/Losses 9911 - 9911 (801,527)         -                    (801,527)          100.00%

Other Income/Expense 9920 - 9973 37,921            -                    37,921              100.00%

Total Non-Operating Revenues 431,474$        100,000$         331,474$          431.47%

Non-Operating Expenses

Election Costs 9950 - 9950 2,008               150,000           (147,992)          1.34%

All other Non-Operating Expenses

Capital Expenses (2):

Capital Improvements 1705 - 1760 381,709          390,000           (8,291)               97.87%

Capital Replacements 1705 - 1760 492,048          824,000           (331,952)          59.71%

Unforeseen Capital Projects 1705 - 1760 42,533            100,000           (57,467)             42.53%

Capital Expenses: 916,289$        1,314,000$      (397,711)$        69.73%

Bond Interest Accrued (1) 7300 - 7300 1,753,909 1,753,909 -                    100.00%

Total Non Operating Expenses 2,672,206$     3,217,909$      (545,703)$        83.04%

Revenues in Excess of All Expenditures, including Capital 3,800,322$     2,209,836$      1,590,486$      171.97%

Bond Retirement (1): 2,070,000$     2,070,000$      -$                  100.00%

Net Position after Capital and Debt Retirement Expenditures 1,730,322$     139,836$         1,590,486$      

Notes:

1.  Bond retirement payments are made two times a year in September and March

2. YTD Activity includes $201,128 in capitalized labor charged to capital projects.

3. The District prepays CalPERS for the employers' share of retirement costs for the entire year.
    By doing this, the District saves approximately 3.6% in its total CalPERS payments for the year.
    The adjusted salaries and benefits above shows what salaries and benefits would be if
    only the amount due to CalPERS YTD was paid YTD, with no prepayment.

4. There is a lag in water billings from the Sacramento County Water Agency. Included above 
    is an estimate of costs to date based on water used.

Elk Grove Water District

Year to Date Revenues and Expenses Compared to Budget

As of 6/30/2019

15

AParker
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem #     e



A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

/ 
n
a
m

e
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
N

a
m

e
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
T

y
p
e

R
e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s

M
a
rk

e
t 
V

a
lu

e

G
/L

 A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
#F

u
n

d

H
E

L
D

 B
Y

 B
O

N
D

 T
R

U
S

T
E

E
:

1
1
1
0
-0

0
0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
B

N
Y

 8
9
2
7
4
4
 F

R
C

D
 2

0
1
4
A

 D
E

B
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

D
re

y
fu

s
 I
n
s
t 
T

re
a
s
u
ry

M
M

 M
u
tu

a
l 
F

u
n
d

R
e
s
tr

ic
te

d
0
.0

0

1
1
1
2
-0

0
0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
B

N
Y

 7
4
3
8
5
0
 F

R
C

D
 2

0
1
6
A

 D
E

B
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

D
re

y
fu

s
 I
n
s
t 
T

re
a
s
u
ry

M
M

 M
u
tu

a
l 
F

u
n
d

 R
e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 

0
.0

0

S
u

b
to

ta
l

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

1
0
0
1
-0

0
0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
C

a
s
h
 o

n
 H

a
n
d

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
3
0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

H
E

L
D

 B
Y

 F
&

M
 B

A
N

K
:

1
0
1
1
-0

0
0
-1

0
F

R
C

D
F

&
M

 0
8
-0

3
2
0
0
9
-0

1
 C

H
E

C
K

IN
G

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
1
0
9
.2

6

1
0
1
1
-0

0
0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
F

&
M

 0
8
-0

3
2
0
1
7
-0

1
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
8
1
3
,2

6
6
.0

9

1
0
8
4
-0

0
0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
F

&
M

 0
8
-0

3
2
0
1
7
0
2
-3

1
 M

O
N

E
Y

 M
A

R
K

E
T

1
.4

1
%

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
2
,6

5
8
,5

0
9
.1

6

1
0
3
1
-0

0
0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
F

&
M

 0
8
-0

3
2
9
1
2
-0

1
 C

R
E

D
IT

 C
A

R
D

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
U

n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
3
0
1
,9

6
5
.9

6

1
0
6
1
-0

0
0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
F

&
M

 0
8
-0

3
2
8
9
0
-0

1
 P

A
Y

R
O

L
L
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
1
2
7
,6

0
6
.5

4

1
0
7
1
-0

0
0
-2

0
 

W
a
te

r
F

&
M

 0
8
-0

3
2
9
2
0
-0

1
 D

R
A

F
T

S
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
1
0
4
,3

7
8
.5

7

S
u

b
to

ta
l

4
,0

0
5
,8

3
5
.5

8
$
  
  
  

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
S

1
0
8
0
-0

0
0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
O

ff
ic

e
 o

f 
th

e
 T

re
a
s
u
re

r 
- 

S
a
c
ra

m
e
n
to

 C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
L
A

IF
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
P

o
o
l

2
.4

4
%

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
3
,5

3
8
,1

8
4
.7

3
$
  
  
  

1
0
8
1
-0

0
0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
C

A
L
T

ru
s
t 
M

e
d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

1
.4

5
%

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
1
,3

2
8
,7

0
2
.5

4
$
  
  
  

1
0
8
2
-0

0
0
-2

0
W

a
te

r

P
U

R
C

H
A

S
E

 D
A

T
E

C
U

S
IP

IS
S

U
E

D
 B

Y
C

A
L
L
 D

A
T

E
M

A
T

U
R

IT
Y

 D
A

T
E

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
Y

ie
ld

C
O

S
T

 B
A

S
IS

M
A

R
K

E
T

 V
A

L
U

E

9
/3

0
/2

0
1
6

N
/A

U
n
io

n
 B

a
n
k
 o

f 
C

a
lif

o
rn

ia
N

/A
N

/A
1
.8

9
%

0
.3

5
%

1
,1

0
9
,6

0
2
.9

4
$
  
  
  
  

 
1
,1

0
9
,6

0
2
.9

4
$
  
  
  

6
/3

0
/2

0
1
6

3
1
3
6
G

3
S

R
7

F
e
d
e
ra

l 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
M

o
rt

g
a
g
e
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 (

F
N

M
A

)
1
2
/3

0
/1

6
 -

 q
rt

ly
1
2
/3

0
/2

0
1
9

1
2
.3

2
0
%

1
.3

8
0
%

1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
9
9
6
,5

4
0
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  

 

9
/3

0
/2

0
1
6

3
1
3
6
G

4
D

B
6

F
e
d
e
ra

l 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
M

o
rt

g
a
g
e
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 (

F
N

M
A

)
3
/3

0
/1

7
 -

 q
rt

ly
3
/3

0
/2

0
2
0

1
2
.2

5
0
%

1
.2

6
0
%

1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
9
9
4
,4

3
0
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  

 

6
/9

/2
0
1
6

3
1
3
3
E

G
C

P
8

F
e
d
e
ra

l 
F

a
rm

 C
re

d
it
 B

a
n
k
s
 (

F
F

C
B

)
9
/1

/1
6
 -

 c
o
n
t.

1
2
/1

/2
0
2
0

1
2
.2

1
0
%

1
.6

4
0
%

1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
9
9
4
,2

4
0
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  

 

6
/1

6
/2

0
1
6

3
1
3
6
G

3
P

Y
5

F
e
d
e
ra

l 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
M

o
rt

g
a
g
e
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 (

F
N

M
A

)
1
2
/1

6
/1

6
 -

 q
rt

ly
1
2
/1

6
/2

0
2
0

1
2
.2

1
0
%

1
.5

7
0
%

1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
9
9
6
,1

3
0
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  

 

1
1
/1

/2
0
1
7

3
1
3
3
E

H
M

3
4

F
e
d
e
ra

l 
F

a
rm

 C
re

d
it
 B

a
n
k
 B

o
n
d
s
(F

F
C

B
)

1
1
/0

1
/2

2
 -

 c
o
n
t.

1
1
/1

/2
0
2
2

1
2
.1

7
%

2
.2

5
0
%

1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
1
,0

0
0
,0

2
0
.0

0
  
  
  
  

9
/3

0
/2

0
1
6

3
1
3
6
G

4
C

Y
7

F
e
d
e
ra

l 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
M

o
rt

g
a
g
e
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 (

F
N

M
A

)
3
/3

0
/1

7
 -

 q
rt

ly
9
/3

0
/2

0
2
1

6
.0

0
%

1
.5

3
0
%

5
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
9
6
,7

5
5
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  

 

1
1
/2

/2
0
1
6

3
1
3
0
A

9
R

Z
6

F
e
d
e
ra

l 
H

o
m

e
 L

o
a
n
 B

a
n
k
 (

F
H

L
B

)
4
/2

8
/1

7
 -

 q
rt

ly
1
0
/2

8
/2

0
2
1

1
2
.2

5
%

1
.0

1
0
%

1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
9
9
8
,5

8
0
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  

 

7
,6

0
9
,6

0
2
.9

4
$
  
  
  
  

 
7
,5

8
6
,2

9
7
.9

4
$
  
  
  

Y
T

M
 =

 Y
ie

ld
 t
o
 M

a
tu

ri
ty

T
o

ta
l

1
6
,4

5
9
,3

2
0
.7

9
$
  
  

q
tr

ly
 =

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

c
o
n
t.
 =

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s

T
o

ta
l 
R

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

 
T

o
ta

l 
U

n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
1
6
,4

5
9
,3

2
0
.7

9
$
  
  

F
lo

ri
n

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
 C

o
n

s
e
rv

a
ti

o
n

 D
is

tr
ic

t

C
A

S
H

 -
 D

e
ta

il
 S

c
h

e
d

u
le

 o
f 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

ts

6
/3

0
/2

0
1
9

16

AParker
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem #     f



F
is

c
a

l 
R

e
ta

in
e

r 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
n

t
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

n
tr

a
c

t

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

M
o

n
th

 P
a

id
 t

o
 

d
a

te

2
0

1
8

-2
0

1
9

 

F
Y

 B
u

d
g

e
t

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

y
e

a
r 

(1
0

0
%

)

N
o

s
k
y
 L

e
g

a
l 
G

ro
u

p
 

T
a

s
k
 o

rd
e

rs
T

B
D

4
5

,0
4

9
$

  
  

M
u

rp
h

y
 A

u
s
ti
n

 A
d

a
m

s
 S

c
h

o
e

n
fe

ld
 L

L
P

T
a

s
k
 o

rd
e

rs
T

B
D

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
9

,3
1

0
$

  
  

  
J
R

G
 A

tt
o

rn
e

y
s
, 

L
L

P
T

a
s
k
 o

rd
e

rs
T

B
D

2
,6

2
9

$
  

  
  

2
,6

2
9

$
  

  
  

L
ie

b
e

rt
 C

a
s
s
id

y
 W

h
it
m

o
re

T
a

s
k
 o

rd
e

rs
T

B
D

4
6

,8
5

5
$

  
  

T
o

ta
l

2
,6

2
9

$
  

  
  

1
0

3
,8

4
3

$
  

1
7

5
,0

0
0

$
  

 
5

9
.3

4
%

S
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 b

y
 B

G
, 

In
c
.

T
a

s
k
 o

rd
e

rs
7

2
5

,0
5

0
.0

0
2

6
,4

3
3

$
  

  
2

0
1

,9
1

9
$

  
2

0
6

,5
0

0
$

  
 

9
7

.7
8

%

M
a

jo
r 

C
o

n
tr

a
c

ts

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
n

t
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

n
tr

a
c

t

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

M
o

n
th

 P
a

id
 t

o
 

d
a

te

2
0

1
8

-2
0

1
9

 

F
Y

 B
u

d
g

e
t

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

C
o

n
tr

a
c

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

H
D

R
 E

n
g

in
e

e
ri
n

g
, 

In
c
.

W
a

te
r 

R
a

te
 S

tu
d

y
8

8
,6

5
0

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
1

0
,0

6
7

$
  

  
1

1
,2

8
0

$
  

  
 

8
9

.2
5

%

L
u

n
d

 C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 C

o
.

B
a

c
k
y
a

rd
 W

a
te

r 
M

a
in

s
4

3
6

,9
9

9
.8

0
2

2
,6

0
4

$
  

  
4

4
1

,8
2

9
$

  
4

3
6

,9
9

9
$

  
 

1
0

1
.1

1
%

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
n

t 
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

s

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

9

17

STEFANI
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#     g



T
o

ta
l

J
u

n
T

o
ta

l 
Y

T
D

C
a
p

it
a
l 
P

ro
je

c
t

T
o

ta
l 
P

ro
je

c
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

 P
ro

je
c
t 

E
x
p

 

to
 D

a
te

 

P
e
rc

e
n

t 

S
p

e
n

t

C
a
p

it
a
li
z
e
d

 

L
a
b

o
r 

F
u

n
d

 

T
y

p
e

P
ro

je
c

t 
T

y
p

e
2
0
1
8
-1

9
 B

u
d

g
e
t

 P
ro

je
c
t 

E
x
p

(1
)

Y
T

D
 %

 

S
p

e
n

t

B
a
c
k
y
a
rd

 W
a
te

r 
M

a
in

s
/S

e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

7
3
4
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
  

4
6
3
,4

2
7

$
  
  

 
6
3
.1

4
%

1
,7

6
7

$
  
  
  
  

 
R

&
R

S
u

p
p

ly
/D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
7
3
4
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
6
,8

6
3

$
  
  
  
  

4
6
3
,4

2
7

$
  

6
3
.1

4
%

K
e
n
t 
S

tr
e
e
t 
W

a
te

r 
M

a
in

2
8
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
3
9
,7

9
2

  
  
  

 
8
5
.6

4
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
R

&
R

S
u

p
p

ly
/D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
2
4

  
  
  
  
  

 
1
0
0
.0

0
%

(2
)

C
a
m

d
e
n
 W

a
te

r 
M

a
in

 R
e
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
s

2
8
,4

6
2

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
8
,4

6
2

  
  
  
  

 
1
0
0
.0

0
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
R

&
R

S
u

p
p

ly
/D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,5

4
8

  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

0
%

(2
)

R
R

W
T

F
 P

a
rk

in
g
 L

o
t 
R

e
p
a
v
in

g
9
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
5
,8

4
9

  
  
  
  

 
2
8
.7

2
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
R

&
R

B
u

ild
in

g
 a

n
d

 S
it
e

9
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
5
,8

4
9

  
  
  
  
  

2
5
,8

4
9

  
  
  

2
8
.7

2
%

S
e
rv

ic
e
 L

in
e
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

7
5
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

7
0
1
,9

4
8

  
  
  

 
9
3
.5

9
%

1
9
6
,0

2
0

  
  
  

 
C

IP
S

u
p

p
ly

/D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
4
,5

0
2

  
  
  
  
  

2
6
5
,6

8
3

  
  

1
0
0
.0

0
%

(2
)

R
a
d
io

 A
n
te

n
n
a
s

8
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
0
,4

9
2

  
  
  
  

 
2
5
.6

2
%

2
,3

4
4

  
  
  
  
  

 
C

IP
T

re
a

tm
e

n
t

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
,9

6
3

  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

0
%

(2
)

R
R

W
T

F
 G

e
n
e
ra

to
r 

P
L
C

/S
C

A
D

A
 U

p
g
ra

d
e

3
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
1
,4

6
2

  
  
  
  

 
6
1
.3

2
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
C

IP
T

re
a

tm
e

n
t

3
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
1
,4

6
2

  
  
  

6
1
.3

2
%

W
e
ll 

3
 P

u
m

p
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

1
8
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

3
0
,2

3
5

  
  
  
  

 
1
6
.8

0
%

9
9
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

C
IP

T
re

a
tm

e
n

t
1
8
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
6
,3

1
9

  
  
  
  
  

3
0
,2

3
5

  
  
  

1
6
.8

0
%

(4
)

H
a
m

p
to

n
 W

T
P

 G
e
n
e
ra

to
r 

R
e
m

o
v
a
l

2
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
4
,3

1
6

  
  
  
  

 
9
7
.2

6
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
C

IP
T

re
a

tm
e

n
t

2
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
4
,3

1
6

  
  
  

9
7
.2

6
%

T
ru

c
k
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

1
1
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
0
.0

0
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
C

IP
B

u
ild

in
g

 a
n

d
 S

it
e

1
1
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

0
%

I.
T

. 
S

e
rv

e
rs

3
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
8
,9

5
5

  
  
  
  

 
8
2
.7

3
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
C

IP
B

u
ild

in
g

 a
n

d
 S

it
e

3
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
8
,9

5
5

  
  
  

8
2
.7

3
%

F
ib

e
r 

O
p
ti
c
 C

a
b
le

1
3
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
3
6
,2

6
0

  
  
  

 
1
0
0
.9

3
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
C

IP
B

u
ild

in
g

 a
n

d
 S

it
e

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
5

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
0
0
.0

0
%

(2
)

U
n
fo

re
s
e
e
n
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

1
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

4
2
,5

3
3

  
  
  
  

 
4
2
.5

3
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

1
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
2
,5

3
3

  
  
  

4
2
.5

3
%

(3
)

S
u
b
-T

o
ta

l
2
,5

8
7
,4

6
2

$
  
  

 
1
,7

6
3
,7

3
0

$
  

6
8
.1

6
%

2
0
1
,1

2
8

$
  
  

 
1
,3

1
4
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
  

 
1
0
3
,5

3
3

$
  
  
  

9
1
6
,2

8
9

$
  

6
9
.7

3
%

(1
) 

 I
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 $

2
0
1
,1

2
8
 i
n
 c

a
p
it
a
liz

e
d
 l
a
b
o
r 

th
ro

u
g
h
 0

6
/3

0
/1

9

(2
) 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 b
u
d
g
e
te

d
 f
o
r 

in
 p

ri
o
r 

y
e
a
rs

, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 w
o
rk

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

v
e
r 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
y
e
a
r.

(3
) 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

O
a
ts

 -
 H

V
A

C
 f
o
r 

IT
 B

u
ild

in
g

8
,5

8
2

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
H

y
d
ro

S
c
ie

n
c
e
 -

 V
a
ri
a
b
le

 F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 D

ri
v
e
s

1
2
,6

2
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
H

y
d
ro

S
c
ie

n
c
e
 -

 V
a
ri
a
b
le

 F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 D

ri
v
e
s

1
0
,9

5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
H

y
d
ro

S
c
ie

n
c
e
 -

 V
a
ri
a
b
le

 F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 D

ri
v
e
s

4
,2

4
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
D

it
c
h
W

it
c
h

6
,1

3
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
  4
2
,5

3
3

$
  
  
  
  
  

(4
) 

In
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 $
1
4
,5

0
0
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 K

ir
b
y
's

 P
u
m

p
 &

 M
e
c
h
a
n
ic

a
l,
 I
n
c
. 
 O

ri
g
in

a
l 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
w

a
s
 $

9
,1

0
0
. 
 T

o
ta

l 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
is

 n
o
w

 $
2
3
,6

0
0
. 
 T

h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
m

u
s
t 
re

tu
rn

 W
e
ll 

3
 t
o
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 

s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
c
a
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
w

a
te

r 
q
u
a
lit

y
 t
e
s
ti
n
g
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 f
is

c
a
l 
y
e
a
r.

  
T

h
is

 t
im

e
ly

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
a
llo

c
a
ti
n
g
 f
u
n
d
s
 f
o
r 

n
e
x
t 
y
e
a
r'
s
 b

u
d
g
e
t.

E
lk

 G
ro

v
e

 W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t
M

a
jo

r 
C

a
p

it
a

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

je
c

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
v

s
 A

c
tu

a
ls

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

9

18

STEFANI
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#      h



AGENDA ITEM No. 3 

July 17, 2019 
 

 
TO:  Chairperson and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District 
 
FROM: Stefani Phillips, Board Secretary  
 
SUBJECT: COMMITTEE MEETINGS  

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
This item is presented for information only. No action by the Florin Resource Conservation 
District Board of Directors is proposed at this time. 
 
 

SUMMARY 

 
The Florin Resource Conservation District (FRCD) Board of Directors (Board) has 
requested a monthly summary of committee meetings. No committee meetings were held 
in the month of June. 
 
 

DISCUSSION 

 
Background 
 
At the Regular Board Meeting held on May 27, 2015, the Board determined committee 
meeting minutes be brought to the FRCD Regular Board Meeting and placed under 
agenda item Committee Meetings. The agenda item Committee Meetings, was placed 
after agenda item Consent Calendar for approval. This item may be moved within the 
agenda, if necessary, by direction from the Chairperson. The committee meeting minutes 
shall be accepted by the Board.    
 
Present Situation    
 
No committee meetings were held in the month of June. 
   
 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

 
There are no direct environmental considerations associated with this report.  
 
 
 
 
 

19



July 17, 2019 
 

COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

Page 2 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 3 

STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY 

 
This item is in keeping with the District’s Business Practice goals of the 2012-2017 
Strategic Plan. 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

 
There is no financial impact associated with this item at this time.  
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
STEFANI PHILLIPS,  
BOARD SECRETARY   
 
 

20



AGENDA ITEM No. 4 

July 17, 2019 
 
  

TO:  Chairperson and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District 
 
FROM: Mark Madison, General Manager  
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING - PUBLIC HEALTH GOALS REPORT   

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
It is recommended that the Florin Resource Conservation District Board of Directors, 1) 
hold a public hearing to receive public comment regarding the proposed acceptance of 
the “2019 Report on Water Quality Relative to Public Health Goals”; and 2) accept the 
report pending public comments. 
 
 
SUMMARY 

 
The California Health and Safety Code (Code) requires that public water systems serving 
more than 10,000 service connections prepare a written report every three (3) years that 
documents detections of any constituents in drinking water that exceed a public health 
goal (PHG). To satisfy this requirement, the Elk Grove Water District (EGWD) completed 
a report titled “2019 Report on Water Quality Relative to Public Health Goals,” otherwise  
referred to as Public Health Goals Report (attached). The Code requires that a public 
hearing be held to receive public comments regarding the Public Health Goals Report 
before the report is accepted by the Board of Directors. 

 
 

DISCUSSION 

 

Background 
 
A PHG is the level of a chemical contaminant in drinking water that does not pose a 
significant risk to health. Unlike the Drinking Water Regulations (California Code of 
Regulations Title 22) which set maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) of constituents in 
drinking water, PHGs are not regulatory standards, and therefore, not enforceable. State 
law, however, requires the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) to set 
drinking water standards for chemical contaminants as close to the corresponding PHG 
as is economically and technologically feasible. In many cases, it is not be feasible for the 
SWRCB to set the drinking water standard MCL of a contaminant at the same level as 
the PHG. The technology to treat the chemicals may not be available, or the cost of 
treatment may be very high. 
 
 
 

21



July 17, 2019 
 
PUBLIC HEARING- PUBLIC HEALTH GOALS REPORT   

Page 2 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 4 

Present Situation 
 

In compliance with state law, EGWD has prepared a report titled “2019 Report on Water 
Quality Relative to Public Health Goals” otherwise referred to as Public Health Goals 
Report.  State law requires that a public hearing be held to receive public comments 
regarding the Public Health Goals Report before the report is presented for adoption by 
the Florin Resource Conservation District (FRCD) Board of Directors (Board). The public 
hearing must be noticed in an adjudicated newspaper of general circulation with a 
publication date at least ten days prior to the date of the hearing. EGWD noticed the public 
hearing in the Elk Grove Citizen and made the report available to the public on July 5, 
2019. 
 

For the EGWD drinking water system, the constituents detected that exceeded PHG 
levels are arsenic, gross alpha, radium-226, radium-228, uranium and total coliform 
bacteria. Table 1 on page 3 of the Public Health Goals Report lists these constituents and 
the levels at which they occurred. It is explicitly noted that each of these drinking water 
constituents is below the maximum contaminant level set by state law, and that EGWD’s 
drinking water system is fully compliant with state law. 
 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

  
There are no direct environmental considerations associated with this report.    
 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY 

 

Tracking active legislation complies with the District’s Regulatory Compliance goals of the 
2012-2017 Strategic Plan.  
 
 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

 

The Public Health Goal Report was prepared by EGWD’s contracted professional consultant, 
Robertson-Bryan, Inc., at a cost of $3,900. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 
MARK J. MADISON 
GENERAL MANAGER 
 
Attachment 

22



 

 

2019 Report on Water Quality  

Relative to Public Health Goals 

 

 
Prepared for: 

ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT 
9257 Elk Grove Blvd. 
Elk Grove, CA  95624 

(916) 685-3556 
http://www.egwd.org/ 

 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 

 
9888 Kent Street 

Elk Grove, CA  95624 
(916) 714-1801 

23

http://www.egwd.org/
AKavert
Typewritten text
Attachment



2019 Report on Water Quality Relative to Public Health Goals 

Elk Grove Water District  Page i  

Contents 
Background ................................................................................................................................................... 1 

What are PHGs? ............................................................................................................................................ 1 

Water Quality Data Considered .................................................................................................................... 1 

Guidelines Followed ...................................................................................................................................... 2 

Best Available Treatment Technology and Cost Estimates........................................................................... 2 

Constituents Detected that Exceed a PHG or MCLG .................................................................................... 3 

Arsenic....................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Radionuclides ............................................................................................................................................ 4 

Gross Alpha ........................................................................................................................................... 5 

Radium-226 and Radium-228 ............................................................................................................... 5 

Uranium ................................................................................................................................................ 6 

Total Coliform Bacteria ............................................................................................................................. 7 

Recommendations for Further Action .......................................................................................................... 8 

 

Figures 
Figure 1.  Elk Grove Water District Service Area Boundaries........................................................................ 2 

 

Tables 
Table 1.  Constituents Detected Above a PHG or MCLG ............................................................................... 3 

Table 2.  Water Quality Data Summary for Arsenic ...................................................................................... 3 

Table 3.  Water Quality Data Summary for Radionuclides ........................................................................... 5 

 

  

24



2019 Report on Water Quality Relative to Public Health Goals 

Elk Grove Water District  Page ii  

List of Acronyms and Abbreviations 

DLR detection limit for purposes of reporting 

EGWD Elk Grove Water District 

MCL Maximum Contaminant Level 

MCLG Maximum Contaminant Level Goal 

OEHHA California Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment 

PHG Public Health Goal 

pCi/L picocuries per liter 

SCWA Sacramento County Water Agency 

USEPA United States Environmental Protection Agency 

µg/L micrograms per liter 

 

25



2019 Report on Water Quality Relative to Public Health Goals 

Elk Grove Water District  Page 1  

Background 
The California Health and Safety Code Section 116470(b) specifies that public water systems serving 

more than 10,000 service connections prepare a brief written report every three years that documents 

detections of any constituents in drinking water that exceed a Public Health Goal (PHG).  PHGs are non-

enforceable goals established by the California Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment 

(OEHHA).  The law also requires that where OEHHA has not adopted a PHG for a constituent, public 

water systems are to use the Maximum Contaminant Level Goal (MCLG) adopted by the United States 

Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA).  Only constituents that have both a California primary 

drinking water Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL) and a PHG (or MCLG if no PHG exists) are to be 

addressed in this report. 

This report addresses constituents detected in Elk Grove Water District’s (EGWD) drinking water supply 

during calendar years 2016 through 2018 at a level exceeding an applicable PHG or MCLG and provides 

the required information for each constituent.  The required information includes:  the category or type 

of risk to health that could be associated with each constituent; the numerical public health risk 

associated with the primary MCL and the PHG or MCLG; the Best Available Technology that could be 

used to reduce the constituent level; and an estimate of the cost to install that Best Available 

Technology treatment process. 

What are PHGs? 
PHGs are set by OEHHA and are non-enforceable goals based solely on public health risk considerations.  

The practical risk-management factors considered by the USEPA or California’s State Water Resources 

Control Board, Division of Drinking Water in setting drinking water MCLs are not addressed in setting the 

PHGs.  These practical risk-management factors include: analytical detection capability, treatment 

technology available, benefit and costs.  The PHGs are not enforceable and are not required to be met 

by any public water system.  MCLGs are the federal equivalent to PHGs. 

Water Quality Data Considered 
Water for the EGWD system is supplied by two water providers, EGWD and Sacramento County Water 

Agency (SCWA) as follows: 

 Service Area 1 – local groundwater from EGWD 

 Service Area 2 – local groundwater from SCWA, with periodic surface water from SCWA 

Service Area 1 has approximately 8,000 customers and Service Area 2 has approximately 4,300 

customers.  A map of the service areas is provided below in Figure 1.   

The water quality data that was collected from EGWD and SCWA’s water system for purposes of 

determining compliance with drinking water standards during calendar years 2016 through 2018 was 

utilized to prepare this report.  Water quality data are summarized annually in Consumer Confidence 

Reports, which are available on the District’s website (http://www.egwd.org/waterquality.html) and 

mailed to all EGWD customers. 

26

http://www.egwd.org/waterquality.html


2019 Report on Water Quality Relative to Public Health Goals 

Elk Grove Water District  Page 2  

 

Figure 1.  Elk Grove Water District Service Area Boundaries. 

 

Guidelines Followed 
The Association of California Water Agencies 2019 guidelines1 were utilized in the preparation of this 

report.  No formal guidance for preparing these reports is available from state regulatory agencies. 

Best Available Treatment Technology and Cost Estimates 
Both the USEPA and California have adopted what are known as Best Available Technologies, which are 

the best known methods of reducing contaminant levels to the MCL.  Costs can be estimated for such 

technologies.  However, since many PHGs and all MCLGs are set much lower than the MCL, it is not 

always possible or feasible to determine what treatment is needed to further reduce a constituent 

concentration downward to or near the PHG or MCLG, many of which are set at zero.  Estimating the 

costs to reduce a constituent level to zero is difficult, because it is not possible to verify by analytical 

means that the constituent level has been lowered to zero.  In some cases, installing treatment to 

further reduce very low levels of one constituent may have adverse effects on other aspects of water 

quality. Costs presented herein are based on costs compiled in the Association of California Water 

Agencies’ 2019 guidelines. 

                                                           
1 Association of California Water Agencies.  2019 (April).  Suggested Guidelines for Preparation of Required Reports 
on PUBLIC HEALTH GOALS (PHGs) to satisfy requirements of California Health and Safety Code Section 116470(b).  

27



2019 Report on Water Quality Relative to Public Health Goals 

Elk Grove Water District  Page 3  

Constituents Detected that Exceed a PHG or MCLG 
Table 1 presents the constituents that were detected in EGWD’s drinking water system at levels above 

its PHG, or if no PHG, above the MCLG.  These constituents are further discussed in the sections 

following Table 1.  

Table 1.  Constituents Detected Above a PHG or MCLG 

Constituent (Units) 
PHG 

(MCLG) a MCL DLR 

Arsenic (µg/L) 0.004 10 2 

Gross Alpha (pCi/L) (0) 15 3  

Radium-226 (pCi/L) 0.05 5 b 1 

Radium-228 (pCi/L) 0.019 5 b 1 

Uranium (pCi/L) 0.43 20 1 

Total Coliform Bacteria 0% Positive Samples  
Per Month 

≤5% Positive Samples 
Per Month 

Not applicable 

Notes: 
DLR = detection limit for purposes of reporting 
MCL = drinking water maximum contaminant level 
PHG = public health goal 
pCi/L = picocuries per liter of water 
µg/L = micrograms per liter of water 
a MCLG provided in parentheses for constituents with no adopted PHG. 
b MCL is for combined radium-226 and radium-228. 

 

Arsenic 
Table 2 summarizes the range and average arsenic concentrations in the EGWD drinking water for 

Service Areas 1 and 2.  The PHG for arsenic is 0.004 micrograms per liter (μg/L).  The MCL for arsenic is 

10 μg/L.  The health risk category associated with arsenic is carcinogenicity.  At the PHG for arsenic, the 

theoretical cancer risk is 1 × 10-6.  This means the 70-year lifetime cancer risk for consuming drinking 

water with an arsenic concentration at the PHG is 1 excess case of cancer per 1,000,000 people exposed 

(or 0.0001 percent).  At the MCL of 10 μg/L, the theoretical cancer risk is 2.5 × 10-3.  This means the 70-

year lifetime cancer risk for consuming drinking water with an arsenic concentration at the MCL is 2.5 

excess cases per 1,000 people exposed (or 0.25 percent).  The concentrations presented in Table 2 

demonstrate that maximum concentrations of arsenic were less than the MCL of 10 µg/L. 

Table 2.  Water Quality Data Summary for Arsenic 

Constituent 
EGWD Service Area 1 

(Groundwater) 
EGWD Service Area 2 
(SCWA Groundwater) 

EGWD Service Area 2 
(SCWA Surface Water) 

Range (µg/L) ND – 8.7 ND – 6.2 ND 

Average (µg/L) 2.6 ND ND 

ND = not detected 

 

28



2019 Report on Water Quality Relative to Public Health Goals 

Elk Grove Water District  Page 4  

The following are identified in California Code of Regulations, Title 22 Section 64447.2 as Best Available 

Technologies for reducing arsenic levels in drinking water. 

 Activated alumina 

 Coagulation/filtration 

 Ion Exchange 

 Lime softening 

 Reverse Osmosis 

 Electrodialysis 

 Oxidation/filtration 

Further engineering feasibility and review would be necessary to make a determination regarding which 

treatment method would be most appropriate to implement.  For the purposes of this report, the cost 

evaluation was conducted for implementation of an ion exchange treatment process.   

Within EGWD Service Area 1, five drinking water supply wells that are owned and operated by the 

EGWD had detected concentrations of arsenic above the PHG in at least one sample in calendar years 

2016 through 2018, and it is assumed that these wells would have ion exchange as the treatment 

method.  The annualized capital and operations and maintenance cost for ion exchange at the five wells 

in Service Area 1 is estimated to be $1.8 million per year, which would be an increased cost for each 

customer in Service Area 1 of approximately $230 per year.  This cost is based on the maximum annual 

production of each well during 2016–2018, which totaled 841 million gallons, and a unit cost for ion 

exchange of $2.19 per one thousand gallons requiring treatment. 

The SCWA water purchased for EGWD Service Area 2 also had detections of arsenic above the PHG.  The 

estimated cost per customer for SCWA to implement a Best Available Technology would be similar to 

that described above for Service Area 1.  

Radionuclides 
Radionuclides detected in the EGWD water system include gross alpha, radium-226, radium-228, and 

uranium.  Table 3 summarizes the range and average radionuclide levels in the EGWD drinking water for 

Service Areas 1 and 2.  The health risk and costs for treatment to reduce levels of these radionuclides 

are addressed separately for each constituent below. 

29



2019 Report on Water Quality Relative to Public Health Goals 

Elk Grove Water District  Page 5  

Table 3.  Water Quality Data Summary for Radionuclides 

Constituent 
EGWD Service Area 1 

(Groundwater) 
EGWD Service Area 2 
(SCWA Groundwater) 

EGWD Service Area 2 
(SCWA Surface Water) 

Gross Alpha    

Range (pCi/L) ND – 6.3 ND – 8.1 ND 

Average (pCi/L) ND ND ND 

Radium-226    

Range (pCi/L) ND – 1.1 -- -- 

Average (pCi/L) ND -- -- 

Radium-228    

Range (pCi/L) 1.3 – 2.9 -- -- 

Average (pCi/L) 2.4 -- -- 

Uranium    

Range (pCi/L) ND – 2.2 ND – 2.7 ND 

Average (pCi/L) 1.0 ND ND 

ND = not detected 
“--“ = no data 

 

Gross Alpha 

Gross alpha is a measurement of the overall radioactivity of naturally occurring substances present in 

water due to radioactive elements breaking down.  These can include radium-226, radium-228, and 

uranium.  OEHHA has not established a PHG for gross alpha; the federal MCLG is 0 picocuries per liter of 

water (pCi/L) due to classification of gross alpha particles as carcinogens.  The cancer risk at 0 pCi/L of 

gross alpha is zero.  At the MCL of 15 pCi/L of gross alpha, the theoretical cancer risk is 1 x 10-3, which 

means the 70-year lifetime cancer risk for consuming drinking water with a gross alpha concentration at 

the MCL is 1 excess case of cancer per 1,000 people exposed (0.1 percent).  The concentrations 

presented in Table 3 demonstrate that maximum levels of gross alpha were less than the MCL of 15 

pCi/L. 

The California Code of Regulations, Title 22 Section 64447.3 identifies reverse osmosis as the Best 

Available Technology for reducing gross alpha particle levels in drinking water.  The wells in which gross 

alpha particles were detected are EGWD wells serving Service Area 1 and SCWA wells serving Service 

Area 2.  The annualized capital and operations and maintenance cost for reverse osmosis at the two 

wells in Service Area 1 with gross alpha particles greater than the MCLG is estimated to be $1.1 million 

per year, which would be an increased cost for each customer in Service Area 1 of approximately $140 

per year.  This cost is based on treating 324 million gallons annually and a unit cost for reverse osmosis 

of $3.55 per one thousand gallons requiring treatment.  The estimated cost per customer in Service Area 

2 for SCWA to implement a Best Available Technology for gross alpha would be similar to that described 

above for Service Area 1.  

Radium-226 and Radium-228 

Radium is formed when uranium and thorium, which are naturally occurring elements, undergo 

radioactive decay.  Radium-226 and radiuim-228 are the two main radium isotopes found in the 

30



2019 Report on Water Quality Relative to Public Health Goals 

Elk Grove Water District  Page 6  

environment.  The PHG is 0.05 pCi/L for radium-226 and 0.019 pCi/L for radium-228.  The MCL is 5 pCi/L 

for radium-226 and radium-228 combined.  The health risk category associated with radium-226 and 

radium-228 is carcinogenicity.  The theoretical cancer risk at the PHGs for radium-226 and radium-228 is 

1 × 10-6, which means the 70-year lifetime cancer risk for consuming drinking water with radium-226 or 

radium-228 at the respective PHG is 1 excess case of cancer per 1,000,000 people exposed (or 0.001 

percent).  At the MCL of 5 pCi/L, the theoretical cancer risk for radium-226 is 1 × 10-4, which means the 

70-year lifetime cancer risk for consuming drinking water with a radium-226 concentration at the MCL is 

1 excess case per 10,000 people exposed (or 0.01 percent).  At the MCL of 5 pCi/L, the theoretical cancer 

risk for radium-228 is 3 × 10-4, which means the 70-year lifetime cancer risk for consuming drinking 

water with a radium-228 concentration at the MCL is 3 excess cases per 10,000 people exposed (or 0.03 

percent).  The concentrations presented in Table 3 demonstrate that maximum concentrations of 

radium-226 and radium-228 were less than the MCL of 5 pCi/L. 

The following are identified in California Code of Regulations, Title 22 Section 64447.3 as Best Available 

Technologies for reducing radium-226 and radium-228 levels in drinking water. 

 Ion Exchange 

 Lime softening 

 Reverse Osmosis 

Further engineering feasibility and review would be necessary to make a determination regarding which 

would be most appropriate to implement.  One EGWD well in Service Area 1 had a detected 

concentration of radium-226 above its PHG and all wells in Service Area 1 had detected concentrations 

of radium-228 above its PHG.  For purposes of developing annualized costs, ion exchange is selected as 

the treatment method, because this is also the method for addressing arsenic detected in EGWD wells in 

Service Area 1.  The annualized capital and operations and maintenance cost for ion exchange at all 

wells in Service Area 1 is estimated to be $3.6 million per year, which would be an increased cost for 

each customer in Service Area 1 of approximately $450 per year.  This cost is based on the maximum 

annual production of each well during 2016–2018, which totaled 1,637 million gallons, and a unit cost 

for ion exchange of $2.19 per one thousand gallons requiring treatment. 

Uranium 

Uranium is a naturally occurring element present in varying amounts in water, soil, and rock.  The PHG 

for uranium is 0.43 pCi/L.  The MCL for uranium is 20 pCi/L.  The health risk category associated with 

uranium is carcinogenicity.  At the PHG, the theoretical cancer risk is 1 × 10-6, which means the 70-year 

lifetime cancer risk for consuming drinking water with a uranium concentration at the PHG is 1 excess 

case of cancer per 1,000,000 people exposed (or 0.0001 percent).  At the MCL of 20 pCi/L, the 

theoretical cancer risk is 5 × 10-5, which means the 70-year lifetime cancer risk for consuming drinking 

water with a uranium concentration at the MCL is 5 excess cases per 100,000 people exposed (or 0.005 

percent).  The concentrations presented in Table 3 demonstrate that maximum concentrations of 

uranium were less than the MCL of 20 pCi/L. 

31



2019 Report on Water Quality Relative to Public Health Goals 

Elk Grove Water District  Page 7  

The following are identified in California Code of Regulations, Title 22 Section 64447.3 as Best Available 

Technologies for reducing uranium levels in drinking water. 

 Coagulation/filtration 

 Ion Exchange 

 Lime softening 

 Reverse Osmosis 

The wells in which uranium was detected are EGWD wells serving Service Area 1 and SCWA wells serving 

EGWD Service Area 2.  For purposes of developing annualized costs, ion exchange is selected as the 

treatment method for EGWD wells, because this is also the method for addressing arsenic, radium-226 

and radium-228 detected in EGWD wells.  Within EGWD Service Area 1, three EGWD wells had detected 

concentrations of uranium above the PHG and it is assumed that these wells would have ion exchange 

as the treatment method.  The annualized capital and operations and maintenance cost for ion 

exchange at the three wells with uranium above the PHG is estimated to be $1.1 million per year, which 

would be an increased cost for each customer in Service Area 1 of approximately $140 per year.  This 

cost is based on the maximum annual production of each well during 2016–2018, which totaled 

493 million gallons, and a unit cost for ion exchange of $2.19 per one thousand gallons requiring 

treatment. 

The SCWA water purchased for EGWD Service Area 2 also had detections of uranium above the PHG.  

The estimated cost per customer for SCWA to implement a Best Available Technology would be similar 

to that described above for Service Area 1.  

Total Coliform Bacteria 
The MCL for total coliform bacteria is 5% positive samples of all samples per month.  There is no PHG for 

total coliform bacteria; the MCLG is 0% positive samples per month.  Coliform bacteria are an indicator 

organism that are ubiquitous in nature and are not generally considered harmful; they are used because 

of the ease in monitoring and analysis.  The reason for the total coliform bacteria drinking water MCL is 

to minimize the possibility of the water containing potentially harmful pathogens that cause waterborne 

disease.  If a positive sample is found, it indicates a potential problem that needs to be investigated and 

follow-up sampling performed.  It is not unusual for a system to have an occasional positive sample, and 

it is difficult, if not impossible, to assure that a system will never get a positive sample.  Because coliform 

is only a surrogate indicator of the potential presence of pathogens, it is not possible to state a specific 

numerical health risk.   

In 2017 and 2018, one distribution system sample tested positive for total coliform bacteria in a single 

month.  EGWD immediately resampled in accordance with drinking water regulations.  All resamples 

were negative for total coliform bacteria.   

California Code of Regulations, Title 22, Section 64447 lists the following Best Available Technologies for 

achieving compliance with the total coliform MCLs: 

 Protection of wells from coliform contamination by appropriate placement and construction; 

32



2019 Report on Water Quality Relative to Public Health Goals 

Elk Grove Water District  Page 8  

 Maintenance of a disinfectant residual throughout the distribution system; 

 Proper maintenance of the distribution system; and 

 Filtration and/or disinfection of approved surface water, in compliance with Section 64650, or 

disinfection of groundwater. 

The EGWD implements the above Best Available Technologies for total coliform bacteria.  EGWD adds 

chlorine at its water sources to assure that the water served is microbiologically safe.  The chlorine 

residual levels are carefully controlled to provide the best health protection without causing the water 

to have undesirable taste and odor or increasing levels of disinfection byproducts, which are regulated 

in drinking water.  This careful balance of treatment processes is essential to continue supplying EGWD 

customers with safe drinking water.  Other equally important measures that the EGWD has 

implemented include: an effective cross-connection control program, maintenance of a disinfectant 

residual throughout the water distribution system, an effective monitoring and surveillance program, 

and maintaining positive pressures in the distribution system.  Surface water from SCWA is treated using 

conventional filtration and disinfection.  Because Best Available Technology measures are fully 

implemented by EGWD, no estimated cost for further treatment is provided. 

Recommendations for Further Action  
The drinking water quality of the EGWD meets all California and USEPA drinking water standards set to 

protect public health.  To further reduce the levels of the constituents identified in this report that are 

already significantly below the health-based MCLs established to provide “safe drinking water,” 

additional costly treatment processes would be required.  The effectiveness of the treatment processes 

to provide any significant reductions in constituent levels at these already low values is uncertain.  The 

health protection benefits of these further hypothetical reductions are not at all clear and may not be 

quantifiable.  Therefore, no action is proposed at this time. 

33



AGENDA ITEM No. 5 

July 17, 2019 
  
 
TO:      Chairperson and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District 
 
FROM:       Mark J. Madison, General Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT OPERATIONS REPORT – JUNE 2019  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
This item is presented for information only.  No action by the Florin Resource 
Conservation District Board of Directors is proposed at this time.  
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The Elk Grove Water District (EGWD) Operations Report is a standing item on the regular 
board meeting agenda. 
 
All regulatory requirements were met for the month of June. Other notable events are 
described below. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Background 
 
Every month, staff presents an update of the activities related to the operations of the 
EGWD. Included for the Board of Director’s review is the EGWD’s June 2019 Operations 
Report. 
 
Present Situation 
 
The EGWD June 2019 Operations Report highlights are as follows: 
 

 Operations Activities Summary – Three hundred seventy-one (371) door 
hangers were placed for past due balances which resulted in thirty-six (36) 
shutoffs. We received one (1) water pressure complaint and two (2) water quality 
complaints. Upon further inspection, none of the complaints were validated. 
 

 Production – The Combined Total Service Area 1 production graph on page 14 
shows that production during the month of June decreased 3.24 percent compared 
to June 2018, and is 22.07 percent less than what was produced in 2013. Year 
2013 is the baseline year the State Water Quality Control Board (SWQCB) adopted 
for water usage. The Total Demand/Production for both service areas on page 15 

34



  July 17, 2019 
 
ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT OPERATIONS REPORT – JUNE 2019   
Page 2 
 
 

 AGENDA ITEM No. 5  

shows that customer use during the month of June, compared to June 2013, was 
down by 24.03 percent.  
 

 Static and Pumping Level Graphs – The second quarter soundings are shown 
and indicate that the static water levels in deeper zones have risen gradually 
compared to the second quarter of 2017. The shallow zones have also shown 
improvement. 
 

 Treatment (Compliance Reporting) – All samples taken during the month are in 
compliance with all regulatory permit requirements. No exceedances of any 
maximum contaminant levels were found and all water supplied to EGWD’s 
customers met or exceeded safe drinking water standards. 

  

 Corrective Maintenance Program – The tables included in this section of the 
report also include certain activities completed to date. Below is a list of out-of-
ordinary maintenance work completed in June: 

 
o Staff completed applying new level indicator markers on the clear wells 

at the Railroad WTP. 
o Staff flushed Well #3 Mar-Val after the pump was reinstalled. 
o Staff replaced a failed chemical dosing line at Hampton WTP. 

 

 Backflow Prevention Program 2019 – EGWD issued seventy-three (73) testing 
notices for the month. Pursuant to the notices, sixteen (16) devices passed. Fifty-
seven (57) secondary testing notices were issued, whereby seventeen (17) were 
tested and passed. Forty (40) devices remain untested and are classified as 
delinquent. 
  

 Safety Meetings/Training – Two (2) safety training sessions were conducted for 
the month which is compliant with OSHA standards.  

 

 Service Line Replacement Map – Two (2) residential service lines were replaced 
in the month of June.  With the exception of Sierra Street, this completes the 
Service Line Replacement project and this map will no longer be included in the 
Operations Report.  
 

 Service and Main Leaks Map – There were two (2) service line leaks and no main 
line leaks during June. 
 

35



  July 17, 2019 
 
ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT OPERATIONS REPORT – JUNE 2019   
Page 3 
 
 

 AGENDA ITEM No. 5  

 System Pressures – Pressures in Service Area 1 generally remained stable 
during the month of June.  Pressures in Service Area 2, which are controlled by 
Sacramento County Water Agency, went down slightly from the previous month. 
 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
There are no direct environmental considerations associated with this report. 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY 
 
The EGWD’s Strategic Plan addresses responsible business practices and the 
importance of providing the community with safe drinking water. The EGWD Operations 
Report is a key document for managing EGWD’s distribution and treatment system.  The 
EGWD Operations Report assists EGWD toward its responsibility of delivering safe 
drinking water.  
 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
 
There is no financial impact associated with this report. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
  
 
MARK J. MADISON 
GENERAL MANAGER 
 
MJM/ah 
 
 

36



EGWD 
Elk 
Grove  
Water  
District 

OPERATIONS REPORT 

June 2019 

37



Elk Grove Water District 
Operations Report 

Table of Contents 

1. Operations Activities Summary..................................................................................................... 3 

a. Door Hangers and Shut Off Tags ....................................................................................... 4 

2. Production

a. Active Well Sites & Intertie Connections Map ..................................................................... 5 
b. Monthly Production Graphs

i. Well 1D School Street .................................................................................... 6 
ii. Well 4D Webb Street  .................................................................................... 7 
iii. Well 11D Dino  ............................................................................................... 8 
iv. Well 14D Railroad  ......................................................................................... 9 
v. Well 3 Mar-Val  ............................................................................................ 10 
vi. Well 8 Williamson  ....................................................................................... 11 
vii. Well 9 Polhemus  ......................................................................................... 12 
viii. Well 13 Hampton  ........................................................................................ 13 

c. Combined Total Production ............................................................................................... 14 
d. Total Demand/Production  ................................................................................................. 15 
e. EGWD Water Usage …………………………………………………………………………….16 
f. R-GPCD………………………………………………………………………………………..….17 
g. RWA Savings Summary …………………………………………..…………………………….18 

3. Static and Pumping Level Graphs

a. Well 1D School Street ....................................................................................................... 19 
b. Well 4D Webb Street  ........................................................................................................ 20 
c. Well 11D Dino  .................................................................................................................. 21 
d. Well 14D Railroad  ............................................................................................................ 22 
e. Well 3 Mar-Val  .................................................................................................................. 23 
f. Well 8 Williamson  ............................................................................................................. 24 
g. Well 9 Polhemus  .............................................................................................................. 25 
h. Well 13 Hampton  .............................................................................................................. 26 

4. Regulatory Compliance

a. Monthly Water Sample Report ……………………………………………………………..27-31 
b. Monthly Compliance Report ………………………………………………………………..32-33 
c. Monthly Summary of Distribution System Coliform Monitoring …………………………34-35 
d. Monthly Summary of the Hampton Groundwater Treatment Plant …………………….36-37 
e. Monthly Fluoridation Monitoring Report……………………………..……………………..38-39 

5. Preventative Maintenance Program

a. Ground Water Wells .......................................................................................................... 40 
b. Railroad Water Treatment and Storage Facility  ............................................................... 41 
c. Hampton Village Water Treatment Plant  .......................................................................... 42 
d. Standby Generators  ......................................................................................................... 43 

6. Backflow Prevention Program 2017 ............................................................................................. 44 

7. Safety Meetings/Training .............................................................................................................. 45 

8. Service Line Replacement Map .................................................................................................... 46 

9. Service and Main Leaks Map ........................................................................................................ 47 

10. Sample Station Areas Map ........................................................................................................... 48 

11. Sample Station Area(s) Pressure Monitoring ........................................................................49-58 

38



Operations Activities Summary 
 
 
 

 

Service Requests: 

Department 

June-19 
 

Service Request 

 
 

Hours 

YTD (Since Jan. 1, 
 

  Service Request 

2019) 
 

Hours 

Distribution 

Door Tags 

 
      371 

 
21.75 

 
   2,614 

 
 169 

Shut offs      36 12    314 85.05 

Turn ons      40 11.25    348 187.10 

Investigations      41 68    230  185.20 

USA Locates               225 56.25    1,162  290 

Customer Complaints     

-Pressure       1 0.50   10      4.75 

-Water Quality       2 1   7    3.50 

-Other       0 0   0 0 

 

Work Orders:     June-19 YTD (Since Jan. 1, 2019) 
 

 Department     Work Orders       Hours       Work Orders       Hours 
 

Treatment: 

Preventative Maint. 23     65.50 141 439 

Corrective Maint. 7       55 44 326 

Water Samples 15 42 96 248 
 

Distribution: 

Meters Installed 

 

 

0 

 

 

0 

 

 

28 

 

 

13 

Meter Change Out                31     21.75                   123 77 

Preventative Maint.     

-Hydrant Maintenance (135) 138     25.50 893 177 

-Valve Exercising (120) 121  21 844    137.50 

-Other 0 0 0 0 

Corrective Maint.  

-Leaks 2 13.75 12 159.25 

-Other 20        9 80 93.50 

Valve Locates 0 0 0 0 
 

Utility: 

Service Line Replacement 

 

 

2 

 

 

      32 

 

 

143 

 

 

2,396.50 

Corrective Maint. 0  0 0 0 

 

3
39



 
El
k 
G
ro
ve
 W

at
er
 D
is
tr
ic
t

 
   
   
   
Do

or
 H
an

ge
rs
 a
nd

 S
hu

t O
ff 
Ta
gs

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov

De
c

20
17

 D
oo

r T
ag
s

70
4

26
3

40
0

35
9

40
9

41
0

49
3

55
6

73
8

80
4

64
2

0

20
17

 S
hu

t O
ffs

89
38

39
51

43
42

41
48

75
83

55
0

20
18

 D
oo

r T
ag
s

90
5

30
5

40
3

42
2

46
2

44
4

59
0

55
7

68
8

80
6

64
1

0

20
18

 S
hu

t O
ffs

94
38

46
59

61
43

64
62

81
11

6
55

0

20
19

 D
oo

r T
ag
s

67
8

36
0

34
0

42
6

41
5

37
1

20
19

 S
hu

t O
ffs

64
54

40
60

47
36

0

10
0

20
0

30
0

40
0

50
0

60
0

70
0

80
0

90
0

10
00

Tag Count

Do
or

Ha
ng

er
s

Sh
ut
 O
ffs

4
40



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! !
! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
! !

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! !

&%

&%

&%

&%

&%

&%

&%

&%

@A

@A

@A

@A

@A

@A

9
8

3

4D

1D

13

11D
14D

Active Well Sites &
Intertie Connections Elk Grove Water District

0 2,500 5,0001,250 Feet

Legend
@A Intertie Connections
&% Active Well Site

!

! !

!

!!

Service Area 1 .
5 41



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

2
1

,7
9

7
,8

8
5

G
a

ll
o

n
s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

:

1
,7

1
7

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

4
7

2

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

R
P

M
:

1
7

8
5

R
P

M
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

1
1

5

A
m

p
s 

A
:

1
7

7

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
2

A
m

p
s 

B
:

1
7

8

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
2

A
m

p
s 

C
:

1
7

1

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
2

M
o

to
r 

T
e

m
p

:
1

4
0

.2
F

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

2
1

1
.5

0

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

2
6

,3
2

0

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

1
.7

4
m

g
/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
0

.8
0

m
g

/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
0

.9
4

m
g

/L

V
ib

ra
ti

o
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g

:

B
a

se
 L

in
e

:
0

.0
5

in
/s

e
c

C
u

rr
e

n
t:

0
.0

3
in

/s
e

c

W
e

ll
 1

D
 S

ch
o

o
l 

--
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

9

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

6
42



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

2
5

,6
3

5
,6

6
9

G
a

ll
o

n
s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

:

1
,7

0
6

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

4
7

4

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

R
P

M
:

1
6

4
5

R
P

M
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

7
7

5

A
m

p
s 

A
:

1
9

4

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
5

A
m

p
s 

B
:

1
9

3

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
5

A
m

p
s 

C
:

1
9

3

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
5

M
o

to
r 

T
e

m
p

:
1

5
7

.2
F

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

2
5

0
.4

0

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

3
6

,6
0

0

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

1
.5

1
m

g
/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
0

.1
7

m
g

/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
1

.3
4

m
g

/L

V
ib

ra
ti

o
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g

:

B
a

se
 L

in
e

:
0

.0
5

in
/s

e
c

C
u

rr
e

n
t:

0
.0

1
in

/s
e

c

W
e

ll
 4

D
 W

e
b

b
 -

- 
Ju

n
e

 2
0

1
9

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

7
43



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

4
6

,0
5

5
,3

8
0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

:

1
,7

0
0

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

4
7

9

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

R
P

M
:

1
6

8
0

R
P

M
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

7
7

5

A
m

p
s 

A
:

2
0

5

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
5

A
m

p
s 

B
:

2
0

5

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

8
7

A
m

p
s 

C
:

2
0

8

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
5

M
o

to
r 

T
e

m
p

:
1

7
0

.5
F

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

4
5

1
.3

0

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

6
5

,8
8

0

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

1
.4

4
m

g
/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
0

.2
9

m
g

/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
1

.1
5

m
g

/L

V
ib

ra
ti

o
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g

:

B
a

se
 L

in
e

:
0

.0
5

in
/s

e
c

C
u

rr
e

n
t:

0
.0

2
in

/s
e

c

W
e

ll
 1

1
D

 D
in

o
 -

- 
Ju

n
e

 2
0

1
9

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

8
44



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

1
3

,6
8

3
,4

7
5

G
a

ll
o

n
s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

:

1
,5

6
8

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

4
7

8

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

R
P

M
:

1
7

8
1

R
P

M
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

7
8

5

A
m

p
s 

A
:

1
6

4

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

7
1

A
m

p
s 

B
:

1
6

3

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

7
1

A
m

p
s 

C
:

1
5

6

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

7
1

M
o

to
r 

T
e

m
p

.:
1

3
7

.8
F

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

1
4

5
.4

0

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

1
0

2
,0

8
0

(K
W

H
 t

o
ta

l 
is

 f
o

r 
th

e
 e

n
ti

re
 f

a
ci

li
ty

)

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

1
.9

1
m

g
/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
0

.8
8

m
g

/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
1

.0
3

m
g

/L

V
ib

ra
ti

o
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g

:

B
a

se
 L

in
e

:
0

.0
2

in
/s

e
c

C
u

rr
e

n
t:

0
.0

1
in

/s
e

c

W
e

ll
 1

4
D

 R
a

il
ro

a
d

 -
- 

Ju
n

e
 2

0
1

9

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

9
45



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

1
4

,0
0

0
G

a
ll

o
n

s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

: 5
8

3

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

4
8

3

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

R
P

M
:

2
0

1
5

R
P

M
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

9
8

3

A
m

p
s 

A
:

8
8

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
8

8

A
m

p
s 

B
:

8
7

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
8

8

A
m

p
s 

C
:

8
9

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
8

8

M
o

to
r 

T
e

m
p

.:
1

8
3

.4
F

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

0
.4

0

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

9
0

9

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

1
.6

m
g

/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
0

.7
5

m
g

/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
0

.8
5

m
g

/L

V
ib

ra
ti

o
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g

:

B
a

se
 L

in
e

:
0

.0
2

in
/s

e
c

C
u

rr
e

n
t:

0
.0

9
in

/s
e

c

W
e

ll
 3

 M
a

r-
V

a
l 

--
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

9

(W
e

ll
 o

ff
li

n
e

)

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

10
46



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

3
,9

2
3

,7
7

9
G

a
ll

o
n

s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

: 5
5

0

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

4
5

8

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

A
m

p
s 

A
:

6
0

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
6

5

A
m

p
s 

B
:

5
9

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
6

5

A
m

p
s 

C
:

6
0

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
6

5

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

1
1

8
.9

0

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

5
,0

1
0

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

0
.9

8
m

g
/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
0

.2
5

m
g

/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
0

.7
3

m
g

/L

W
e

ll
 8

 W
il

li
a

m
so

n
 -

- 
Ju

n
e

 2
0

1
9

(S
u

b
m

e
rs

ib
le

)

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

11
47



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

3
,6

5
2

,0
0

0
G

a
ll

o
n

s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

: 4
8

7

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

4
8

2

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

A
m

p
s 

A
:

5
9

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
6

5

A
m

p
s 

B
:

5
8

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
6

5

A
m

p
s 

C
:

6
0

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
6

5

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

1
2

4
.8

0

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

5
,0

5
2

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

1
.1

9
m

g
/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
0

.5
8

m
g

/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
0

.6
1

m
g

/L

W
e

ll
 9

 P
o

lh
e

m
u

s 
--

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
9

(S
u

b
m

e
rs

ib
le

)

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

12
48



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

3
8

,4
1

4
,6

3
8

G
a

ll
o

n
s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

: 9
7

8

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

4
7

8

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

R
P

M
:

1
7

8
5

R
P

M
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

7
8

5

A
m

p
s 

A
:

1
0

3

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

4
1

A
m

p
s 

B
:

1
0

3

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

4
1

A
m

p
s 

C
:

1
0

5

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

4
1

M
o

to
r 

T
e

m
p

.:
1

4
1

.5
F

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

6
5

4
.6

0

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

4
8

,0
0

0

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

2
.0

2
m

g
/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
0

.8
7

m
g

/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
1

.1
5

m
g

/L

V
ib

ra
ti

o
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g

:

B
a

se
 L

in
e

:
0

.0
2

in
/s

e
c

C
u

rr
e

n
t:

0
.0

4
in

/s
e

c

W
e

ll
 1

3
 H

a
m

p
to

n
 -

- 
Ju

n
e

 2
0

1
9

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

13
49



C
u

rr
e

n
t 

M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
:

1
5

3
,1

7
6

,8
2

6
G

a
ll

o
n

s

H
ig

h
e

st
 D

a
y

 D
e

m
a

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 M
o

n
th

:

5
,8

4
1

,2
9

0

H
ig

h
e

st
 D

a
y

 D
e

m
a

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 C
a

le
n

d
e

r 
Y

e
a

r:

5
,8

4
1

,2
9

0

"
W

a
te

r 
Y

e
a

r"
 R

a
in

fa
ll

: 
(O

ct
-1

8
 t

o
 S

e
p

-1
9

)

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

M
o

n
th

:
0

.0
0

in

Y
e

a
r 

T
o

 D
a

te
:

2
4

.2
5

in

"
W

a
te

r 
Y

e
a

r"
 R

a
in

fa
ll

: 
(O

ct
-1

7
 t

o
 S

e
p

-1
8

)

Ju
n

e
 2

0
1

8
0

.0
0

in

Y
e

a
r 

T
o

 D
a

te
:

1
5

.9
6

in

La
st

 Y
e

a
r 

T
o

ta
l:

1
5

.9
6

in

T
e

m
p

e
ra

tu
re

:

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 H

ig
h

1
0

3
F

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 L

o
w

5
0

F

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 A

v
e

ra
g

e
7

3
.8

F

JU
N

E
-1

8
 H

ig
h

 
1

0
2

F

JU
N

E
-1

8
 L

o
w

4
9

F

JU
N

E
-1

8
 A

v
e

ra
g

e
7

2
.7

5
F

D
a

te
 o

f 
O

cc
u

ra
n

ce

Ju
n

-2
0

1
9

2
4

-J
u

n
-1

9

D
a

te
 o

f 
O

cc
u

ra
n

ce

2
4

-J
u

n
-1

9

S
e

rv
ic

e
 A

re
a

 1

E
lk

 G
ro

v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

C
o

m
b

in
e

d
 T

o
ta

l 
P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

5
0

1
0

0

1
5

0

2
0

0

2
5

0

Ja
n

F
e

b
M

a
r

A
p

r
M

a
y

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
u

g
S

e
p

O
ct

N
o

v
D

e
c

2
0

1
3

2
0

1
8

2
0

1
9

14 50



C
u

rr
en

t 
M

o
n

th
 D

em
an

d
/P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

:

2
2

5
,8

3
4

,5
5

4
G

al
lo

n
s

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 F
ro

m
 J

u
n

e 
2

0
1

3
: 

 2
4

.0
3

%

G
P

C
D

:  
 

 1
6

7
.1

G
al

lo
n

s 
p

er
 D

ay

R
-G

P
C

D
:

   
1

2
7

.0
G

al
lo

n
s 

p
er

 D
ay

Se
rv

ic
e

 A
re

a 
1

 

A
ct

iv
e 

C
o

n
n

ec
ti

o
n

s:
 

7
,9

4
7

   
   

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
M

o
n

th
 D

em
an

d
/P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

:

1
5

3
,1

7
6

,8
2

6
G

al
lo

n
s

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 F
ro

m
 J

u
n

e 
2

0
1

3
: 

 2
2

.0
7

%

G
P

C
D

:  
 

  1
7

8
.5

G
al

lo
n

s 
p

er
 D

ay

R
-G

P
C

D
:

 1
3

5
.7

G
al

lo
n

s 
p

er
 D

ay

Se
rv

ic
e

 A
re

a 
2

A
ct

iv
e 

C
o

n
n

ec
ti

o
n

s:
 

4
,4

3
8

   
   

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
M

o
n

th
 D

em
an

d
/P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

:

7
2

,6
5

7
,7

2
8

 
G

al
lo

n
s

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 F
ro

m
 J

u
n

e 
2

0
1

3
:  

2
7

.8
5

%

G
P

C
D

:  
 

  1
4

7
.3

G
al

lo
n

s 
p

er
 D

ay

R
-G

P
C

D
:

 1
1

3
.4

  G
al

lo
n

s 
p

er
 D

ay

Ju
n

-2
0

1
9

El
k 

G
ro

ve
W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t

To
ta

l D
em

an
d

/P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

0

50

10
0

15
0

20
0

25
0

30
0

35
0

40
0

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

r
M

ay
Ju

n
Ju

l
A

u
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
o

v
D

ec

Million Gallons

20
19

 S
A

 2

20
19

 S
A

 1

20
18

 S
A

 2

20
18

 S
A

 1

20
13

 S
A

 2

20
13

 S
A

 1

15 51



2
0

1
3

Ja
n

u
ar

y
Fe

b
ru

ar
y

M
ar

ch
A

p
ri

l
M

ay
Ju

n
e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er
N

o
ve

m
b

er
D

ec
em

b
er

G
W

 (
SA

1
)

6
8

,2
5

4
,9

1
6

8
1

,3
6

8
,1

9
1

1
0

0
,5

4
2

,5
2

2
1

2
1

,6
1

3
,5

2
3

1
7

2
,6

2
3

,8
3

9
1

9
6

,5
5

7
,1

3
7

2
2

1
,3

3
5

,3
8

8
2

0
5

,8
3

0
,8

5
0

1
6

6
,9

9
7

,5
3

6
1

4
5

,3
5

2
,5

3
0

1
0

7
,1

8
6

,4
5

9
8

0
,4

9
4

,1
6

7

P
u

rc
h

as
ed

 (
SA

2
)

3
3

,7
6

9
,9

5
6

3
0

,9
2

9
,0

5
2

3
6

,9
4

2
,9

7
2

5
1

,9
1

1
,2

0
0

8
7

,4
7

0
,3

7
2

1
0

0
,7

0
9

,2
2

4
1

1
2

,1
2

8
,1

9
2

1
1

0
,8

8
5

,7
6

4
1

0
5

,4
1

7
,1

3
6

8
1

,6
6

5
,8

9
2

7
1

,5
0

5
,0

6
0

6
2

,1
6

5
,5

3
2

To
ta

l
1

0
2

,0
2

4
,8

7
2

1
1

2
,2

9
7

,2
4

3
1

3
7

,4
8

5
,4

9
4

1
7

3
,5

2
4

,7
2

3
2

6
0

,0
9

4
,2

1
1

2
9

7
,2

6
6

,3
6

1
3

3
3

,4
6

3
,5

8
0

3
1

6
,7

1
6

,6
1

4
2

7
2

,4
1

4
,6

7
2

2
2

7
,0

1
8

,4
2

2
1

7
8

,6
9

1
,5

1
9

1
4

2
,6

5
9

,6
9

9

2
0

1
5

Ja
n

u
ar

y
Fe

b
ru

ar
y

M
ar

ch
A

p
ri

l
M

ay
Ju

n
e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er
N

o
ve

m
b

er
D

ec
em

b
er

G
W

 (
SA

1
)

6
2

,6
8

4
,5

7
4

5
7

,3
6

5
,4

1
3

8
6

,4
8

9
,4

3
7

8
8

,9
8

4
,8

5
0

1
0

6
,1

5
8

,3
8

9
1

1
4

,5
5

5
,3

5
9

1
2

7
,0

3
8

,5
8

6
1

2
5

,0
5

2
,3

1
5

1
1

7
,8

8
3

,2
0

8
9

9
,3

8
5

,7
3

3
6

4
,0

7
9

,7
1

5
5

7
,5

0
8

,7
8

7

P
u

rc
h

as
ed

 (
SA

2
)

2
8

,6
4

8
,4

0
0

3
0

,0
2

9
,2

0
8

3
6

,8
7

6
,4

0
0

5
1

,6
2

6
,2

1
2

5
2

,7
3

4
,0

0
0

6
2

,3
6

8
,2

4
0

7
1

,2
7

3
,9

2
8

7
5

,0
5

5
,0

6
8

7
0

,1
2

3
,5

0
4

6
3

,5
2

6
,8

9
2

4
6

,8
7

3
,4

2
0

3
4

,3
9

9
,7

7
2

To
ta

l
9

1
,3

3
2

,9
7

4
8

7
,3

9
4

,6
2

1
1

2
3

,3
6

5
,8

3
7

1
4

0
,6

1
1

,0
6

2
1

5
8

,8
9

2
,3

8
9

1
7

6
,9

2
3

,5
9

9
1

9
8

,3
1

2
,5

1
4

2
0

0
,1

0
7

,3
8

3
1

8
8

,0
0

6
,7

1
2

1
6

2
,9

1
2

,6
2

5
1

1
0

,9
5

3
,1

3
5

9
1

,9
0

8
,5

5
9

2
0

1
6

Ja
n

u
ar

y
Fe

b
ru

ar
y

M
ar

ch
A

p
ri

l
M

ay
Ju

n
e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er
N

o
ve

m
b

er
D

ec
em

b
er

G
W

 (
SA

1
)

5
4

,5
7

9
,6

7
9

5
3

,4
5

5
,6

9
3

5
6

,7
7

6
,0

2
5

8
0

,3
1

7
,6

5
5

1
1

0
,9

3
7

,3
3

8
1

4
8

,5
1

8
,6

6
0

1
6

4
,7

5
8

,4
6

3
1

5
9

,5
0

1
,5

7
1

1
4

0
,2

0
0

,5
8

4
9

9
,0

1
9

,6
2

9
6

3
,0

8
7

,7
6

2
5

9
,6

3
5

,5
5

9

P
u

rc
h

as
ed

 (
SA

2
)

2
7

,5
1

6
,6

7
6

2
6

,5
0

7
,6

2
4

2
7

,5
3

1
,6

3
6

3
4

,0
5

4
,1

9
6

5
1

,0
7

1
,1

9
6

7
5

,5
4

1
,2

6
8

9
6

,2
4

6
,6

5
6

9
3

,9
9

2
,1

8
4

8
6

,9
0

4
,1

3
6

7
5

,6
8

2
,6

4
0

3
7

,0
8

8
,0

8
4

2
8

,8
9

4
,4

9
2

To
ta

l
8

2
,0

9
6

,3
5

5
7

9
,9

6
3

,3
1

7
8

4
,3

0
7

,6
6

1
1

1
4

,3
7

1
,8

5
1

1
6

2
,0

0
8

,5
3

4
2

2
4

,0
5

9
,9

2
8

2
6

1
,0

0
5

,1
1

9
2

5
3

,4
9

3
,7

5
5

2
2

7
,1

0
4

,7
2

0
1

7
4

,7
0

2
,2

6
9

1
0

0
,1

7
5

,8
4

6
8

8
,5

3
0

,0
5

1

2
0

1
7

Ja
n

u
ar

y
Fe

b
ru

ar
y

M
ar

ch
A

p
ri

l
M

ay
Ju

n
e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er
N

o
ve

m
b

er
D

ec
em

b
er

G
W

 (
SA

1
)

5
9

,9
7

3
,8

8
1

5
0

,3
2

0
,8

3
2

6
1

,0
8

0
,5

5
9

6
8

,6
5

8
,7

5
2

1
3

7
,5

9
9

,3
0

5
1

5
5

,4
7

2
,9

5
1

1
8

0
,0

8
6

,7
3

9
1

7
3

,6
8

4
,1

1
9

1
5

2
,4

7
5

,4
0

0
1

3
1

,3
9

0
,8

0
8

7
6

,6
1

9
,6

4
2

6
7

,8
7

4
,7

4
1

P
u

rc
h

as
ed

 (
SA

2
)

2
6

,9
5

1
,1

8
8

2
8

,1
8

4
,6

4
0

2
8

,7
5

6
,8

6
0

3
4

,1
6

7
,8

9
2

4
8

,6
5

3
,6

6
0

8
7

,0
0

3
,6

2
0

9
6

,5
3

5
,3

8
4

1
0

4
,7

6
6

,3
7

6
9

8
,9

7
9

,8
4

8
8

4
,1

5
4

,4
8

8
6

1
,7

8
8

,5
4

0
3

4
,2

2
8

,4
8

0

To
ta

l
8

6
,9

2
5

,0
6

9
7

8
,5

0
5

,4
7

2
8

9
,8

3
7

,4
1

9
1

0
2

,8
2

6
,6

4
4

1
8

6
,2

5
2

,9
6

5
2

4
2

,4
7

6
,5

7
1

2
7

6
,6

2
2

,1
2

3
2

7
8

,4
5

0
,4

9
5

2
5

1
,4

5
5

,2
4

8
2

1
5

,5
4

5
,2

9
6

1
3

8
,4

0
8

,1
8

2
1

0
2

,1
0

3
,2

2
1

2
0

1
8

Ja
n

u
ar

y
Fe

b
ru

ar
y

M
ar

ch
A

p
ri

l
M

ay
Ju

n
e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er
N

o
ve

m
b

er
D

ec
em

b
er

G
W

 (
SA

1
)

6
1

,5
4

7
,7

5
1

6
1

,5
5

8
,8

5
0

6
2

,8
4

8
,3

0
3

7
6

,2
6

7
,1

4
4

1
2

5
,7

0
3

,2
2

1
1

5
8

,3
1

3
,3

9
4

1
8

1
,4

6
7

,4
4

6
1

7
3

,7
3

7
,6

7
6

1
5

0
,6

0
9

,2
7

8
1

3
3

,1
6

3
,9

9
1

9
7

,2
9

4
,6

5
4

6
3

,6
3

1
,0

4
2

P
u

rc
h

as
ed

 (
SA

2
)

3
1

,9
2

5
,3

8
8

3
1

,5
1

2
,4

9
2

3
3

,7
7

9
,6

8
0

3
2

,9
8

9
,7

9
2

5
2

,6
9

2
,8

6
0

8
5

,6
7

9
,6

6
0

1
0

1
,0

3
1

,6
1

2
1

0
4

,4
5

7
,4

5
2

9
7

,4
0

0
,0

7
2

7
7

,9
9

6
,2

0
4

6
6

,1
1

6
,4

6
8

4
2

,8
4

9
,1

8
0

To
ta

l
9

3
,4

7
3

,1
3

9
9

3
,0

7
1

,3
4

2
9

6
,6

2
7

,9
8

3
1

0
9

,2
5

6
,9

3
6

1
7

8
,3

9
6

,0
8

1
2

4
3

,9
9

3
,0

5
4

2
8

2
,4

9
9

,0
5

8
2

7
8

,1
9

5
,1

2
8

2
4

8
,0

0
9

,3
5

0
2

1
1

,1
6

0
,1

9
5

1
6

3
,4

1
1

,1
2

2
1

0
6

,4
8

0
,2

2
2

2
0

1
9

Ja
n

u
ar

y
Fe

b
ru

ar
y

M
ar

ch
A

p
ri

l
M

ay
Ju

n
e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er
N

o
ve

m
b

er
D

ec
em

b
er

G
W

 (
SA

1
)

5
8

,8
4

7
,0

0
1

5
0

,8
2

7
,4

9
7

5
9

,0
6

4
,3

8
5

8
1

,9
8

1
,7

2
8

1
1

4
,7

3
3

,5
0

2

P
u

rc
h

as
ed

 (
SA

2
)

2
9

,8
9

5
,3

1
6

3
0

,3
5

9
,0

7
6

3
2

,4
8

5
,6

4
0

3
4

,9
9

4
,4

3
2

6
1

,8
0

2
,0

0
4

To
ta

l
8

8
,7

4
2

,3
1

7
8

1
,1

8
6

,5
7

3
9

1
,5

5
0

,0
2

5
1

1
6

,9
7

6
,1

6
0

1
7

6
,5

3
5

,5
0

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

%
 R

ed
u

ct
io

n
 f

ro
m

 2
0

1
3

1
3

.0
2

%
2

7
.7

0
%

3
3

.4
1

%
3

2
.5

9
%

3
2

.1
3

%
1

0
0

.0
0

%
1

0
0

.0
0

%
1

0
0

.0
0

%
1

0
0

.0
0

%
1

0
0

.0
0

%
1

0
0

.0
0

%
1

0
0

.0
0

%

*N
o

te
s

2
0

1
3

 J
an

u
ar

y 
an

d
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 n

u
m

b
er

s 
d

o
 n

o
t 

m
at

ch
 a

ct
u

al
ly

 r
ec

o
rd

ed
 p

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

 b
ec

au
se

 o
f 

an
 o

p
en

 in
te

rt
ie

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

w
at

er
 t

o
 S

A
2

.  
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
 b

el
o

w
 is

 f
u

rt
h

er
 d

et
ai

ls
.

SA
1

 =
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a 

1
, S

A
2

 =
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a 

2
.  

SA
1

 is
 a

ll 
gr

o
u

n
d

w
at

er
 (

G
W

) 
p

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

.  
SA

2
 is

 a
ll 

p
u

rc
h

as
ed

 w
at

er
 f

ro
m

 S
C

W
A

.

A
ct

u
al

 R
ec

o
rd

ed
 P

ro
d

. (
Ja

n
. 2

0
1

3
) 

- 
Se

rv
ic

e 
A

re
a 

1
 

7
9

,3
6

1
,3

4
2

ga
llo

n
s

(I
n

cl
u

d
es

 w
at

er
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 t
o

 S
A

2
 d

u
e 

to
 o

p
en

 in
te

rt
ie

.  
In

te
rt

ie
 c

lo
se

d
 e

n
d

 o
f 

Fe
b

. 2
0

1
3

)

A
ct

u
al

 R
ec

o
rd

ed
 P

ro
d

. (
Fe

b
. 2

0
1

3
) 

- 
Se

rv
ic

e 
A

re
a 

1
 

9
4

,6
0

8
,4

0
6

ga
llo

n
s

(I
n

cl
u

d
es

 w
at

er
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 t
o

 S
A

2
 d

u
e 

to
 o

p
en

 in
te

rt
ie

.  
In

te
rt

ie
 c

lo
se

d
 e

n
d

 o
f 

Fe
b

. 2
0

1
3

)

To
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
es

ti
m

at
e 

o
f 

Fe
b

. 2
0

1
3

 p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 t
o

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
re

a 
1

, u
se

 m
u

lt
ip

lie
r 

fr
o

m
 M

ar
ch

 d
at

a 
w

h
ic

h
 is

 s
ea

so
n

al
ly

 s
im

ila
r.

)

1
.3

9
(c

al
cu

la
te

d
 f

ro
m

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
1

3
 P

ro
d

. D
at

a/
M

ar
ch

 2
0

1
4

 P
ro

d
. D

at
a)

C
al

c'
d

 F
eb

. 2
0

1
3

 P
ro

d
. =

 F
eb

. 2
0

1
4

 P
ro

d
. D

at
a 

x 
1

.3
9

 =
7

9
,7

3
7

,9
2

4

To
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
es

ti
m

at
e 

o
f 

Ja
n

. 2
0

1
3

 p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
, u

se
 p

ro
ra

te
d

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

fr
o

m
 F

eb
. 2

0
1

3
 d

at
a.

  (
Th

is
 m

et
h

o
d

 d
u

e 
to

 J
an

. 2
0

1
4

 b
ei

n
g 

u
n

se
as

o
n

ab
ly

 h
o

t.
)

C
al

c'
d

 J
an

. 2
0

1
3

 P
ro

d
. =

 (
Fe

b
. 2

0
1

3
 P

ro
d

. D
at

a 
C

al
c'

d
 /

 F
eb

. 2
0

1
3

 P
ro

d
. D

at
a 

A
ct

u
al

) 
x 

Ja
n

. 2
0

1
3

 P
ro

d
. D

at
a 

A
ct

u
al

 =
6

8
,2

5
4

,9
1

6

2
0

1
9

# 
A

cc
ts

C
C

F
G

al
lo

n
s

Ja
n

4
,4

1
2

3
9

,9
6

7
2

9
,8

9
5

,3
1

6

Fe
b

4
,4

1
6

4
0

,5
8

7
3

0
,3

5
9

,0
7

6

M
ar

4
,4

1
6

4
3

,4
3

0
3

2
,4

8
5

,6
4

0

A
p

r
4

,4
2

2
4

6
,7

8
4

3
4

,9
9

4
,4

3
2

M
ay

4
,4

2
7

8
2

,6
2

3
6

1
,8

0
2

,0
0

4

Ju
n

0

Ju
l

0

A
u

g
0

Se
p

0

O
ct

0

N
o

v
0

D
ec

0

Se
rv

ic
e 

A
re

a 
1

 M
u

lt
ip

lie
r 

=

C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
- 

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

 (
ga

llo
n

s)
 -

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

El
k 

G
ro

ve
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
W

at
er

 U
sa

ge

Se
rv

ic
e 

A
re

a 
2

*
*

16
52



Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br
ua

ry
M
ar
ch

Ap
ril

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

Au
gu

st
Se
pt
em

be
r

O
ct
ob

er
N
ov
em

be
r

De
ce
m
be

r
20

13
64

78
85

10
9

15
1

18
0

18
2

18
0

16
1

13
4

11
0

89

20
16

50
54

52
75

93
13

5
14

6
14

4
13

2
98

59
54

20
17

53
53

56
64

11
4

14
1

15
5

15
4

14
2

11
9

80
60

20
18

58
62

59
68

10
6

13
8

15
8

15
2

13
5

11
7

95
60

20
19

52
55

56
73

10
4

12
7

025507510
0

12
5

15
0

17
5

20
0

EG
W

D
 C
O
M
B
IN

ED
 R
‐G

PC
D

20
13

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

17
53



2019 Monthly Water Production by Source (Million Gallons) 
Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Total 

SW 4,200 3,863 4,197 5,830 8,446 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 26,536 

GW 1,974 1,696 1,918 2,333 3,275 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11,196 

Total 6,173 5,559 6,115 8,163 11,721 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 37,732 

 

61% 63% 69%
71%

72%
39% 37%

31%

29%

28%

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

20,000

Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec.

M
ill

io
n

 G
al

lo
n

s

2019 Monthly Water Production by Source

Surface Water Groundwater

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

20,000

Jan. Feb. March April May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec.

M
ill

io
n

 G
al

lo
n

s

Regional Monthly Water Production (Million Gallons)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

    May 2019 Data Summary 

18 54



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

8
0

F
t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
1

7
0

F
t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

9
0

F
t

G
P

M
:

1
,8

5
2

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
2

0
.5

7
8

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
<

 5
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 1

D
 S

ch
o

o
l 

S
t 

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-8
1

-8
0

-1
7

2
-1

7
0

-2
0

0

-1
8

0

-1
6

0

-1
4

0

-1
2

0

-1
0

0

-8
0

-6
0

-4
0

-2
00

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

1
9

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-8
8

-9
2

-8
6

-8
4

-8
6

-8
9

-8
1

-8
0

-1
7

5
-1

8
1

-1
7

1
-1

6
0

.5
-1

6
9

.2
-1

7
0

.2
-1

7
2

-1
7

0

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

19
55



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

1
0

3
F

t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
2

0
6

F
t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

1
0

3
F

t

G
P

M
:

1
,7

7
8

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
1

7
.2

6
2

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
<

 5
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 4

D
 W

e
b

b
 S

t

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-1
1

0
-1

0
3

-2
0

9
-2

0
6

-2
5

0

-2
0

0

-1
5

0

-1
0

0

-5
00

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

1
9

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-1
1

0

-1
4

1
-1

3
6

-1
0

5
-1

0
2

-1
2

7
.5

-1
2

7

-1
1

0
-1

0
3

-2
0

5

-2
3

5
-2

3
3

-2
0

7
-2

0
2

-2
2

0
.2

5
-2

2
4

-2
0

9
-2

0
6

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

20
56



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

1
0

2
F

t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
2

0
9

F
t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

1
0

7
F

t

G
P

M
:

1
,6

7
3

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
1

5
.6

3
6

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
<

 5
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 1

1
D

 D
in

o

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-1
0

3
-1

0
2

-1
9

9
-2

0
9

-2
5

0

-2
0

0

-1
5

0

-1
0

0

-5
00

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

1
9

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-1
0

6
.2

5

-1
3

4
-1

3
3

-1
0

0
-1

0
0

-1
2

3
-1

2
0

-1
0

3
-1

0
2

-1
7

5
.7

5

-1
9

6
-1

9
8

-1
7

0
-1

6
9

-2
0

0
-2

0
2

-1
9

9
-2

0
9

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

21
57



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

9
7

F
t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
1

9
9

F
t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

1
0

2
F

t

G
P

M
:

1
,6

7
4

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
1

6
.4

1
2

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
<

 5
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 1

4
D

 R
a

il
ro

a
d

 

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-1
0

3
-9

7

-2
0

2
-1

9
9

-2
5

0

-2
0

0

-1
5

0

-1
0

0

-5
00

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

1
9

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-1
1

8
-1

3
0

-1
2

5

-9
9

-9
9

-1
1

9
-1

1
6

-1
0

3
-9

7

-2
0

8
-2

1
5

-2
1

5
-1

9
6

-1
9

6
.5

-2
1

0
-2

0
8

-2
0

2
-1

9
9

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

22
58



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

6
9

F
t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
7

7
F

t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

8
F

t

G
P

M
:

8
1

0

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
1

0
1

.2
5

0

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
7

.0
4

4
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 3

 M
a

r-
V

a
l

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-6
9

-7
7

-1
0

0

-8
0

-6
0

-4
0

-2
00

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

1
9

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-7
3

.5

-7
7

-7
7

-7
0

-6
9

-7
3

-6
9

-8
2

.2
5

-8
6

-8
5

-7
9

-7
7

-8
2

-7
7

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

23
59



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

6
5

.5
F

t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
7

4
.5

F
t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

9
F

t

G
P

M
:

5
4

4

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
6

0
.4

8
7

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
<

 5
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 8

 W
il

li
a

m
so

n
 

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-6
8

.2
5

-6
5

.5

-7
7

-7
4

.5

-1
0

0

-8
0

-6
0

-4
0

-2
00

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

1
9

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-7
0

.7
5

-7
0

-7
3

-6
8

.2
5

-6
5

.5

-8
5

.7
5

-7
8

-8
2

-7
7

-7
4

.5

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

24
60



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

7
0

F
t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
8

2
F

t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

1
2

F
t

G
P

M
:

4
8

0

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
4

0
.0

0
0

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
<

 5
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 9

 P
o

lh
e

m
u

s 

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-7
4

-7
0

-8
7

-8
2

-1
0

0

-7
5

-5
0

-2
50

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

1
9

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-7
7

.2
5

-7
8

-7
9

-7
5

-7
3

-7
5

-7
6

.5
-7

4

-7
0

-9
0

.2
5

-9
1

-9
2

-8
7

-8
5

-8
7

-8
9

.2
5

-8
7

-8
2

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

25
61



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

6
9

.7
5

F
t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
8

6
.2

5
F

t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

1
6

.5
F

t

G
P

M
:

9
8

5

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
5

9
.6

8
0

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
<

 5
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 1

3
 H

a
m

p
to

n
 

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-7
3

.5
-6

9
.7

5

-8
8

.5
-8

6
.2

5

-1
0

0

-7
5

-5
0

-2
50

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

1
9

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-7
9

-8
2

-7
5

-7
2

.5

-8
0

-8
0

-7
3

.5

-6
9

.7
5

-9
5

-9
7

-9
1

-8
9

-9
5

-9
7

.7
5

-8
8

.5
-8

6
.2

5

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
8

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

26
62



S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/1

1
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/2

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/1

1
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/2

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

O
u
t 
o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
h
a
b

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/1

1
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/2

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

M
o

n
th

ly
 S

a
m

p
le

 R
e

p
o

rt
  

- 
J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

9

W
a

te
r 

S
y
s

te
m

: 
E

lk
 G

ro
v
e

 W
a

te
r 

S
y
s

te
m

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

1
 -

 8
6
9
3
 W

. 
C

a
m

d
e
n

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
S

c
h

o
o

l 
W

e
ll
 0

1
D

 -
 R

a
w

 W
a
te

r

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

2
 -

 9
4
2
5
 E

m
e
ra

ld
 V

is
ta

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
- 

M
a
r-

V
a
l 
W

e
ll
 3

 R
a
w

 W
a
te

r

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

3
 -

 8
8
0
9
 V

a
ll
e
y
 O

a
k

27
63



S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/1

1
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/2

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/1

1
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/2

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/1

1
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/2

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/1

1
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/2

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
W

e
b

b
 W

e
ll
 0

4
D

 -
 R

a
w

 W
a
te

r

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

4
 -

 1
0
1
2
2
 G

la
c
ie

r 
P

o
in

t

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

5
 -

 9
2
3
0
 A

m
s
d

e
n

 C
t.

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

6
 -

 9
2
2
7
 R

a
n

c
h

o
 D

r.

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

7
 -

 A
l 
G

a
te

s
 P

a
rk

 M
a
in

li
n

e
 D

r.
 

28
64



S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/1

1
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/2

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

F
lu

o
ri
d
e

M
o
n
th

ly

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

6
/1

7
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
  
W

a
te

r
3
 m

o
 -

 P
F

A
S

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/1

1
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/2

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/1

1
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

6
/2

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
- 

W
il
li
a
m

s
o

n
 W

e
ll
 8

 R
a
w

 W
a
te

r

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

8
 -

 9
4
3
6
 H

o
ll
o

w
 S

p
ri

n
g

s
 W

y
.

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
 P

o
lh

e
m

u
s
 W

e
ll
 9

 R
a
w

 W
a
te

r

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

9
 -

 8
4
1
7
 B

la
c
k
m

a
n

 W
y
.

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 1

0
 -

 9
3
7
3
 O

re
o

 R
a
n

c
h

 C
ir

.

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
D

in
o

 W
e
ll
 1

1
D

 -
 R

a
w

 W
a
te

r

29
65



S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
F

e
, 
M

n
, 
A

s
, 
T

o
ta

l
W

e
e
k
ly

6
/1

1
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
F

e
, 
M

n
, 
A

s
, 
T

o
ta

l
W

e
e
k
ly

6
/1

7
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
F

e
, 
M

n
, 
A

s
, 
T

o
ta

l
W

e
e
k
ly

6
/2

5
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
F

e
, 
M

n
, 
A

s
, 
T

o
ta

l
W

e
e
k
ly

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

T
re

a
te

d
 E

ff
lu

e
n
t

F
e
, 
M

n
, 
A

s
, 
T

o
ta

l
W

e
e
k
ly

6
/1

1
/2

0
1
9

T
re

a
te

d
 E

ff
lu

e
n
t

F
e
, 
M

n
, 
A

s
, 
T

o
ta

l
W

e
e
k
ly

6
/1

7
/2

0
1
9

T
re

a
te

d
 E

ff
lu

e
n
t

F
e
, 
M

n
, 
A

s
, 
T

o
ta

l
W

e
e
k
ly

6
/2

5
/2

0
1
9

T
re

a
te

d
 E

ff
lu

e
n
t

F
e
, 
M

n
, 
A

s
, 
T

o
ta

l
W

e
e
k
ly

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

B
iA

n
n
u
a
l

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

T
re

a
te

d
 P

la
n
t 
E

ff
lu

e
n
t

W
T

P
 E

ff
 -

 F
e
,M

n
,A

s
,A

l 
T

o
ta

l
M

o
n
th

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

T
re

a
te

d
 P

la
n
t 
E

ff
lu

e
n
t

W
T

P
 E

ff
 -

 F
e
,M

n
,A

s
,A

l 
D

is
s
o
lv

e
d

M
o
n
th

.

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

B
iA

n
n
u
a
l

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
H

a
m

p
to

n
 W

e
ll
 1

3
 -

 R
a
w

 W
a
te

r

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
H

a
m

p
to

n
 W

T
P

 E
ff

lu
e
n

t

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
H

a
m

p
to

n
 W

T
P

 B
a
c
k
w

a
s
h

 T
a
n

k

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
R

a
il
ro

a
d

 W
e
ll
 1

4
D

 -
 R

a
w

 W
a
te

r

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 R

a
il
ro

a
d

 W
T

P
 E

ff
lu

e
n

t

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
R

a
il
ro

a
d

 W
T

P
 B

a
c
k
w

a
s
h

 T
a
n

k

30
66



S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
P

o
lh

em
u

s 
W

el
l #

9
U

C
M

R
-4

 

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
H

a
m

p
to

n
 W

e
ll 

#
 1

3
U

C
M

R
-4

 

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
R

a
ilr

o
a
d
 W

e
ll 

#
 1

4
D

U
C

M
R

-4
 

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
W

e
b
b
 W

e
ll 

#
 4

D
U

C
M

R
-4

 

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

9
4
2
5
 E

m
e
ra

ld
 V

is
ta

U
C

M
R

-4
 

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

8
6
9
3
 W

. 
C

a
m

d
e
n

U
C

M
R

-4
 

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

9
2
3
0
 A

m
s
d
e
n
 

U
C

M
R

-4
 

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

E
n
tr

y
 P

o
in

t 
D

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

P
o

lh
em

u
s 

W
el

l #
9

U
C

M
R

-4
 

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

E
n
tr

y
 P

o
in

t 
D

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

H
a
m

p
to

n
 W

T
P

 E
ff

lu
e
n
t

U
C

M
R

-4
 

6
/4

/2
0
1
9

E
n
tr

y
 P

o
in

t 
D

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

9
4
3
6
 S

p
ri
n
g
s
 H

o
llo

w
U

C
M

R
-4

 

6
/1

1
/2

0
1
9

E
n
tr

y
 P

o
in

t 
D

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

W
ill

ia
m

s
o
n
 W

e
ll 

#
 8

 
U

C
M

R
-4

 

6
/1

1
/2

0
1
9

E
n
tr

y
 P

o
in

t 
D

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

R
a
ilr

o
a
d
 W

T
S

F
U

C
M

R
-4

 

6
/1

1
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
S

c
h
o
o
l 
S

t 
W

e
ll 

#
 1

D
U

C
M

R
-4

 

6
/1

1
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
D

in
o
 W

e
ll 

#
 1

1
D

U
C

M
R

-4
 

6
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
W

ill
ia

m
s
o
n
 W

e
ll 

#
 8

 
U

C
M

R
-4

 

6
/2

6
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
M

a
r-

V
a
l 
W

e
ll 

#
 3

U
C

M
R

-4
 

6
/2

6
/2

0
1
9

E
n
tr

y
 P

o
in

t 
D

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

M
a
r-

V
a
l 
W

e
ll 

#
 3

U
C

M
R

-4
 

C
o
lo

rs
M

o
n
th

ly
 T

o
ta

l
Y

e
a
rl
y
 T

o
ta

l

B
la

c
k
 =

 S
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
5
1

3
7

8

G
re

e
n
 =

 U
n
s
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
1
8

4
6

R
e
d
 =

 I
n
c
o
m

p
le

te
 S

a
m

p
le

0

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 S

p
e
c
ia

l 
D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
/C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 S
a
m

p
le

s
 

31
67



32
68



33
69



34
70



35
71



36
72



37
73



38
74



39
75



40
76



41
77



42
78



43
79



44
80



45
81



46
82



47
83



Y
e

a
r:

 2
0

1
9

E
lk

 G
r
o

v
e
 W

a
te

r
 D

is
tr

ic
t

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v

e
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

ce
 P

ro
g

ra
m

G
ro

u
n

d
w

a
te

r 
W

e
ll

s

R
e

fe
r.

JA
N

F
E

B
M

A
R

A
P

R
M

A
Y

JU
N

JU
L

A
U

G
S

E
P

O
C

T
N

O
V

D
E

C
R

e
fe

r.
1

S
T

 6
-M

O
.

2
N

D
 6

-M
O

.
R

e
fe

r.
2

0
1

9

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

/M
W

A
H

D
a

te
1

/8
/1

9
2

/1
1

/1
9

3
/1

/1
9

4
/4

/1
9

5
/1

3
/1

9
6

/4
/1

9
5

/2
2

/1
9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
7

1
1

6
9

8
8

1
7

1
0

1
1

7
2

5
4

1
7

3
1

3
1

7
4

5
1

1
7

3
8

7

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

/M
W

A
H

D
a

te
1

/1
5

/1
9

2
/1

/1
9

3
/6

/1
9

4
/2

/1
9

5
/7

/1
9

6
/3

/1
9

5
/2

2
/1

9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
7

3
1

6
9

8
9

1
7

1
0

2
1

7
2

5
5

1
7

3
1

4
1

7
4

5
2

1
7

3
8

8

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

/M
W

A
H

D
a

te
1

/8
/1

9
2

/7
/1

9
3

/1
1

/1
9

4
/3

/1
9

5
/1

0
/1

9
6

/5
/1

9
5

/2
2

/1
9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
7

4
1

6
9

9
0

1
7

1
0

3
1

7
2

5
6

1
7

3
1

5
1

7
4

5
3

1
7

3
8

9

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

/M
W

A
H

D
a

te
1

/1
5

/1
9

2
/1

5
/1

9
3

/6
/1

9
4

/1
/1

9
5

/1
3

/1
9

6
/1

0
/1

9
5

/2
2

/1
9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
7

5
1

6
9

9
1

1
7

1
0

4
1

7
2

5
7

1
7

3
1

6
1

7
4

5
4

1
7

3
9

0

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

W
Q

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

D
a

te
1

/1
4

/1
9

2
/5

/1
9

6
/2

6
/1

9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
7

6
1

6
9

9
2

1
7

1
0

5
1

7
2

5
8

1
7

3
1

7
1

7
4

5
5

1
7

3
9

1

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

W
Q

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

D
a

te
1

/7
/1

9
2

/1
5

/1
9

3
/1

8
/1

9
4

/3
/1

9
5

/1
6

/1
9

6
/2

4
/1

9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
7

7
1

6
9

9
3

1
7

1
0

6
1

7
2

5
9

1
7

3
1

8
1

7
4

5
6

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

A
H

D
a

te
1

/1
0

/1
9

2
/1

3
/1

9
3

/5
/1

9
4

/2
/1

9
5

/1
4

/1
9

6
/2

4
/1

9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
7

8
1

6
9

9
4

1
7

1
0

7
1

7
2

6
0

1
7

3
1

9
1

7
4

5
7

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

W
Q

W
Q

A
H

W
Q

A
H

A
H

D
a

te
1

/9
/1

9
2

/1
9

/1
9

3
/5

/1
9

4
/4

/1
9

5
/2

0
/1

9
6

/2
5

/1
9

5
/2

2
/1

9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
7

9
1

6
9

9
5

1
7

1
0

8
1

7
2

6
1

1
7

3
2

0
1

7
4

5
8

1
7

3
9

2

=
W

e
ll

 O
ff

li
n

e

M
o

n
th

ly
S

e
m

i-
a

n
n

u
a

l
A

n
n

u
a

l

Well 11D 

Dino

Sect: 8.1

Sect: 8.2

Sect: 8.3

Well 14D 

Railroad

Sect: 7.1

Sect: 7.2

Sect: 7.3

Well 4D 

Webb

Well 1D 

School

Sect: 13.1

Sect: 13.2

Sect: 13.3

Sect: 9.1

Sect: 9.2

Sect: 9.3

Well 3 

Mar-Val

Well 8 

Williamson

Sect: 11.1

Sect: 11.4

Sect: 12.1

Sect: 12.2

Sect: 12.4 Sect: TBD

Well 13 

Hampton

Sect: TBD

Sect: TBD

Well 9 

Polhemus

Sect: TBD

Sect: TBD

48 84



Y
e

a
r:

 2
0

1
9

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e
 W

a
te

r
 D

is
tr

ic
t

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 P
ro

g
ra

m

R
a

ir
o

a
d

 W
a

te
r 

T
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
to

ra
g

e
 F

a
ci

li
ty

It
e

m
R

e
fe

r.
JA

N
F

E
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
JU

N
JU

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

R
e

fe
r.

1
st

2
n

d
3

rd
4

th
R

e
fe

r.
1

S
T

  
  

  
 6

-

M
O

.

2
N

D
  

  
  

 6
-

M
O

.
R

e
fe

r.
2

0
1

9

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

A
H

/W
Q

W
Q

/M
W

A
H

/W
Q

W
Q

/M
W

D
a

te
1

/1
7

/1
9

2
/4

/1
9

3
/1

/1
9

4
/1

/1
9

5
/1

6
/1

9
6

/6
/1

9
3

/1
3

/1
9

6
/1

1
/1

9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
8

0
1

7
0

0
0

1
7

1
0

9
1

7
2

4
1

1
7

3
2

5
1

7
4

4
7

1
7

1
1

3
1

7
3

9
4

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

/A
H

W
Q

A
H

A
H

A
H

/W
Q

D
a

te
1

/1
6

/1
9

2
/4

/1
9

3
/4

/1
9

4
/9

/1
9

5
/1

5
/1

9
6

/6
/1

9
4

/1
1

/1
9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
8

1
1

7
0

0
1

1
7

1
1

0
1

7
2

4
2

1
7

3
2

6
1

7
4

4
8

1
7

2
4

6

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

A
H

A
H

/M
W

A
H

D
a

te
1

/1
8

/1
9

2
/1

1
/1

9
3

/4
/1

9
4

/8
/1

9
5

/1
0

/1
9

6
/1

8
/1

9
4

/1
1

/1
9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
8

2
1

7
0

0
2

1
7

1
1

1
1

7
2

4
3

1
7

3
2

7
1

7
4

4
9

1
7

2
4

7

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

A
H

M
W

A
H

D
a

te
1

/2
2

/1
9

2
/6

/1
9

3
/2

6
/1

9
4

/8
/1

9
5

/1
4

/1
9

6
/1

0
/1

9
5

/2
2

/1
9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
8

3
1

7
0

0
3

1
7

1
1

2
1

7
2

4
4

1
7

3
2

8
1

7
4

5
0

1
7

3
9

3

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

A
H

D
a

te
3

/2
9

/1
9

6
/2

5
/1

9

W
.O

. 
#

1
7

1
1

4
1

7
3

9
8

In
it

ia
ls

D
a

te

W
.O

. 
#

In
it

ia
ls

D
a

te

W
.O

. 
#

M
o

n
th

ly
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

S
e

m
i-

a
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

Section: 

2.4

Section: 

1.1

Section: 

1.2

Section: 

4.4

Section: 

3.2
Section: 2.3

Section: 

5.1

Section: 

5.2

Section: 

5.3

MCC

Section: 

1.2

Backwash 

Ssytem

Section: 2.1

Section: 2.2

Filter 

System

Clor-Tec 

System

Section: 

4.2

Section: 

4.3

Booster 

Pumps

Section: 

3.1

Section: 

TBD

LAB
 Clear 

Wells

49 85



Y
e

a
r:

 2
0

1
9

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e
 W

a
te

r
 D

is
tr

ic
t

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 P
ro

g
ra

m

H
a

m
p

to
n

 V
il

la
g

e
 W

a
te

r 
T

re
a

tm
e

n
t 

P
la

n
t

It
e

m
R

e
fe

r.
JA

N
F

E
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
JU

N
JU

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

R
e

fe
r.

1
st

2
n

d
3

rd
4

th
R

e
fe

r.
1

S
T

  
  

  
 6

-

M
O

.

2
N

D
  

  
  

 6
-

M
O

.
R

e
fe

r.
2

0
1

9

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

D
a

te
1

/9
/1

9
2

/1
5

/1
9

3
/1

3
/1

9
4

/4
/1

9
5

/2
0

/1
9

6
/1

9
/1

9
3

/1
3

/1
9

6
/1

2
/1

9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
8

4
1

6
9

8
5

1
7

0
9

1
1

7
2

4
8

1
7

3
2

9
1

7
4

4
1

1
7

1
1

9
1

7
4

4
4

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

W
Q

A
H

A
H

D
a

te
1

/9
/1

9
2

/1
5

/1
9

3
/1

3
/1

9
4

/4
/1

9
5

/2
0

/1
9

6
/1

9
/1

9
4

/1
1

/1
9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
8

5
1

6
9

8
6

1
7

0
9

2
1

7
2

4
9

1
7

3
3

0
1

7
4

4
2

1
7

2
5

3

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

/W
Q

D
a

te
1

/9
/1

9
2

/1
5

/1
9

3
/1

3
/1

9
4

/4
/1

9
5

/2
0

/1
9

6
/1

9
/1

9
4

/1
1

/1
9

5
/2

4
/1

9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
8

6
1

6
9

8
7

1
7

0
9

3
1

7
2

5
0

1
7

3
3

1
1

7
4

4
3

1
7

4
4

6
1

7
2

5
2

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

A
H

D
a

te
3

/1
3

/1
9

6
/1

0
/1

9

W
.O

. 
#

1
7

1
1

8
1

7
4

4
5

In
it

ia
ls

D
a

te

W
.O

. 
#

Section: 

TBD

MCCLAB

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Filter 

System

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Backwash 

Ssytem

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

M
o

n
th

ly
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

S
e

m
i-

a
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

Chemical 

Systems

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

50 86



Y
e

a
r:

 2
0

1
9

E
lk

 G
r
o

v
e
 W

a
te

r
 D

is
tr

ic
t

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 P
ro

g
ra

m

S
ta

n
d

b
y

 G
e

n
e

ra
to

rs

It
e

m
R

e
fe

r.
JA

N
F

E
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
JU

N
JU

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

R
e

fe
r.

2
0

1
9

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

A
H

W
Q

D
a

te
1

/1
6

/1
9

2
/6

/1
9

3
/2

6
/1

9
4

/4
/1

9
5

/1
6

/1
9

6
/1

2
/1

9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
8

7
1

6
9

9
6

1
7

0
9

4
1

7
2

6
2

1
7

3
2

1
1

7
4

3
7

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

M
W

D
a

te
1

/1
5

/1
9

2
/2

8
/1

9
3

/1
8

/1
9

4
/2

/1
9

5
/7

/1
9

6
/2

0
/1

9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
8

8
1

6
9

9
7

1
7

0
9

8
1

7
2

6
3

1
7

3
2

2
1

7
4

3
8

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

W
Q

M
W

D
a

te
1

/8
/1

9
2

/7
/1

9
3

/1
1

/1
9

4
/3

/1
9

5
/1

0
/1

9
6

/2
0

/1
9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
8

9
1

6
9

9
8

1
7

0
9

9
1

7
2

6
4

1
7

3
2

3
1

7
4

3
9

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

W
Q

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

/M
W

D
a

te
1

/2
0

/1
9

2
/2

8
/1

9
3

/1
8

/1
9

4
/7

/1
9

5
/1

6
/1

9
6

/1
9

/1
9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
9

0
1

6
9

9
9

1
7

1
0

0
1

7
2

6
5

1
7

3
2

4
1

7
4

4
0

=
 L

o
a

d
 T

e
st

Section: 

TBD

Webb

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Dino

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Admin.

M
o

n
th

ly
A

n
n

u
a

l

Rairoad

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

51
87



E
lk

 G
ro

v
e

 W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

B
a

ck
fl

o
w

 P
re

v
e

n
ti

o
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

0
1

9

JA
N

F
E

B
M

A
R

A
P

R
M

A
Y

JU
N

JU
L

A
U

G
S

E
P

O
C

T
N

O
V

D
E

C

4
8

4
0

7
8

1
5

6
3

7
3

4
1

1
5

3
8

1
4

5
7

1
6

4
1

1
1

3
0

1
4

5
4

1
6

0
4

8
0

3
0

4
8

3
0

0
0

1
3

0
0

0

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5
2

5
2

6
1

6
5

7

0
0

0
0

0
4

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

4
0

T
o

ta
l 

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 D
e

li
n

q
u

e
n

ts

B
a

ck
fl

o
w

 D
e

v
ic

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

s

N
o

ti
ce

s 
Is

su
e

d

C
U

R
R

E
N

T

P
a

ss
e

d
 I

n
it

ia
l 

T
e

st

F
a

il
e

d
 I

n
it

ia
l 

T
e

st

A
ss

e
m

b
li

e
s 

T
e

st
e

d

2
n

d
 N

o
ti

ce
s 

Is
su

e
d

In
v

e
st

ig
a

ti
o

n
s 

o
r 

A
d

d
re

ss
 C

h
a

n
g

e

In
a

ct
iv

a
te

d
 D

e
v

ic
e

s

M
o

n
th

ly
 O

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 D

e
li

n
q

u
e

n
ts

S
ch

e
d

u
le

 C
o

d
e

 C
h

a
n

g
e

d

D
e

v
ic

e
s 

T
u

rn
e

d
 O

ff

F
a

il
e

d
 D

e
v

ic
e

s 
R

e
te

st
e

d
--

--
P

a
ss

e
d

52
88



Date Topic Attendees Hosted By

6/3/2019
Construction Site 

Safety

Alan Aragon, Aaron Hewitt, Sean 

Hinton, Justin Mello, Jose Mendoza, 

Salvador Mendoza, Wilfredo Quintero, 

William Sadler, John Vance, Marcell 

Wilson, Vue Xiong

Sarah Jones

6/17/2019 Working Alone

David Frederick, Aaron Hewitt, Jose 

Mendoza, Steve Shaw, John Vance, 

Brandon Wagner, Marcell Wilson

Sarah Jones

Elk Grove Water District

Safety Meetings/Training 

June 2019

53
89



So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 In

ter
ma

p, 
inc

rem
en

t P
 C

orp
., G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

, G
eo

Ba
se

, IG
N,

 Ka
da

ste
r N

L, 
Or

dn
an

ce
 S

urv
ey

, E
sri

 Ja
pa

n, 
ME

TI,
Es

ri C
hin

a (
Ho

ng
 Ko

ng
), s

wi
ss

top
o, 

© 
Op

en
St

ree
tM

ap
 co

ntr
ibu

tor
s, 

an
d t

he
 G

IS 
Us

er 
Co

mm
un

ity

Elk
 G

ro
ve

 W
ate

r D
ist

ric
t

Cr
ea

ted
 by

: T
rav

is 
Fra

nk
lin

Da
te:

 Ju
ly 

3, 
20

19

Se
rvi

ce
 Li

ne
 R

ep
lac

em
en

t
0

1,0
00

2,0
00

50
0

Fe
et

Le
ge

nd Se
rvi

ce
s t

o R
ep

lac
e

Se
rvi

ce
s t

o R
ep

lac
e w

he
n C

ity
 P

CI
 lo

we
rs

Se
rvi

ce
s t

o R
ep

lac
e w

ith
 W

ate
r M

ain
s

Re
pla

ce
d S

erv
ice

s i
n J

un
e 2

01
9

Re
pla

ce
d S

erv
ice

s 

Pr
oje

cte
d C

oo
rdi

na
te 

Sy
ste

m:
 N

AD
 83

 S
tat

e P
lan

e, 
Ca

lifo
rna

 II,
 FI

PS
 04

20
So

urc
e: 

Ci
ty 

of 
Elk

 G
rov

e, 
EG

WD
 an

d S
ac

ram
en

to 
Co

un
ty 

GI
S d

ata
ba

se
s

.
Se

rvi
ce

s R
ep

lac
ed

 in
 Ju

ne
 20

19
: 2

Se
rvi

ce
s t

o R
ep

lac
e: 

0

To
tal

 S
erv

ice
s R

ep
lac

ed
: 5

59
54

90



^

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

^

!

!

!

^

^
!

!

!

!^

!

!

!

!
!

!

^
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

^

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

^

^

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

^

!
!

!

^
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

^

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

^

!

!

!

!

!

^

!

!

!

^
!

!

!

!

!

! .

! .

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 In

ter
ma

p, 
inc

rem
en

t P
 C

orp
., G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

, G
eo

Ba
se

, IG
N,

 Ka
da

ste
r N

L, 
Or

dn
an

ce
 S

urv
ey

, E
sri

 Ja
pa

n,
ME

TI,
 E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 Ko
ng

), s
wi

ss
top

o, 
© 

Op
en

St
ree

tM
ap

 co
ntr

ibu
tor

s, 
an

d t
he

 G
IS 

Us
er 

Co
mm

un
ity

Le
ge

nd
Ma

in 
Le

ak
s

_̂
Ju

ne
 20

19
^

20
19

^
20

18
 (2

)
^

20
17

 (6
)

^
20

16
 (5

)
Se

rvi
ce

 Le
ak

s
! .

Ju
ne

 20
19

!
20

19
!

20
18

 (3
0)

!
20

17
 (4

4)
!

20
16

 (3
0)

Se
rvi

ce
 Ar

ea
 1

Se
rvi

ce
 Ar

ea
 2

Elk
 G

rov
e W

ate
r D

ist
ric

t
0

3,0
00

6,0
00

Fe
et

Elk
 G

rov
e W

ate
r D

ist
ric

t
Ma

in 
& S

erv
ice

 Li
ne

 Le
ak

s
Cr

ea
ted

 by
: T

rav
is 

Fra
nk

lin
Da

te:
 Ju

ly 
3, 

20
19

Ju
ne

 20
19

Ma
in 

Lin
e L

ea
ks

: 0
YT

D:
  2

Se
rvi

ce
 Li

ne
 Le

ak
s: 

2
YT

D:
  1

0
To

tal
 Le

ak
s: 

 2
/

Ma
in 

an
d S

erv
ice

 Li
ne

 Le
ak

s M
ap

YT
D:

  1
2

55

91



" Îi

" Îi

" Îi

" Îi

" Îi

" Îi

" Îi

" Îi

" Îi

" Îi
SS

A5

SS
A8

SS
A6

SS
A7

SS
A4

SS
A3

SS
A2

SS
A9

SS
A1

SS
A1

0

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 In

ter
ma

p, 
inc

rem
en

t P
 C

orp
., G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

, G
eo

Ba
se

, IG
N,

 Ka
da

ste
r N

L, 
Or

dn
an

ce
 S

urv
ey

, E
sri

 Ja
pa

n,
ME

TI,
 E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 Ko
ng

), s
wi

ss
top

o, 
© 

Op
en

St
ree

tM
ap

 co
ntr

ibu
tor

s, 
an

d t
he

 G
IS 

Us
er 

Co
mm

un
ity

Le
ge

nd
" Îi

Sa
mp

lin
g S

tat
ion

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 1

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 2

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 3

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 4

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 5

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 6

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 7

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 8

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 9

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 10

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
s

Ju
ly 

5, 
20

19"
Sa

mp
le 

St
ati

on
s: 

 10

0
3,4

00
6,8

00
1,7

00
Fe

et

Elk
 G

rov
e W

ate
r D

ist
ric

t
Pr

oje
cte

d C
oo

rdi
na

te 
Sy

ste
m:

 N
AD

 83
 S

tat
e P

lan
e C

A I
I F

IPS
 04

02
So

urc
e: 

EG
WD

 G
IS 

da
tab

as
e

Mo
dif

ied
 by

: T
rav

is 
Fra

nk
lin

56

92



SS
A1

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 In

ter
ma

p, 
inc

rem
en

t P
 C

orp
., G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

,
Ge

oB
as

e, 
IG

N,
 K

ad
as

ter
 N

L, 
Or

dn
an

ce
 S

urv
ey

, E
sri

 Ja
pa

n, 
ME

TI,
 E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 K
on

g),
sw

iss
top

o, 
© 

Op
en

St
ree

tM
ap

 co
ntr

ibu
tor

s, 
an

d t
he

 G
IS 

Us
er 

Co
mm

un
ity

Elk
 G

ro
ve

 W
ate

r D
ist

ric
t

Sy
ste

m 
Pr

es
su

re 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
Cr

ea
ted

 by
:  T

rav
is 

Fra
nk

lin
Ju

ly 
5, 

20
19

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n #

1

Le
ge

nd
" Îi

Sa
mp

lin
g S

tat
ion

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 1

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 9

No
te:

  S
am

ple
 St

ati
on

 ta
ke

s a
 re

ad
ing

ev
ery

 5 
mi

nu
tes

.

"
0

59
0

1,1
80

29
5

Fe
et

1 i
nc

h =
 83

3 f
ee

t

Ju
ne

 20
19

Ran
ge 

of 
PSI

% o
f Ti

me
>7

0
0.1

0%
60 

- 69
.99

46.
49%

50 
- 59

.99
50.

25%
40 

- 49
.99

3.1
4%

< 4
0

0.0
1%

Sam
ple

 Sta
tio

n A
rea

W.
Cam

de
n (

SSA
1)

So
urc

e:E
GW

D 
GI

S d
ata

ba
se

Pr
oje

cte
d C

oo
rdi

na
te 

Sy
ste

m:
NA

D 
83

 St
ate

 P
lan

e C
A I

I F
IP

S 0
40

2

57
93



SS
A2

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 In

ter
ma

p, 
inc

rem
en

t P
 C

orp
., G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

,
Ge

oB
as

e, 
IG

N,
 K

ad
as

ter
 N

L, 
Or

dn
an

ce
 S

urv
ey

, E
sri

 Ja
pa

n, 
ME

TI,
 E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 K
on

g),
sw

iss
top

o, 
© 

Op
en

St
ree

tM
ap

 co
ntr

ibu
tor

s, 
an

d t
he

 G
IS 

Us
er 

Co
mm

un
ity

Elk
 G

rov
e W

ate
r D

ist
ric

t
Sy

ste
m 

Pr
es

su
re 

Mo
nit

ori
ng

Cr
ea

ted
 by

: T
rav

is 
Fra

nk
lin

Ju
ly 

5, 
20

19

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n #

2

Le
ge

nd
" Îi

Sa
mp

lin
g S

tat
ion

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 2

No
te:

 Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n t

ak
es

 a 
rea

din
g

ev
ery

 5 
mi

nu
tes

.

"

0
60

0
1,2

00
30

0
Fe

et

1 i
nc

h =
 83

3 f
ee

t

Ju
ne

 20
19

50 
- 59

.99
20.

30%
60 

- 69
.99

77.
93%

Sam
ple

 Sta
tio

n A
rea % o

f Ti
me

< 4
0

0.0
1%

40 
- 49

.99
0.5

3%

Em
era

ld V
ista

 (SS
A 2

)
Ran

ge 
of 

PSI
1.2

3%
>7

0

So
urc

e: 
EG

WD
 G

IS 
da

tab
as

e

Pr
oje

cte
d C

oo
rdi

na
te 

Sy
ste

m:
NA

D 
83

 St
ate

 P
lan

e C
A I

I F
IP

S 0
40

2

58
94



SS
A3

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 In

ter
ma

p, 
inc

rem
en

t P
 C

orp
., G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

,
Ge

oB
as

e, 
IG

N,
 K

ad
as

ter
 N

L, 
Or

dn
an

ce
 S

urv
ey

, E
sri

 Ja
pa

n, 
ME

TI,
 E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 K
on

g),
sw

iss
top

o, 
© 

Op
en

St
ree

tM
ap

 co
ntr

ibu
tor

s, 
an

d t
he

 G
IS 

Us
er 

Co
mm

un
ity

Elk
 G

ro
ve

 W
ate

r D
ist

ric
t

Sy
ste

m 
Pr

es
su

re 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
Cr

ea
ted

 by
: T

rav
is 

Fra
nk

lin
Ju

ly 
5, 

20
19

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n #

3

Le
ge

nd
" Îi

Sa
mp

lin
g S

tat
ion

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 2

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 3

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 4

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 6

No
te:

  S
am

ple
 St

ati
on

 ta
ke

s a
 re

ad
ing

ev
ery

 5 
mi

nu
tes

.

"
0

59
0

1,1
80

29
5

Fe
et

1 i
nc

h =
 83

3 f
ee

t

Ju
ne

 20
19

Pr
oje

cte
d C

oo
rdi

na
te 

Sy
ste

m:
NA

D 
83

 St
ate

 P
lan

e C
A I

I F
IP

S 0
40

2
So

urc
e: 

EG
WD

 G
IS 

da
tab

as
e

60 
- 69

.99
78.

14%

Sam
ple

 Sta
tio

n A
rea % o

f Ti
me

< 4
0

0.0
1%

40 
- 49

.99
0.8

3%

Va
lle

y O
ak 

(SS
A 3

)
Ran

ge 
of 

PSI
2.9

5%
>7

0

50 
- 59

.99
18.

08%

59
95



SS
A4

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 In

ter
ma

p, 
inc

rem
en

t P
 C

orp
., G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

,
Ge

oB
as

e, 
IG

N,
 K

ad
as

ter
 N

L, 
Or

dn
an

ce
 S

urv
ey

, E
sri

 Ja
pa

n, 
ME

TI,
 E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 K
on

g),
sw

iss
top

o, 
© 

Op
en

St
ree

tM
ap

 co
ntr

ibu
tor

s, 
an

d t
he

 G
IS 

Us
er 

Co
mm

un
ity

Elk
 G

ro
ve

 W
ate

r D
ist

ric
t

Sy
ste

m 
Pr

es
su

re 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
Cr

ea
ted

 by
: T

rav
is 

Fra
nk

lin
Ju

ly 
5, 

20
19

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n #

4

Le
ge

nd
" Îi

Sa
mp

lin
g S

tat
ion

Sa
mp

le 
St

ati
on

 Ar
ea

 3
Sa

mp
le 

St
ati

on
 Ar

ea
 4

Sa
mp

le 
St

ati
on

 Ar
ea

 6

No
te:

  S
am

ple
 St

ati
on

 ta
ke

s a
 re

ad
ing

ev
ery

 5 
mi

nu
tes

.

"
1 i

nc
h =

 1,
02

5 f
ee

t

Ju
ne

 20
19

0
60

0
1,2

00
30

0
Fe

et

Pr
oje

cte
d C

oo
rdi

na
te 

Sy
ste

m:
NA

D 
83

 St
ate

 P
lan

e C
A I

I F
IP

S 0
40

2
So

urc
e: 

EG
WD

 G
IS 

da
tab

as
e

0.0
0%

>7
0

50 
- 59

.99
76.

45%
60 

- 69
.99

19.
02%

Sam
ple

 Sta
tio

n A
rea % o

f Ti
me

< 4
0

0.0
0%

40 
- 49

.99
4.5

4%

Gla
cie

r P
oin

t (S
SA

4)
Ran

ge 
of 

PSI

60
96



SS
A5 So

urc
es

: E
sri

, H
ER

E,
 G

arm
in,

 In
ter

ma
p, 

inc
rem

en
t P

 C
orp

., G
EB

CO
, U

SG
S,

 FA
O,

 N
PS

, N
RC

AN
,

Ge
oB

as
e, 

IG
N,

 K
ad

as
ter

 N
L, 

Or
dn

an
ce

 S
urv

ey
, E

sri
 Ja

pa
n, 

ME
TI,

 E
sri

 C
hin

a (
Ho

ng
 K

on
g),

sw
iss

top
o, 

© 
Op

en
St

ree
tM

ap
 co

ntr
ibu

tor
s, 

an
d t

he
 G

IS 
Us

er 
Co

mm
un

ity

Elk
 G

ro
ve

 W
ate

r D
ist

ric
t

Sy
ste

m 
Pr

es
su

re 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
Cr

ea
ted

 by
: T

rav
is 

Fra
nk

lin
Ju

ly 
5, 

20
19

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n #

5

Le
ge

nd
" Îi

Sa
mp

lin
g S

tat
ion

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 5

No
tes

:  S
am

ple
 St

ati
on

 ta
ke

s a
 re

ad
ing

ev
ery

 5 
mi

nu
tes

.

"
1 i

nc
h =

 42
1 f

ee
t

 

Ju
ne

 20
19

0
28

0
56

0
14

0
Fe

et

Pr
oje

cte
d C

oo
rdi

na
te 

Sy
ste

m:
NA

D 
83

 St
ate

 P
lan

e C
A I

I F
IP

S 0
40

2
So

urc
e: 

EG
WD

 G
IS 

da
tab

as
e

0.0
1%

> 7
0

50 
- 59

.99
80.

86%
60 

- 69
.99

12.
53%

Sam
ple

 Sta
tio

n A
rea % o

f Ti
me

< 4
0

0.0
1%

40 
- 49

.99
6.5

9%

Am
sde

n (
SSA

 5)
Ran

ge 
of 

PSI

61
97



SS
A6

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 In

ter
ma

p, 
inc

rem
en

t P
 C

orp
., G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

,
Ge

oB
as

e, 
IG

N,
 K

ad
as

ter
 N

L, 
Or

dn
an

ce
 S

urv
ey

, E
sri

 Ja
pa

n, 
ME

TI,
 E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 K
on

g),
sw

iss
top

o, 
© 

Op
en

St
ree

tM
ap

 co
ntr

ibu
tor

s, 
an

d t
he

 G
IS 

Us
er 

Co
mm

un
ity

Elk
 G

ro
ve

 W
ate

r D
ist

ric
t

Sy
ste

m 
Pr

es
su

re 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
Cr

ea
ted

 by
: T

rav
is 

Fra
nk

lin
Ju

ly 
5, 

20
19

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n #

6

Le
ge

nd
" Îi

Sa
mp

lin
g S

tat
ion

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 2

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 3

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 5

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 6

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 7

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 8

No
te:

  S
am

ple
 St

ati
on

 ta
ke

s a
 re

ad
ing

ev
ery

 5 
mi

nu
tes

.

"
1 i

nc
h =

 81
9 f

ee
t

Ju
ne

 20
19

0
49

0
98

0
24

5
Fe

et

Pr
oje

cte
d C

oo
rdi

na
te 

Sy
ste

m:
NA

D 
83

 St
ate

 P
lan

e C
A I

I F
IP

S 0
40

2
So

urc
e: 

EG
WD

 G
IS 

da
tab

as
e

60 
- 69

.99
6.3

9%

Sam
ple

 Sta
tio

n A
rea % o

f Ti
me

< 4
0

0.0
7%

40 
- 49

.99
10.

65%

Ran
cho

 (SS
A 6

)
Ran

ge 
of 

PSI
0.0

0%
> 7

0

50 
- 59

.99
82.

89%

62
98



SS
A7

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 In

ter
ma

p, 
inc

rem
en

t P
 C

orp
., G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

,
Ge

oB
as

e, 
IG

N,
 K

ad
as

ter
 N

L, 
Or

dn
an

ce
 S

urv
ey

, E
sri

 Ja
pa

n, 
ME

TI,
 E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 K
on

g),
sw

iss
top

o, 
© 

Op
en

St
ree

tM
ap

 co
ntr

ibu
tor

s, 
an

d t
he

 G
IS 

Us
er 

Co
mm

un
ity

Elk
 G

ro
ve

 W
ate

r D
ist

ric
t

Sy
ste

m 
Pr

es
su

re 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
Cr

ea
ted

 by
: T

rav
is 

Fra
nk

lin
Ju

ly 
5, 

20
19

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n #

7

Le
ge

nd
" Îi

Sa
mp

lin
g S

tat
ion

Sa
mp

le 
St

ati
on

 Ar
ea

 6
Sa

mp
le 

St
ati

on
 Ar

ea
 7

Sa
mp

le 
St

ati
on

 Ar
ea

 8
Sa

mp
le 

St
ati

on
 Ar

ea
 10

No
te:

  S
am

ple
 St

ati
on

 ta
ke

s a
 re

ad
ing

ev
ery

 5 
mi

nu
tes

.

"
0

59
0

1,1
80

29
5

Fe
et

1 i
nc

h =
 83

3 f
ee

t

 

Ju
ne

 20
19

Pr
oje

cte
d C

oo
rdi

na
te 

Sy
ste

m:
 

NA
D 

83
 St

ate
 P

lan
e C

A I
I F

IP
S 0

40
2

So
urc

e: 
EG

WD
 G

IS 
da

tab
as

e

60 
- 69

.99
53.

17%

Sam
ple

 Sta
tio

n A
rea % o

f Ti
me

< 4
0

0.0
0%

40 
- 49

.99
0.0

7%

Ma
inl

ine
 (SS

A 7
)

Ran
ge 

of 
PSI

0.0
0%

> 7
0

50 
- 59

.99
46.

76%

63
99



SS
A8 So

urc
es

: E
sri

, H
ER

E,
 G

arm
in,

 In
ter

ma
p, 

inc
rem

en
t P

 C
orp

., G
EB

CO
, U

SG
S,

 FA
O,

 N
PS

, N
RC

AN
,

Ge
oB

as
e, 

IG
N,

 K
ad

as
ter

 N
L, 

Or
dn

an
ce

 S
urv

ey
, E

sri
 Ja

pa
n, 

ME
TI,

 E
sri

 C
hin

a (
Ho

ng
 K

on
g),

sw
iss

top
o, 

© 
Op

en
St

ree
tM

ap
 co

ntr
ibu

tor
s, 

an
d t

he
 G

IS 
Us

er 
Co

mm
un

ity

Elk
 G

ro
ve

 W
ate

r D
ist

ric
t

Sy
ste

m 
Pr

es
su

re 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
Cr

ea
ted

 by
: T

rav
is 

Fra
nk

lin
Ju

ly 
5, 

20
19

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n #

8

Le
ge

nd
" Îi

Sa
mp

lin
g S

tat
ion

Sa
mp

le 
St

ati
on

 Ar
ea

 5
Sa

mp
le 

St
ati

on
 Ar

ea
 6

Sa
mp

le 
St

ati
on

 Ar
ea

 7
Sa

mp
le 

St
ati

on
 Ar

ea
 8

No
te:

  S
am

ple
 St

ati
on

 ta
ke

s a
 re

ad
ing

ev
ery

 5 
mi

nu
tes

.

"

0
65

0
1,3

00
32

5
Fe

et

 

Ju
ne

 20
19

Pr
oje

cte
d C

oo
rdi

na
te 

Sy
ste

m:
NA

D 
83

 St
ate

 P
lan

e C
A I

I F
IP

S 0
40

2
So

urc
e: 

EG
WD

 G
IS 

da
tab

as
e

60 
- 69

.99
0.0

1%

Sam
ple

 Sta
tio

n A
rea % o

f Ti
me

< 4
0

0.0
0%

40 
- 49

.99
6.8

2%

Ho
llo

w S
pri

ngs
 (SS

A 8
)

Ran
ge 

of 
PSI

0.0
0%

> 7
0

50 
- 59

.99
93.

17%

64
100



SS
A9

SS
A1

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 In

ter
ma

p, 
inc

rem
en

t P
 C

orp
., G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

,
Ge

oB
as

e, 
IG

N,
 K

ad
as

ter
 N

L, 
Or

dn
an

ce
 S

urv
ey

, E
sri

 Ja
pa

n, 
ME

TI,
 E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 K
on

g),
sw

iss
top

o, 
© 

Op
en

St
ree

tM
ap

 co
ntr

ibu
tor

s, 
an

d t
he

 G
IS 

Us
er 

Co
mm

un
ity

Elk
 G

ro
ve

 W
ate

r D
ist

ric
t

Sy
ste

m 
Pr

es
su

re 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
Cr

ea
ted

 by
: T

rav
is 

Fra
nk

lin
Ju

ly 
5, 

20
19

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n #

9

Le
ge

nd
" Îi

Sa
mp

lin
g S

tat
ion

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 1

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 9

No
te:

  S
am

ple
 St

ati
on

 ta
ke

s a
 re

ad
ing

ev
ery

 5 
mi

nu
tes

.

"
0

64
0

1,2
80

32
0

Fe
et

1 i
nc

h =
 85

3 f
ee

t

 

Ju
ne

 20
18

Pr
oje

cte
d c

oo
rdi

na
te 

sy
ste

m:
NA

D 
83

 St
ate

 Pl
an

e C
A I

I F
IPS

 04
02

So
urc

e: 
EG

WD
 G

IS 
da

tab
as

e

0.3
8%

> 7
0

50 
- 59

.99
7.0

3%
60 

- 69
.99

92.
59%

Sam
ple

 Sta
tio

n A
rea % o

f Ti
me

< 4
0

0.0
0%

40 
- 49

.99
0.0

0%

Bla
ckm

an 
(SS

A 9
)

Ran
ge 

of 
PSI

65
101



SS
A1

0

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 In

ter
ma

p, 
inc

rem
en

t P
 C

orp
., G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

,
Ge

oB
as

e, 
IG

N,
 K

ad
as

ter
 N

L, 
Or

dn
an

ce
 S

urv
ey

, E
sri

 Ja
pa

n, 
ME

TI,
 E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 K
on

g),
sw

iss
top

o, 
© 

Op
en

St
ree

tM
ap

 co
ntr

ibu
tor

s, 
an

d t
he

 G
IS 

Us
er 

Co
mm

un
ity

Elk
 G

ro
ve

 W
ate

r D
ist

ric
t

Sy
ste

m 
Pr

es
su

re 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
Cr

ea
ted

 by
: T

rav
is 

Fra
nk

lin
Ju

ly 
5, 

20
19

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n #

10

Le
ge

nd
" Îi

Sa
mp

lin
g S

tat
ion

Sa
mp

le 
St

ati
on

 Ar
ea

 4
Sa

mp
le 

St
ati

on
 Ar

ea
 6

Sa
mp

le 
St

ati
on

 Ar
ea

 7
Sa

mp
le 

St
ati

on
 Ar

ea
 10

No
te:

  S
am

ple
 St

ati
on

 ta
ke

s a
 re

ad
ing

ev
ery

 5 
mi

nu
tes

.

"
0

60
0

1,2
00

30
0

Fe
et

1 i
nc

h =
 83

3 f
ee

t

 

Ju
ne

 20
19

So
urc

e: 
EG

WD
 G

IS 
da

tab
as

e

Pr
oje

cte
d C

oo
rdi

na
te 

Sy
ste

m:
NA

D 
83

 St
ate

 P
lan

e C
A I

I F
IP

S 0
40

2

60 
- 69

.99
95.

46%

Sam
ple

 Sta
tio

n A
rea % o

f Ti
me

< 4
0

0.0
0%

40 
- 49

.99
0.0

0%

Ore
o R

anc
h (

SSA
 10

)
Ran

ge 
of 

PSI
3.1

5%
> 7

0

50 
- 59

.99
1.3

9%

66
102



AGENDA ITEM No. 6 

July 17, 2019 
 
 

TO:  Chairperson and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District 
 
FROM: Patrick Lee, Finance Manager/Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT: ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT FISCAL YEAR 2018-19 QUARTERLY 

OPERATING BUDGET STATUS REPORT   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
This item is presented for discussion purposes only.  No action is requested of the Florin 
Resource Conservation District Board of Directors at this time. 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Staff is presenting the quarterly budget status report through the fourth quarter of fiscal 
year (FY) 2018-19.  This report is to keep the Florin Resource Conservation District Board 
of Directors (Board) and the public informed on the financial status of the Elk Grove Water 
District (EGWD). 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Background 
 
On June 20, 2018, the Board approved the FY 2018-19 EGWD Operating Budget. The 
adopted FY 2018-19 EGWD Operating Budget has total revenues of approximately 
$14.82 million and total expenditures of approximately $14.81 million, including deposits 
into the Repair and Replacement and Long-Term Capital Improvement Reserves of 
approximately $1.45 million. The projected revenues in excess of expenditures of 
approximately $8,436 will be placed into operating reserves for future budget years.   
 
Present Situation 
 
The following is a summary of the EGWD’s financial status as of June 30, 2019: 
 

103



July 17, 2019 
 
 

ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT FISCAL YEAR 2018-19 QUARTERLY OPERATING 
BUDGET STATUS REPORT     
Page 2 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 6 

 

12/12=100.00%

General Ledger YTD Annual %

Reference Activity Budget Variance Realized

Revenues 4100 - 4900 14,669,310$ 14,821,253$  (151,943)$       98.97%

Salaries & Benefits 5100 - 5280 3,927,077     4,167,812      (240,735)         94.22%

less Capitalized Labor (201,128)       (453,517)        252,389          44.35%

Less CalPERS Prepayment for Remainder of Year: (3) -                

 Adjusted Salaries and Benefits: 3,725,949$   3,714,295$    11,654$          100.31%

Seminars, Conventions and Travel 5300 - 5350 38,908          49,280           (10,372)           78.95%

Office & Operational 5410 - 5494 889,100        1,137,527      (248,427)         78.16%

Purchased Water est. (4) 5495 - 5495 2,839,854     3,178,328      (338,474)         89.35%

Outside Services 5505 - 5580 805,752        975,178         (169,426)         82.63%

Equipment Rent, Taxes, Utilities 5620 - 5760 328,694        438,900         (110,206)         74.89%

Total Operational Expenses 8,628,256$   9,493,508$    (865,252)$       90.89%

Net Operating Income 6,041,054$   5,327,745$    713,309$        113.39%

Non-Operating Revenues

Interest Received 9910 - 9910 1,195,080     100,000 1,095,080 1195.08%

Unrealized Gains/Losses 9911 - 9911 (801,527)       -                 (801,527)         100.00%

Other Income/Expense 9920 - 9973 37,921          -                 37,921            100.00%

Total Non-Operating Revenues 431,474$      100,000$       331,474$        431.47%

Non-Operating Expenses

Election Costs 9950 - 9950 2,008            150,000         (147,992)         1.34%

All other Non-Operating Expenses

Capital Expenses (2):
Capital Improvements 1705 - 1760 381,709        390,000         (8,291)             97.87%
Capital Replacements 1705 - 1760 492,048        824,000         (331,952)         59.71%
Unforeseen Capital Projects 1705 - 1760 42,533          100,000         (57,467)           42.53%

Capital Expenses: 916,289$      1,314,000$    (397,711)$       69.73%

Bond Interest Accrued (1) 7300 - 7300 1,753,909 1,753,909 -                  100.00%

Total Non Operating Expenses 2,672,206$   3,217,909$    (545,703)$       83.04%

Revenues in Excess of All Expenditures, including Capital 3,800,322$   2,209,836$    1,590,486$     171.97%

Bond Retirement (1): 2,070,000$   2,070,000$    -$                100.00%

Net Position after Capital and Debt Retirement Expenditures 1,730,322$   139,836$       1,590,486$     

Notes:

1.  Bond retirement payments are made two times a year in September and March

2. YTD Activity includes $201,128 in capitalized labor charged to capital projects.

3. The District prepays CalPERS for the employers' share of retirement costs for the entire year.

    By doing this, the District saves approximately 3.6% in its total CalPERS payments for the year.

    The adjusted salaries and benefits above shows what salaries and benefits would be if

    only the amount due to CalPERS YTD was paid YTD, with no prepayment.

4. There is a lag in water billings from the Sacramento County Water Agency. Included above 

    is an estimate of costs to date based on water used.

Elk Grove Water District

Year to Date Revenues and Expenses Compared to Budget

As of June 30, 2019

104



July 17, 2019 
 
 

ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT FISCAL YEAR 2018-19 QUARTERLY OPERATING 
BUDGET STATUS REPORT     
Page 3 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 6 

The revenues collected through the fourth quarter of the fiscal year total $14,669,310 
which is 98.97% of the $14,821,253 annual budget. The revenues are $65,400 or 0.44% 
below the same quarter of the prior fiscal year. Although there was a 3.0% revenue 
adjustment that went into effect on January 1, 2018, resulting in slightly higher revenues 
for the first two quarters of FY 2018-19, that increase was offset by a decrease in 
revenues during the winter months due to the rainy weather as consumption decreased. 
 
Total Operational Expenses were $8,628,256 through the fourth quarter, which is 90.89% 
of the annual budget. The actual expenses were $513,030 or 5.61% below the same 
quarter of the prior fiscal year as follows: 
 

Personnel expenditures through the fourth quarter totaled $3,725,949 which is 100.31% 
of the $3,714,295 annual budget. The actual expenses were $247,012 or 6.22% below 
the same quarter of the prior fiscal year. The decrease is due mainly to a decrease in 
non-exempt salaries due to staff turnover throughout FY 2018-19 and not yet recognizing 
an adjustment to pension expense related to GASB 68. 
 

Seminars, Conventions and Travel expenditures totaled $38,908, which is 78.95% of the 
annual budget of $49,280. The actual expenses were $10,404 or 36.50% above the same 
quarter of the prior fiscal year due mainly to travel costs for six (6) attendees to the 2018 
Fall ACWA Conference in San Diego, CA and four (4) attendees to the 2019 Spring 
ACWA Conference in Monterey.  The 2018 Spring ACWA Conference was held in 
Sacramento, CA, which incurred minimal travel costs. 
 

Office and Operational expenditures totaled $889,100, which is 78.16% of the annual 
budget of $1,137,527. Some of the major costs include association dues totaling 
$133,306 to Regional Water Authority (RWA), Sacramento Central Groundwater 
Authority (SCGA) and Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA), repair and 
maintenance equipment of $91,339, materials of $72,983, meter purchases of $64,073 
and software update expenditures of $103,523.  The actual expenses were $42,603 or 
4.57% below the same quarter of the prior fiscal year. 
 

Estimated Purchased Water costs totaled $2,839,854, which is 89.35% of the annual 
budget of $3,178,328. The actual expenses were $78,951 or 2.70% below the same 
quarter of the prior fiscal year. The decrease is a result of the rate decreased in the 
wholesale water rate from $1.28 in FY 2017-18 to $1.18 in FY 2018-19, representing 
approximately an 8% decrease as well as a decrease in water consumption during the 
winter months due to more rainfall. 
 

Outside Services expenditures totaled $805,752, which is 82.63% of the annual budget 
of $975,178. The actual expenses were $110,244 or 12.04% below the same quarter of 

105



July 17, 2019 
 
 

ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT FISCAL YEAR 2018-19 QUARTERLY OPERATING 
BUDGET STATUS REPORT     
Page 4 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 6 

the prior fiscal year. The decrease is due mainly to less legal costs and less financial 
consultant costs through the end of the fourth quarter of FY 2018-19, as compared to the 
same quarter of the prior fiscal year, offset by an increase in banking costs, contracted 
services costs and engineering costs. 
 
Equipment Rent, Taxes and Utilities expenditures totaled $328,694, which is 74.89% of 
the annual budget of $438,900. The actual expenses were $44,625 or 11.95% below the 
same quarter of the prior fiscal year. The decrease is due mainly to the elimination of the 
rental costs for the temporary trailer during the construction of the IT Training Center and 
an overall decrease in electricity and sewer and garbage service. 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

 
There are no direct environmental considerations associated with this report. 
 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY 

 
This item conforms to the FRCD/EGWD’s 2012-2017 Strategic Plan. Adoption and 
management of the annual EGWD budget is specifically identified as a goal in the 
financial stability challenge section of the Strategic Plan. 
 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
 
This report is provided to the Board for information only. There is no financial impact 
associated with this item at this time. Staff has provided a copy of the June 30, 2019 
Quarterly Operating Budget Review (attached) for the fourth quarter.  The Quarterly 
Budget Review includes the line item detail for the expenditure categories for the quarter-
to-date for FY 2018-19, as well as the detail for last year’s quarter-to-date. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 

PATRICK LEE 
FINANCE MANAGER/TREASURER    
 

Attachment 

106



FY 2018-19 Y-T-D 100% Y-T-D Change from

Account Description Budget 6/30/2019 Percentage 6/30/2018 prior year

4100 Water Payment Revenues - Residential 12,681,621$  12,435,384$      98.06% 12,402,068$   33,316$          

4110 Water Payment Revenues - Commercial 1,715,768       1,736,086           101.18% 1,665,802       70,284            

4120 Water Payment Revenues - Fire Service 187,864          177,326              94.39% 188,957          (11,631)           

4200 Meter Fees/Plan Check/Water Capacity 30,000            56,944                189.81% 243,532          (186,588)        

4201 Backflow Installation 25,000            17,972                71.89% 14,804             3,168              

4300 Fire Protection -                   156                      -               312                  (156)                

4520 Door Hanger Fees 115,000          144,700              125.83% 149,725          (5,025)             

4540 New account Fees 25,000            24,000                96.00% 22,791             1,209              

4550 NSF Fees 3,000               2,660                  88.67% 3,640               (980)                

4570 Shut-off Fees 50,000            63,550                127.10% 62,900             650                  

4575 24 Hour Turn On -                   200                      100.00% 200                  -                   

4580 Restoration Fees -                   -                       0.00% 25                     (25)                   

4590 Credit Card Fees 8,000               10,725                134.06% 10,000             725                  

4591 Sac County Release of Lien Fee -                   (285)                    100.00% 41                     (326)                

4900 Customer Refunds (20,000)           (107)                    0.54% (30,086)           29,979            

TOTAL GROSS REVENUES 14,821,253$  14,669,310$      98.97% 14,734,710$  (65,400)$        

FY 2018-19 Y-T-D 100.00% Y-T-D Change from

Account Description Budget 6/30/2019 Percentage 6/30/2018 prior year

Salaries & Benefits

5100 Executive Salary 201,602 164,466              81.58% 151,934          12,532            

5110 Exempt Salaries 533,379 558,044              104.62% 525,448          32,596            

5120 Non-Exempt Salaries 1,437,510 1,361,412           94.71% 1,484,076       (122,664)        

5130 Overtime Compensation 56,000 40,110                71.62% 60,799             (20,690)           

5140 On Call Pay 18,250 17,050                93.42% 18,200             (1,150)             

5150 Holiday Pay 117,871 111,283              94.41% 109,632          1,651              

5160 Vacation Pay 147,716 160,613              108.73% 159,232          1,381              

5170 Personal Time Pay 104,797 104,718              99.92% 105,387          (669)                

5180 Internship Program 15,000 -                       0.00% -                   -                   

5200 Medical Benefits 726,388 654,688              90.13% 647,241          7,447              

5195 EAP 834 813                      97.49% 825                  (12)                   

5201 EGWD Contribution H.S.A 15,000 13,251                88.34% 13,352             (101)                

5210 Dental/Vision/Life Insurance 62,858 60,170                95.72% 58,270             1,900              

5220 Retirement Benefits 375,521 363,871              96.90% 537,500          (173,628)        

5225 Retirement Benefits - Post Employment 160,110 162,645              101.58% 151,681          10,964            

5230 Medical Tax, Social Security and SUI 60,551 51,053                84.31% 50,867             186                  

5240 Worker's Compensation Insurance 100,595 82,288                81.80% 72,358             9,930              

5250 Education Assistance 2,500 -                       0.00% 2,566               (2,566)             

5260 Employee Training 27,550 17,378                63.08% 12,152             5,226              

5270 Employee Recognition 2,750 3,161                  114.96% 3,463               (301)                

5280 Meetings 1,030 62                        6.02% 189                  (127)                

Less Capitalized Expenditures (453,517) (201,128)             44.35% (192,211) (8,917)             

Less Remaining CalPERS prepayment N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Category Subtotal 3,714,295 3,725,949 100.31% 3,972,961 (247,012)        

ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT

QUARTERLY BUDGET REVIEW

THROUGH JUNE 30, 2019

FISCAL YEAR 2018-19

107

AKavert
Typewritten text
Attachment



ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT

QUARTERLY BUDGET REVIEW

THROUGH JUNE 30, 2019

FISCAL YEAR 2018-19

Account Description FY 2018-19 Y-T-D 100.00% Y-T-D Change from

Seminars, Conventions and Travel Budget 6/30/2019 Percentage 6/30/2018 prior year

5300 Airfare 6,100               2,536                  41.57% 1,685               851                  

5310 Hotels 14,200            11,024                77.63% 4,628               6,397              

5320 Meals 5,430               4,497                  82.82% 3,112               1,385              

5330 Auto Rental 1,900               373                      19.65% -                   373                  

5340 Seminars & Conferences 10,800            12,588                116.55% 9,109               3,478              

5345 Seminars & Conferences - Board 2,800               725                      25.89% 2,197               (1,472)             

5350 Mileage Reimbursement, Parking, Tolls 2,050               1,165                  56.85% 1,773               (608)                

5375 Auto Allowance 6,000               6,000                  100.00% 6,000               -                   

Category Subtotal 49,280            38,908                78.95% 28,504             10,404            

FY 2018-19 Y-T-D 100.00% Y-T-D Change from

Account Description Budget 6/30/2019 Percentage 6/30/2018 prior year

Office & Operational

5410 Advertising 6,000 4,477                  74.62% 10,310             (5,833)             

5415 Association Dues 124,544 133,306              107.04% 79,874             53,432            

5420 Insurance 86,533 50,132                57.93% 86,006             (35,874)           

5425 Licenses, Certifications, Fees 3,185 2,304                  72.35% 2,154               150                  

5430 Repairs & Maintenance - Automotive 47,500 34,412                72.45% 38,136             (3,725)             

5432 Repairs & Maintenance - Building 34,000 27,042                79.54% 28,402             (1,360)             

5434 Repairs & Maintenance - Computers 30,000 35,060                116.87% 21,196             13,864            

5435 Repairs & Maintenance - Equipment 114,000 91,339                80.12% 96,248             (4,909)             

5438 Fuel 51,000 35,523                69.65% 38,356             (2,833)             

5440 Materials 125,000 72,983                58.39% 100,732          (27,749)           

5445 Chemicals 60,000 28,581                47.64% 42,494             (13,912)           

5450 Meter Repairs 30,000 64,073                213.58% 27,055             37,018            

5453 Permits 55,050 47,486                86.26% 83,498             (36,012)           

5455 Postage 76,700 55,593                72.48% 67,737             (12,144)           

5460 Printing 17,100 12,830                75.03% 10,514             2,315              

5465 Safety Equipment 31,450 5,381                  17.11% 4,633               748                  

5470 Software Programs & Updates 133,261 103,523              77.68% 94,105             9,418              

5475 Supplies 33,000 24,421                74.00% 31,877             (7,456)             

5480 Telephone 41,004 30,358                74.04% 36,689             (6,331)             

5485 Tools 10,000 10,404                104.04% 4,967               5,436              

5490 Clothing Allowance 9,200 7,961                  86.54% 8,206               (245)                

5491 EGWD-Other Clothing 9,000 5,687                  63.19% 6,223               (536)                

5493 Water Conservation Materials 10,000 6,224                  62.24% 12,289             (6,065)             

Category Subtotal 1,137,527 889,100 78.16% 931,703 (42,603)           

FY 2018-19 Y-T-D 100.00% Y-T-D Change from

Account Description Budget 6/30/2019 Percentage 6/30/2018 prior year

5495 Purchased Water 3,178,328 2,839,854 89.35% 2,918,805       (78,951)           

108



ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT

QUARTERLY BUDGET REVIEW

THROUGH JUNE 30, 2019

FISCAL YEAR 2018-19

FY 2018-19 Y-T-D 100.00% Y-T-D Change from

Account Description Budget 6/30/2019 Percentage 6/30/2018 prior year

Outside Services

5505 Administration Services 3,590 3,120                  86.90% 3,100               20                    

5510 Bank Charges 138,808 159,130              114.64% 132,426          26,704            

5515 Billing Services 28,800 19,136                66.45% 20,463             (1,326)             

5520 Contracted Services 361,780 315,043              87.08% 286,949          28,094            

5525 Accounting Services 35,000 34,860                99.60% 26,760             8,100              

5530 Engineering 100,000 68,671                68.67% 31,585             37,086            

5535 Legal Services 175,000 113,169              64.67% 191,694          (78,525)           

5540 Financial Consultants 25,000 10,421                41.69% 110,842          (100,420)        

5545 Community Relations 16,200 16,548                102.15% 8,679               7,870              

5550 Pre-employment 1,000 -                       0.00% 425                  (425)                

5552 Misc. Medical 1,500 2,450                  163.32% 2,548               (98)                   

5555 Janitorial 9,950 7,655                  76.93% 6,890               765                  

5560 Bond Administration 7,050 3,800                  53.90% 4,220               (420)                

5570 Security 22,000 20,874                94.88% 50,706             (29,832)           

5575 Sampling 49,500 30,874                62.37% 38,710             (7,836)             

Category Subtotal 975,178 805,752 82.63% 915,995 (110,244)        

FY 2018-19 Y-T-D 100.00% Y-T-D Change from

Account Description Budget 6/30/2019 Percentage 6/30/2018 prior year

Equipment Rent, Taxes and Utilities

5620 Equipment Rental 19,800            16,075                81.18% 22,796             (6,721)             

5710 Property Taxes 1,500               1,116                  74.42% 959                  157                  

5720 Water -                   -                       0.00% -                   -                   

5740 Electricity 384,000          289,011              75.26% 320,004          (30,993)           

5750 Natural Gas 600                  771                      128.56% 507                  264                  

5760 Sewer and Garbage 33,000            21,720                65.82% 29,052             (7,332)             

Category Subtotal 438,900          328,694              74.89% 373,319          (44,625)           

Total Operational Expenses 9,493,508       8,628,256          90.89% 9,141,286       (513,030)        

109



AGENDA ITEM No. 7 

July 17, 2019 
  
 
TO:  Chairperson and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District 
 
FROM: Patrick Lee, Finance Manager/Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT: ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT FISCAL YEAR 2018-19 QUARTERLY 

CAPITAL RESERVE STATUS REPORT   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
This item is presented for discussion purposes only.  No action is requested of the Florin 
Resource Conservation District Board of Directors at this time. 
 

 

SUMMARY 

 
The total amount available for reserves at July 1, 2018 was $14,139,332.  Based on the 
Florin Resource Conservation District (FRCD) Board of Directors (Board) policy adopted 
August 22, 2012, the reserves are allocated first to the Operating Reserve (120 days of 
budgeted operating and maintenance expenses), then to the Elk Grove Water District 
(EGWD) Fiscal Year (FY) 2018-19 Capital Improvement Program (CIP), followed by 
elections/special studies, with the balance allocated to future capital improvements and 
future capital replacements in the ratio of 75:25, respectively.  
 
Through the fourth quarter of FY 2018-19, the District expended $916,289 for capital 
projects and $2,008 for elections, leaving a remaining total reserve balance at June 30, 
2019 of $13,221,035.  Total amount expended of $916,289 for capital projects includes 
$279,513 of expenditures related to projects carrying over from prior year, but not 
budgeted for in the FY 2018-19 CIP. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 

 
Background 
 
On June 20, 2018, the Board approved the FY 2018-19 EGWD Operating Budget and the 
EGWD FY 2019-23 CIP that included an appropriation of $14.812 million to the FY 2018-
19 EGWD Operating Budget and $1.314 million in unrestricted funds to the EGWD FY 
2018-19 CIP reserve funds. 
 
 
 
 

110



July 17, 2019 
 

ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT FISCAL YEAR 2018-19 QUARTERLY CAPITAL 

RESERVE STATUS REPORT     

Page 2 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM No. 7 

Present Situation 
 
EGWD has appropriated Reserve Funds for FY 2018-19 as follows: 
 

 Operations Reserves (120 days)    $   4,869,967 
 FY 2018-19 Capital Improvement Fund       $      440,000 
 FY 2018-19 Capital Replacement Fund       $      874,000 
 Elections and Special Studies    $      150,000 
 Future Capital Improvements    $   5,854,024 
 Future Capital Replacements    $   1,951,341 

         $ 14,139,332 
 
The EGWD has expended $916,289 for capital expenditures through June 30, 2019 as 
follows: 
 

 Capital Improvement Fund     
o Service Line Replacements   $      265,683 
o RRWTP Generator PLC/SCADA   $        21,462 
o Well 3 Pump Replacement    $        30,235 
o Radio Antenna     $        10,963 
o Hampton WTP Generator Removal  $        24,316 
o I.T. Servers      $        28,955 
o Fiber Optic Cable     $               95 
o Unforeseen Capital Projects   $        21,267 

TOTAL      $      402,976 
 

 Capital Replacement Fund      
o Kent Street Water Main    $             224 
o Camden Water Main Relocation   $          2,548 
o Backyard Water Mains/Service Replacements $      463,425 
o RRWTP Parking Lot Repaving   $        25,849 
o Unforeseen Capital Projects   $        21,267 

TOTAL      $      513,313 
 
The EGWD has also expended $2,008 for elections costs through June 30, 2019. 
 
The EGWD remaining reserve fund balances as of June 30, 2019 are as follows:  
 

 Operations Reserves (120 days)    $   4,869,967 
 FY 2018-19 Capital Improvement Fund       $        37,025 

111



July 17, 2019 
 

ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT FISCAL YEAR 2018-19 QUARTERLY CAPITAL 

RESERVE STATUS REPORT     

Page 3 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM No. 7 

 FY 2018-19 Capital Replacement Fund       $      360,687 
 Elections and Special Studies    $      147,992 
 Future Capital Improvements    $   5,854,024 
 Future Capital Replacements    $   1,951,341 

         $ 13,221,035 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

 
There are no environmental considerations associated with this report. 

 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY 

 
This item conforms to the FRCD/EGWD’s 2012-2017 Strategic Plan. Adoption and 

management of the annual EGWD budget is specifically identified as a goal in the 

financial stability challenge section of the Strategic Plan.  

 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

 
This report is provided to the Board for information only. There is no financial impact with 
this report. Staff has provided a copy of the June 30, 2019 Quarterly Capital Reserves 
Review (attached) for the fourth quarter. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
PATRICK LEE 
FINANCE MANAGER/TREASURER    
 
Attachment   

112



Total Available 14,139,332$               at 7/1/2018

Operating Capital Capital Elections/ Future Capital Future Capital 

Reserves Improvements Replacements Special Studies Improvements Replacements

Needed Funded Funded Funded Funded Funded

4,869,967$      440,000$           874,000$              150,000$                     5,854,024$           1,951,341$       

Available Expended Expended Expended Expended Expended

-                    402,976$           513,314$              2,008$                         -$                       -$                   

Remaining Remaining Remaining Remaining Remaining Remaining

4,869,967$      37,025$             360,687$              147,992$                     5,854,024$           1,951,341$       

Supply/Dist. Treatment Plant Building/Site/Veh. Unforeseen

Improvements Improvements Improvements Capital Projects

Funded Funded Funded Funded

-$                    240,000$              150,000$                     50,000$                

Expended Expended Expended Expended

265,683$           86,976$                29,050$                       21,267$                

Remaining Remaining Remaining Remaining

(265,683)$          153,024$              120,950$                     28,734$                

Supply/Dist. Treatment Plant Building/Site/Veh. Unforeseen

Improvements Improvements Improvements Capital Projects

Funded Funded Funded Funded

734,000$           -$                       90,000$                       50,000$                

Expended Expended Expended Expended

466,198$           -$                       25,849$                       21,267$                

Remaining Remaining Remaining Remaining

267,802$           -$                       64,151$                       28,734$                

Capital Replacement Funds

ELK GROVE WATER RESERVES

Fiscal Year 2018-19

As of June 30, 2019

Capital Improvement Funds

Z:\03_Board Packets\Board Meetings\2019\FRCD Regular Board Meeting (071719)\Documents for Board Packet\2 - 4th Quarter Reserves FY 2018-19

113

AKavert
Typewritten text
Attachment



AGENDA ITEM No. 8 

July 17, 2019  
 
 
TO:  Chairperson and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District 
 
FROM: Bruce M. Kamilos, Assistant General Manager 
 
SUBJECT: TRUCK PURCHASE FOR REPLACEMENT OF TRUCK #303  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Florin Resource Conservation District Board of Directors 
authorize the General Manager to execute a purchase order in the amount of $84,186.63, 
including tax and license, with Fairfield Ford to purchase a dump truck to replace Truck 
#303. 
 
 
SUMMARY 
  
The replacement of Truck #303 was not included in the Elk Grove Water District (EGWD) 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2019-20 Capital Improvement Program (CIP), but upon further review it 
is a better candidate for replacement than Truck #102. Per the Florin Resource 
Conservation District’s (FRCD) Purchase of Goods and Services from Outside Vendors 
Policy, a competitive bidding process was used to acquire three (3) bids for a dump truck.  
The lowest responsive, responsible bidder was Fairfield Ford with a bid amount of 
$84,186.63. 
 
This action, if approved, would authorize the General Manager to execute a purchase 
order in the amount of $84,186.63 with Fairfield Ford for the purchase of a dump truck. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Background 
 
Truck #303 is a 2006 Ford F-650 dump truck that is thirteen years old, uses an older 
diesel engine technology, and is expensive to maintain. 
 
Present Situation 
 
The Purchase of Goods and Services from Outside Vendors Policy requires that major 
purchases of items costing more than $50,000 be competitively bid and approved by the 
FRCD Board of Directors (Board). Three (3) bids were obtained for a dump truck. The 
lowest responsive, responsible bidder was Fairfield Ford. The bids are summarized below 
and represent the amounts including tax and license. 

114



July 17, 2019 
 
TRUCK PURCHASE FOR REPLACEMENT OF TRUCK #303  
Page 2 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 8 

 
 Company Name Bid Amount 

1 Fairfield Ford $84,186.63 

2 Elk Grove Ford $85,598.00 

3 Harrold Ford $87,758.56 

 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
There are no environmental considerations associated with the purchase of the truck. 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY 
 
The recommendation made in this staff report conforms to the FRCD/EGWD 2012-2017 
Strategic Plan.  The Strategic Plan, under the Asset Management section, identifies that 
each piece of equipment has a life expectancy for which its replacement shall be planned 
for and carried out. 
 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
 
The financial impact of purchasing the dump truck is $84,186.63 including tax and license. 
Staff has provided a Purchase Order (PO) (attached) for the Board’s review. The EGWD 
FY 2019-20 CIP budgeted $120,000 for the replacement of a truck and valve exercising 
unit. The remaining balance of $35,813 will be used to purchase a truck-mounted valve 
exercising unit as planned in the approved EGWD FY 2019-20 CIP.   
  
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
BRUCE M. KAMILOS 
ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER 
 
Attachment 

115



 PURCHASE ORDER 
FOR 

FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
 

Purchase Order No.  19-     GL# 1705-000-20-401 
 

Seller: Buyer: 

Name Ford Fairfield  Elk Grove Water District 

Address 3050 Auto Mall Court 9257 Elk Grove Blvd. 

City, State Zip Fairfield, CA 945344 Elk Grove, CA 95624 

Attn: Ken Lalanne Attn: Mark Madison, General Manager 

Phone:  707-421-3300 Fax:   408-5449 Phone:   916.685.3556 Fax: 916.685.5376 

 

E-mail: kennethlalanne@fordfairfield.com  E-mail: mmadison@egwd.org  

Project Information: Ship To: 

Truck 303 replacement. 2019 F-650 Diesel Base Regular Cab  

as per attached quote dated 6/28/2019.  

Elk Grove Water District 

9257 Elk Grove Blvd. 

Elk Grove, CA 95624 

Attn: Travis Franklin  

Please forward all invoices to accountspayable@egwd.org 

Order Date Delivery Date Ship Via FOB Payment Terms 

7/18/19 per contract terms   
Net 30 days of 

invoice 

 
 

Buyer and Seller agree as follows: 

MATERIAL, EQUIPMENT AND/OR SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED:  Seller shall furnish the 
material, equipment and/or services described below which is incorporated into and made part of this 
Purchase Order.  In the event of any conflict between the language in this Purchase Order and the language 
in the Professional Services Agreement or Construction Contract, the language in the Professional Services 
Agreement or Construction Contract shall prevail over the language in this Purchase Order. 

 

Description 

Item No.  

Estimated 

Quantity 

Unit 

Price 

Ext. Price  Delivery 

Date 

Vehicle Pricing:      

Base Vehicle Price  1  $67,565.00  

Options & Colors 1  $5,640.00  

Destination Charge 1  $1,995.00  

Subtotal:   $75,200.00  
     

Pre-Tax Adjustments:     

Document Fee 1  $85.00  

Government Price Concession 1  -$6,200.00  

Scelzi 5-7 Yard Dump Per Attached Specifications  1  $18,247.00  

Dealer Discount  1  -$9,200.00  

Subtotal:    $78,132.00  
     

Sales Tax   $6,054.63  

Total   $84,186.63  

[Attach Additional Sheets if necessary] 

Buyer:        Seller: 

By: Mark J. Madison, P.E.     By:  Ken Lalanne 

Title: General Manager     Title:  Fleet Sales Manager   

116

mailto:kennethlalanne@fordfairfield.com
mailto:mmadison@egwd.org
mailto:mmadison@egwd.org
AKavert
Typewritten text
Attachment



PURCHASE ORDER TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS:  The Term “Buyer” as used in this PO 
means the FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT, and the 
term “Seller” means the person, firm, or corporation from whom the 
commodity of service described in the PO it ordered.  The term 
“Material, Equipment, and/or Services” includes materials, supplies, 
equipment, drawings, data and other property to be furnished and all 
services including design, delivery, installation, inspection, and testing 
specified or required to furnish any material, equipment, and/or 
services.   
 
ARTICLE 2. ACCEPTANCE OF THE PO:  The attached Acceptance 
Copy shall be signed and returned by the Seller within ten (10) calendar 
days after it is received by the Seller.  The receipt by the Buyer of the 
signed Acceptance Copy or the initiation of performance under this PO 
by the Seller shall constitute acceptance of the PO by the Seller, 
including all of the terms and conditions herein.  Acceptance is limited 
to the terms stated herein.  Any additional or different terms and 
conditions proposed by the Seller are rejected unless expressly agreed 
to in writing by an authorized representative of the Buyer’s Purchasing 
Department. 
 
ARTICLE 3. COMPLETE AGREEMENT: This PO, including all 
applicable terms, conditions and specifications, shall constitute the sole 
and exclusive agreement between the parties.  This PO supersedes all 
other writings and negotiations written or oral.  Buyer will not be 
responsible for goods delivered or services rendered without a PO 
properly signed by the Buyer Purchasing Agent or authorized agent.  
When this PO covers a continuing service rendered over a stated 
period of time, Seller must obtain a new order upon expiration of the 
time period to authorize the continuance of the service for an additional 
period of time. 
 
ARTICLE 4. DEFAULT: The Buyer may terminate the whole or any part 
of Seller’s work in any one of the following circumstances: (1) If the 
Seller fails to make delivery or fails to perform within the time specified 
herein or any authorized extension thereof; or (2) If Seller delivers 
nonconforming goods; or (3) If Seller fails to perform in accordance with 
the material provisions of this PO, or so fails to make progress as to 
endanger performance of this PO in accordance with its terms.  In the 
event of any such failure Buyer will provide Seller with written notice of 
the default and Buyer's intention to terminate for default if Seller fails to 
cure the default to Buyer's satisfaction within seven calendar days of 
Buyer's notice.  If Seller fails to cure or correct the default to Buyer's 
satisfaction within seven days, Buyer may, without further notice to 
Seller, procure upon such terms and in such manner as the Buyer may 
deem appropriate, items similar to those terminated, and the Seller 
shall be liable to the Buyer for any excess costs of such similar items; 
however, the Seller shall continue the performance of this PO to the 
extent not terminated.  The rights and remedies of the Buyer provided 
in this clause shall not be exclusive, and are in addition to any other 
rights and remedies provided by law or under this PO. 
 
ARTICLE 5. CHANGES: Buyer may direct in writing changes, including 
additions to or deletions from the quantities originally ordered, or in the 
specifications or drawings.  If any such change causes a material 
increase or decrease in the cost of, or the time required for, 
performance hereunder, an equitable adjustment shall be made in the 
price or schedule.  Any claims for adjustment which Seller believes 
result from any change directed by Buyer shall be asserted in writing by 
Seller no later than ten (10) days from the date of Seller's receipt of any 
such direction.  Equitable adjustments for any claims or changes under 
this agreement, including claims arising from terminations or 
suspensions directed under DEFAULT above, of this agreement, will be 
made by written Change Order.  Nothing contained herein shall excuse 
Seller from proceeding with the change as directed prior to negotiation 
of any adjustment.  Whether made pursuant to this clause or by mutual 
agreement, changes shall not be binding upon the Buyer, except when 

confirmed in writing by a member of the Buyer’s Purchasing 
Department. 
 
ARTICLE 6. INVOICES: Unless otherwise specified in the PO, Seller 
shall send Buyer a single invoice upon completion of performance.  
Payment shall not be made prior to receipt and acceptance of items 
and an invoice.   
 
ARTICLE 7. PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW DEEMED 
INSERTED: Each and every provision of law and clause required by 
law to be inserted in this contract shall be deemed to be inserted herein 
and the contract shall be read and enforced as though it were included 
herein, and if through mistake or otherwise any such provisions is not 
inserted, or is not correctly inserted then upon application of either party 
the contract shall forthwith be physically amended to make such 
insertion or correct. 
 
ARTICLE 8. RIGHT TO AUDIT:  Buyer reserves the right to access and 
audit the Seller's records for a period of four (4) years after payment of 
any invoice. 
 
ARTICLE 9. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS:  All prices shall be F.O.B. 
Destination.  The Seller shall be responsible for safe and adequate 
packing of the items, which shall conform to the carriers’ requirements.  
The Seller shall separately number all cases and packages, showing 
the corresponding numbers on the invoices.  An itemized packing slip 
bearing this PO number shall be placed in each container.  No extra 
charge shall be made for packaging or packing materials unless 
authority therefor is set forth in this PO.  Seller shall assume and pay 
for any and all loss or damage to the merchandise from any cause 
whatsoever until delivered to Buyer at the specified destination. 
 
ARTICLE 10. DELIVERY: Timely performance and deliveries are 
essential to this PO.  The Buyer reserves the right to refuse deliveries 
made in advance of the delivery schedule.  Over shipment allowances, 
if authorized, will be applied to the entire order.  If the Buyer agrees to 
accept deliveries after the date of delivery has passed, the Buyer shall 
have the right to direct the Seller to make shipment to the delivery point 
set forth in this PO by the most expeditious means, and the total cost of 
such expedited shipment and handling shall be borne by the Seller.  
Acceptance of late deliveries shall not be deemed a waiver of the 
Buyer’s right to hold the Seller liable for any loss or damage resulting 
therefrom, nor shall it act as a modification of the Seller’s obligation to 
make future deliveries in accordance with the delivery schedule. 
 
ARTICLE 11. DELAYS:  Seller will not be liable for delays in performing 
its obligations to the extent the delay is caused by an unforeseeable 
condition which is beyond Seller’s reasonable control and without 
Seller's fault or negligence.  Acts of God, such as storms or floods, as 
well as government priorities, acts of civil or military authorities, fires, 
strikes, epidemics, war or riot are examples of events which will be 
excusable for being beyond Seller's reasonable control, only upon 
fulfillment of the following conditions: (a) within seven (7) days of the 
commencement of any excusable delay, Seller shall provide Buyer with 
written notice of the cause and extent thereof as well as a request for a 
schedule extension for the estimated duration thereof, and (b) within 
seven (7) days of the cessation of the event causing delay Seller shall 
provide Buyer with written notice of the actual delay incurred, upon 
receipt of which, the date of promised delivery shall be extended for the 
time actually lost by reason of an excusable delay. 
 
ARTICLE 12. INSPECTION AND APPROVAL:  All items are subject to 
final inspection and approval after delivery to Buyer.  If any items are 
defective in material or workmanship or otherwise not in conformity with 
the requirements of this PO, the Buyer shall have the right to require 
Seller to correct or replace them.  Final acceptance or rejection shall be 
made by the Buyer as promptly as practicable after delivery.  Final 
acceptance shall be conclusive except with respect to latent defects, 

117



fraud or such gross mistakes as amount to fraud, or with respect to the 
Buyer’s rights under the “Warranty” clause. 
 
ARTICLE 13. WARRANTIES-GUARANTEES:  The Seller warrants 
that the items, at time of delivery, shall conform to the Buyer’s 
specifications, the requirements of this PO, approved sample or 
samples, if any, and are free from defects in design, material and 
workmanship.  Unless otherwise specified in the PO, this warranty shall 
remain in effect for a one (1) year period after delivery or for such 
period of time as the item is normally warranted.  At the Buyer’s option, 
the Seller shall promptly either repair or replace defective items after 
receipt of the Buyer’s written notice of a defect.  Transportation charges 
for the return and redelivery of defective items shall be borne by the 
Seller. Seller also warrants that said merchandise is free and clear of all 
liens and encumbrances whatsoever and the Seller has good and 
marketable title to same, and Seller agrees to indemnify, defend and 
hold the Buyer, its officers, agents and employees free and harmless 
against any and all claimants to said merchandise. 
 
ARTICLE 14. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAWS:  
Seller's performance shall in all ways strictly conform with all applicable 
State, Federal and local laws, regulations, safety orders, and working 
conditions to which it is subject including, but not limited to, safety rules 
and regulations prevailing wages under the California Labor Code.  
Seller shall execute and deliver any and all documents as may be 
required to effect or evidence compliance.   
 
ARTICLE 15. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER:  It is the policy of 
Buyer that in connection with all materials furnished or work performed 
under this PO, there be no discrimination against employees because 
of race, religion, color, sex or national origin, and therefore the Seller 
agrees to comply with applicable Federal and California laws including, 
but not limited to, the California Fair Employment Practices Act. 
 
ARTICLE 16. PERMITS OR LICENSES:  Seller and all of its 
employees or agents shall secure and maintain in force such licenses 
and permits as are required by law, and by the City, in connection with 
the furnishing of Material, Equipment, and/or Services herein 
requested. 
 
ARTICLE 17. INDEMNITY:  Seller assumes all risk in connection with 
performance or non-performance of this PO.  Seller shall indemnify, 
defend, and hold harmless Buyer and its elected officials, officers and 
employees, from all liabilities, obligations, orders, claims, actual 
damages, governmental fines or penalties, and expenses of defense 
with respect to such claims (including attorneys' fees and costs) of any 
kind or nature which may be caused by or arise from furnishing the 
Material, Equipment, and/or Services, whether such activities or 
performance thereof be by Seller or by anyone directly or indirectly 
employed or contracted with by Seller, and whether such liabilities, 
obligations, orders, claims, actual damages, governmental fines or 
penalties , and expenses of defense with respect to such claims 
(including attorneys' fees and costs) shall accrue or be discovered 
before or after termination of this agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 18. TAXES:  Unless prohibited by law, Seller shall pay and 
has included in the prices of this PO any federal, state or local tax, 
transportation tax, or other tax which is required to be imposed upon 
the items ordered hereunder, or by reason of their sale or delivery. 
 

ARTICLE 19. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE:  Buyer shall have 
the right to terminate this PO in whole or in part at any time, and from 
time to time, by written or telegraphic notice effective upon receipt by 
Seller of such notice, even though Seller is not in breach of any 
obligation hereunder.  Upon receipt of notice of termination, Seller shall 
immediately discontinue performance and shall comply with Buyer’s 
instructions concerning disposition of completed and partially completed 
items, work in progress and materials acquired pursuant to this PO.  
Upon termination, Contractor shall be compensated only for those 
services or goods which have been adequately rendered and delivered 
to the District through the effective date of such termination.  Contractor 
shall be entitled to no further compensation.  However, said payment 
shall not exceed the price specified herein for such items.  Seller shall 
advise the Buyer, in writing, of Seller’s claim, if any, for termination 
costs within ten (10) days after receipt of the notice of termination.  
Termination in accordance with this article shall not affect Buyer’s 
obligation to pay for items accepted by Buyer prior to such termination.  
 
ARTICLE 20. GOVERNING LAW; VENUE; DEFINITIONS: The 
definition of terms used, interpretation of this PO and rights of all parties 
hereunder shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the 
State of California.  Any litigation with respect to this PO shall be 
brought and conducted in Sacramento County, California. 
 
ARTICLE 21. EXCUSE; WAIVER:  Any act or omission of Buyer which 
Seller might claim as an excuse for its own failure to perform shall be 
deemed waived by Seller unless it shall notify Buyer of its intention to 
assert such excuse within ten (10) days after the occurrence of any 
such act or omission.  No action or failure to act by Buyer shall 
constitute a waiver of a right or duty afforded it under this PO, nor shall 
such action or failure to act constitute approval of or acquiescence in a 
breach, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.  Seller 
expressly waives the effect of any statutory or common law provision 
which construes ambiguities in a contract against the party who drafted 
the contract.   
 
ARTICLE 22. INSURANCE:  If Seller or its employees or agents come 
onto Buyer's property in connection with this Purchase Order, Seller 
agrees to carry (i) Workers Compensation Insurance as required by law 
and Employer’s Liability Insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 per 
occurrence; (ii) Commercial General Liability Insurance covering 
personal injuries (including death) in the amount of $1,000,000 per 
occurrence, $ 2 million aggregate, and (iii) automobile liability insurance 
covering bodily injuries (including death) in the amount of $1,000,000 
per person, and $1,000,000 per occurrence, property damage in the 
amount of $1,000,000.  Buyer shall be named as an "Additional 
Insured" by endorsement under the Commercial General Liability and 
Automobile Liability policies.  The policy shall stipulate that the 
insurance afforded the Additional Insured shall apply as primary 
insurance and that any other insurance carried by Buyer will be excess 
only and will not contribute with this insurance.  Seller shall submit 
written proof of such insurance to Buyer prior to entrance on Buyer's 
property.  Seller shall supply such bonds as required by Buyer. 
 

THIS CONCLUDES THE TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS DATED 7/18/2019 
consisting of Article 1 through Article 22 
 

 

118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



 

AGENDA ITEM No. 9 

July 17, 2019 
 
 

TO:        Chairperson and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District 
 
FROM:         Mark J. Madison, General Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    OUTSIDE AGENCY MEETINGS REPORT  

  

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
This item is presented for information only. No action by the Florin Resource Conservation 
District Board of Directors is proposed at this time.  
 
 
SUMMARY 

 
The Outside Agency Meetings Report is a standing item on the regular board meeting 
agenda. 
 
Staff and Florin Resource Conservation District (FRCD) Board of Directors (Board) 
members attended numerous outside agency meetings since the last regular Board 
meeting. This report is intended to inform the Board of any substantive content included 
in those meetings that potentially affects the Elk Grove Water District (EGWD). 
 

 

DISCUSSION 

 
Background 
 
Per the Board’s direction during the February 21, 2018 Board meeting, staff will report on 
the outside agency meetings that occurred since the previous Board meeting.  This report 
has been designed to list the notable meetings attended, by either staff or Board 
members, and the report will be given orally by the staff or Board members in attendance. 
 

Present Situation 
 
The notable outside agency meetings attended since June 19, 2019 were as follows: 
 
7/11    Regional Water Authority (RWA) Board Meeting         (Madison) 

 
Staff will orally present the major content items addressed in these meetings during the 
regular Board meeting. 
 

 

128



  July 17, 2019 
 

OUTSIDE AGENCY MEETINGS REPORT   

Page 2 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 9 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

 

There are no direct environmental considerations associated with this report. 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY 

 
The District’s Strategic Plan addresses responsible business practices and the 
importance of providing the community with safe drinking water. Specifically, the Plan 
recommends an ongoing goal of partnering with RWA and other regional organizations. 
Attendance at these meetings, and this monthly report, assists EGWD in maintaining 
sound business practices, delivering safe drinking water, and meeting all regulatory and 
legal requirements.  
 

 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

 
There is no financial impact associated with this report. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
MARK J. MADISON 
GENERAL MANAGER 
 
MJM/mm 
 
 

129



AGENDA ITEM No. 10 

July 17, 2019 
 

  
TO:  Chairperson and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District 
 
FROM: Sarah Jones, Program Manager  
 
SUBJECT: LEGISLATIVE UPDATE   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
This item is presented for information only. No action by the Florin Resource Conservation 
District Board of Directors is proposed at this time. 
 

 
SUMMARY 
 
Several bills are discussed that could potentially impact, or be of interest to, the Florin 
Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District (District). The Governor 
approved the state budget, which includes funding for safe and affordable drinking water. 
Legislative deadlines are noted, including the start of summer recess on July 12, 2019, 
reconvening on August 12, 2019. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 

Background 
 
The Board is periodically updated on legislative and regulatory issues. 
 
Present Situation 
 
Several bills may be of interest or impact the District including: 
 
ACA 1 (Aguiar-Curry): Local Infrastructure and Housing Funding. Provides for a new 55 
percent voter threshold for local agencies to pass special taxes or general obligation 
bonds for certain infrastructure and housing projects. The California Special Districts 
Association (CSDA) supports this bill.  
 
SB 13 (Wieckowski): Development Impact Fee Prohibitions. Prohibits local agencies 
from charging development impact fees on accessory dwelling units (ADUs) smaller than 
750 square feet and drastically limits the fees that may be charged to larger ADUs. CSDA 
opposes this bill. 
 
AB 1486 (Ting): Local Agencies: Surplus Land. Requires public agencies to offer a right 
of first refusal to affordable housing developers, schools, and parks before disposing of 

130



July 17, 2019 
 
LEGISLATIVE UPDATE   
Page 2 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 10 

surplus land or entering discussions or negotiations with potential buyers. This bill passed 
out of the Senate Housing Committee on July 2 and was re-referred to the Committee on 
Governmental Organization. CSDA is opposed unless amended. ACWA’s position is not 
in favor unless amended. 
 
Some important amendments adopted in committee were: 
 

• To provide some protection against potential revenue losses, the Committee 

amended AB 1486 to eliminate the restrictions on state agencies and specify 

that nothing in the bill requires a local agency to sell surplus land or receive 

less than fair market value for its property. 

 

• The Committee amended AB 1486 to expand the uses of land that would not 

trigger a designation of surplus land and to specify that the local agency 

determines what land it needs, rather than leaving unspecified the entity that 

determines when land is no longer needed for an agency’s use. 

 

• To encourage compliance with the Act while avoiding the negative 

consequences of this provision, the Committee amended AB 1486 to reinstate 

the provision of existing law that says that transfers cannot be invalidated and 

instead include an alternative penalty structure that also allows a local agency 

to cure an inadvertent error. 

SB 200 (Monning): Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Fund. Establishes the Safe and 
Affordable Drinking Water Fund to help water systems provide an adequate and 
affordable supply of safe drinking water in both the near and the long term.  
 
AB 402 (Quirk): Authorizes the State Water Resources Control Board to assess fees on 
all public water systems in order to subsidize regulatory oversight costs of local primacy 
agencies (LPAs). LPAs fill the role of the Water Board at the county level for the oversight 
of small (15-200 connection) water systems.  This oversight is required under the federal 
clean water act.  The bill would restructure existing fees on LPA regulated systems and 
turn over authority to collect those fees to the Water Board.  Additionally, and importantly 
it would make the LPA stabilization program eligible for funding under drinking water fees 
collected pursuant to health and safety code 116590.  This will create an unknown, but 
significant, additional cost pressure beyond existing drinking water fees, potentially 
leading to an increase of existing fees in the range of 20-25%.  The estimated increase 
is $7 million annually above existing fees of $24 million annually. Both RWA and ACWA 
are opposed to this bill.  

131



July 17, 2019 
 
LEGISLATIVE UPDATE   
Page 3 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 10 

 
SB 134 (Hertzberg): Water conservation: water loss performance standards. This bill is 
intended to address “double jeopardy” for water loss under the SB 555 standalone 
standard and water use efficiency under AB 1668/ SB 606. As amended May 8, the bill 
would be problematic for a couple of reasons.  Using the term “solely” in 10609.26(a) 
would have the practical effect of requiring an analysis of each of the water use objective 
components.  This would eliminate any compliance flexibility even if a water supplier is in 
compliance with the overall water use objective. If one of the components is above its 
aggregate estimate, then water loss would still be subject to double jeopardy.  Possibly 
of greater concern is this language would be “establishing a path” toward enforcement of 
the individual components of the water use objective. 
 
AB 756 (Garcia): Allows the Water Board to require monitoring and notifications of 
PFAS/PFOS. The U.S. Environmental PA has an action plan to determine if two common 
chemicals in the PFAS family, perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) and perfluorooctane 
sulfonate (PFOS), may in fact be harmful, the extent to which they exist in water systems, 
and what measures can be taken to reduce health risks. In addition, the State Water 
Resources Control Board (Water Board) has established interim notification levels at 
concentrations of 13 parts per trillion for PFOS and 14 parts per trillion for PFOA. This bill 
would create a new separate process specific for PFAS/PFOS.  The current oppose 
position is based on the creation of a separate and specific process to monitor and notify 
on PFAS/PFOS.  Ideally the Legislature would assist in implementing the “polluter pays 
principle” when it comes to PFAS/PFOS. RWA is opposed to this bill.  
 
Safe and Affordable drinking water funding   
 
The state budget passed the Legislature and was signed by the Governor with (non-water 
tax) funding out of the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (GGRF) for safe drinking water. 
Long-term funding and governance is in SB 200 (Monning), which passed out of 
Assembly Environmental Safety and Toxic Materials Committee on July 2, 2019 and 
continues on to Assembly Appropriations.  It likely won’t head to the Governor until late 
August early September 2019. 
 
Legislative Deadlines 
 
July Deadlines: 
 July 10 Last day for policy committees to hear and report fiscal bills to fiscal 

committees.  
 July 12 Last day for policy committees to meet and report bills. Summer Recess 

begins on adjournment, provided Budget Bill has been passed.  
 

132



July 17, 2019 
 
LEGISLATIVE UPDATE   
Page 4 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 10 

 
August Deadlines: 
 Aug. 12 Legislature reconvenes from Summer Recess. 
 Aug. 30 Last day for fiscal committees to meet and report bills. 
 
September Deadlines: 
 Sept. 3-13 Floor session only. No committee may meet for any purpose, except Rules 

Committee, bills referred pursuant to Assembly Rule 77.2, and Conference 
Committees. 

 Sept. 6   Last day to amend on floor.  
 Sept. 13 Last day for any bill to be passed. Interim Recess begins upon adjournment.  
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 
  
There are no direct environmental considerations associated with this report.    
 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY 
 
Tracking active legislation complies with the District’s Regulatory Compliance goals of the 
2012-2017 Strategic Plan.  
 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
 
There is no direct financial impact associated with this report. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 
SARAH JONES  
PROGRAM MANAGER 

133




